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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., )
)

Plaintiff, )
)

v. ) Case No. 2:05-cv-2299-CM-GLR
)

NOVATION, LLC, et al., )
)

Defendants. )

ORDER

Defendants Novation, LLC ("Novation"), VHA Inc. ("VHA"), University Healthsystem Consortium

("UHC"), Robert Baker, and Curt Nonomaque (collectively, "Defendants")  have filed a Motion for Leave

to File Accounting Out of Time (DOC. #88).  For good cause shown, the Court hereby grants Defendants

leave to file their Accounting of their attorneys fees and costs.  Defendants shall file their Accounting within

five (5) days of the date of this Order.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

s/ Gerald L. Rushfelt                       
Gerald L. Rushfelt
United States Magistrate Judge

Date: April 12th, 2006
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., )
)

Plaintiff, )
)

v. ) Case No. 2:05-cv-2299-CM-GLR
)

NOVATION, LLC, et al., )
)

Defendants. )

ORDER

Defendants Novation, LLC (“Novation”), VHA Inc. (“VHA”), University Healthsystem

Consortium (“UHC”), Robert Baker, and Curt Nonomaque (collectively, “Defendants”)  have filed a

Motion to File Accounting Under Seal (DOC #90).  For good cause shown and without objection, the

Court grants the motion in part and overrules it in part and orders that Defendants are granted leave to file

the billing records and Affidavit of Kathleen Bone Spangler and the billing records and Declaration of John

K. Power under seal.  The court otherwise overrules the motion.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

s/ Gerald L. Rushfelt                       
Gerald L. Rushfelt
United States Magistrate Judge

Date: April 12, 2006

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1656



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1657



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1658



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1659



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1660



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1661



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1662



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1663



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1664



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1665



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1666



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1667



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1668



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1669



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1670



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1671



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1672



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1673



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1674



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1675



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1676



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1677



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1678



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1679



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1680



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1681



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1682



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1683



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1684



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1685



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1686



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1687



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1688



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1689



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1690



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1691



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1692



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1693



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1694



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1695



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1696



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1697



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1698



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1699



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1700



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1701



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1702



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1703



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1704



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1705



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1706



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1707



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1708



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1709



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1710



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1711



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1712



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1713



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1714



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1715



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1716



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1717



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1718



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1719



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1720



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1721



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1722



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1723



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1724



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1725



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1726



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1727



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1728



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1729



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1730



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1731



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1732



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1733



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1734



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1735



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1736



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1737



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1738



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1739



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1740



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1741



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1742



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1743



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1744



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1745



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1746



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1747



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1748



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1749



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1750



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1751



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1752



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1753



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1754



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1755



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1756



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1757



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1758



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1759



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1760



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1761



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1762



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1763



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1764



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1765



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1766



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1767



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1768



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1769



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1770



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1771



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1772



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1773



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1774



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1775



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1776



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1777



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1778



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1779



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1780



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1781



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1782



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1783



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1784



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1785



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1786



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1787



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1788



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1789



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1790



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1791



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1792



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1793



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1794



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1795



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1796



08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1797



 

1932119.1 

THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., ) 
      ) 
   Plaintiff,  ) 
      ) 
v.      ) Case No. 05-2299-CM 
      ) 
NOVATION, LLC, et al.,   ) 
      ) 
   Defendants.  ) 
 

DEFENDANTS’ JOINT MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO 
PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO “REWIND” 

Samuel Lipari’s continued filing of unauthorized and unwarranted motions as the 

purported representative of Medical Supply Chain, Inc. or as a putative plaintiff in this case must 

be stopped.  The latest in his pattern of filing unsubstantiated motions is entitled a motion to 

“rewind.”  There is no basis for filing any such motion and the defendants should not be put to 

any further expense in having to respond to these filings. 

First, the motion itself has no legal or factual basis.  Initially, the supposed legal basis, 

12 U.S.C. § 1631, by its terms only applies when a court determines it lacks jurisdiction in a 

matter.  There is no want of jurisdiction here.  The purported “factual” grounds on which 

Mr. Lipari relies are that it was unfair for this case to have been transferred by the Western 

District of Missouri to this Court and, despite the case having been dismissed, all of the Court’s 

efforts here (as well as the Western District of Missouri in transferring the case) should simply 

be forgotten and Mr. Lipari be given another chance.1  There is nothing remaining in this case 

                                                 
1 Of course, this request for yet another opportunity to litigate follows on the heels of this 

Court’s as well as the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals’ final decisions dismissing in their entirety 
all of the previous claims brought against US Bancorp, Piper Jaffray and certain individuals 
associated with those companies.  Mr. Lipari’s company, Medical Supply Chain, Inc., had full 
opportunity to litigate all of those issues and they were decided against him. 
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that merits its return to the Western District of Missouri.  It would be an inconceivable waste of 

the Court’s resources, to say nothing of the cost and expense to the parties, for Mr. Lipari’s 

unsubstantiated claim of “injustice” to be given further consideration. 

Second, it bears repeating that the Court denied Mr. Lipari’s motion to be substituted as a 

plaintiff.  The motion was denied at the same time that plaintiff’s case was dismissed in its 

entirety.  See Order dated March 7, 2006.  In light of the fact that Mr. Lipari has not been 

substituted as a party, his filings are of no effect.  Moreover, the defendants are very concerned 

about Mr. Lipari’s continued unauthorized practice of law since he is purporting to represent the 

organization.  See D. Kan. Rule 83.5.1; In re Arnold, 56 P.3d 259 (Kan. 2002). 

Third, certain of these defendants have pending motions for an award of attorneys’ fees, 

which the Court has previously ordered were warranted.  That is all that remains of this case.  

Mr. Lipari’s repeated motions have now caused these defendants to incur additional expenses 

having to respond in an action where there are no longer any claims to litigate.  The defendants, 

while they would be justified in doing so, have resisted the temptation to file additional motions 

for sanctions.  But their patience with Mr. Lipari is limited.  The Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals 

has made it clear that litigants who continue to file vexatious and abusive motions, the effect of 

which is to simply harass parties, will not be tolerated.  Courts have gone so far as to bar persons 

from filing additional papers absent some prior approval process.  See Johnson v. Stock, 2005 

WL 1349963 (10th Cir., June 8, 2005); Lundahl v. NAR Inc., 2006 WL 1495070 (D. Idaho, 

May 24, 2006).  Mr. Lipari’s continued filing of pleadings here at least warrants some 

consideration of this authority given that the case has been dismissed and the Court has 

determined sanctions are appropriate. 
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Finally, at the risk of fueling Mr. Lipari’s wild speculation of a conspiracy among 

counsel, the defendants are filing this joint response to avoid unnecessarily burdening the Court 

with multiple filings. 

For all of these reasons, plaintiff’s motion to “rewind” should be denied.  Defendants 

further request the Court (1) deny the plaintiff’s motion for reconsideration (filed March 14, 

2006); (2) sustain the pending applications for attorney fees; (3) enter an order prohibiting 

Mr. Lipari from filing additional motions without leave of Court; and (4) for such other relief as 

the Court deems just, equitable and reasonable. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
/s/ Mark A. Olthoff  
MARK A. OLTHOFF KS FED #70339 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
1700 Twelve Wyandotte Plaza 
120 W 12th Street 
Kansas City, Missouri  64105-1929 
(816) 421-3355 
(816) 374-0509 (FAX) 
 
ANDREW M. DeMAREA KS #16141 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100 
9225 Indian Creek Parkway 
Overland Park, Kansas  66210 
(913) 451-3355 
(913) 451-3361 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS 
US BANCORP, U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, PIPER JAFFRAY COMPANIES, 
JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, ANDREW CECERE 
AND ANDREW S. DUFF 
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/s/ John K. Power  
JOHN K. POWER 
HUSCH & EPPENBERGER, LLC 
1700 One Kansas City Place 
1200 Main Street 
Kansas City, Missouri  64104-2122 
 
BRUCE BLEFELD 
KATHLEEN BONE SPANGLER 
VINSON & ELKINS L.L.P. 
2300 First City Tower 
1001 Fannin 
Houston, Texas  77002 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT 
 
 
 
/s/ Stephen N. Roberts  
STEPHEN N. ROBERTS 
NOSSAMAN, GUTHNER, KNOX & ELLIOTT 
34th Floor 
50 California Street 
San Francisco, California  94111 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT 
 
 
 
/s/ Kathleen A. Hardee  
KATHLEEN A. HARDEE 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
1700 Twelve Wyandotte Plaza 
120 W 12th Street 
Kansas City, Missouri  64105-1929 
(816) 421-3355 
(816) 374-0509 (FAX) 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT SHUGHART 
THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify a true and correct copy of the above item was filed in PDF format with 
the Court pursuant to its Case Management / Electronic Case Files program and thereby a notice 
of filing was e-mailed to counsel of record herein, all on the 2nd day of August, 2006. 

A copy was also served via United States mail, postage prepaid, to: 

Mr. Samuel K. Lipari 
297 NE Bayview Drive 
Lee’s Summit, MO  64064-3400 

 
 
/s/ John K. Power  
Attorney for Defendants 
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1 Throughout the docket sheet, this defendant’s last name was spelled numerous different
ways.  The court will use “Cesare,” the spelling most often used by defendants’ counsel. 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., )
)

Plaintiff, )
) CIVIL ACTION

v. )
) No. 05-2299-CM

NEOFORMA, INC., et al., )
)

Defendants. )
                                                                              )

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

Pending before the court are plaintiff’s Motion for Reconsideration (Doc. 80); plaintiff’s

counsel Ira Dennis Hawver’s Motion to Withdraw (Doc. 81); plaintiff’s Motion Under Rule 15 for

Leave to Rewrite and Amend Complaint to Cure Any Defects Requiring Dismissal Remaining After

Outcome of Reconsideration Motion (Doc. 92); plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Documents # 82, 83, 84,

85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 93 (Doc. 95); and plaintiff’s Motion to Rewind Action and Return

Proceeding to the Western District of Missouri in the Interest of Justice Under 28 U.S.C. [§] 1631

(Doc. 102).  

I. Background

On March 9, 2005, plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (“Medical Supply”) filed the above-

captioned case in the United States District Court for the Western of District Missouri, case number

05-2010-CV-W-ODS.  Plaintiff brought suit against Neoforma, Inc.; Robert J. Zollars; Volunteer

Hospital Association (“VHA”); Curt Nonomaque; University Healthsystem Consortium; Robert J.

Baker; US Bancorp NA; U.S. Bank National Association; Jerry A. Grundhofer, Andrew Cesare;1
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2 Plaintiff’s complaint names “Shughart Thomson & Kilroy Watkins Boulware, P.C.” but the
law firm’s correct name is “Shughart Thomson & Kilroy, P.C..”  

-2-

Piper Jaffray Companies; Andrew S. Duff; Shughart Thomson & Kilroy, P.C.;2 and Novation, LLC. 

Plaintiff’s 115 page complaint alleges sixteen counts including claims for price restraint under the

Sherman Act, restraint of trade and monopolization under both federal and Missouri law, conspiracy,

tortious interference with contract or business expectancy, breach of contract, breach of fiduciary

duty, fraud, prima facie tort, and claims under RICO and the USA PATRIOT Act. 

The Western District of Missouri court transferred the case to this court on July 14, 2005.  On

March 7, 2006, this court dismissed plaintiff’s case after finding that each of plaintiff’s federal claims

failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure

12(b)(6), and declining to retain supplemental jurisdiction over plaintiff’s state law claims.  The court

also found that claim preclusion barred several of plaintiff’s claims.  Furthermore, the court held that

plaintiff’s 115 page complaint violates Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 8(a) and 8(e)(1), and granted

sanctions to defendants pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 11(b) and 28 U.S.C. § 1927.  

II. Analysis

A. Motion to Withdraw

On January 30, 2006, Bret D. Landrith withdrew as counsel for plaintiff after being disbarred

from the practice of law in the State of Kansas on December 9, 2005 for violating Kansas Rules of

Professional Conduct relating to competence, meritorious claims, candor toward the tribunal, fairness

to opposing parties and counsel, respect for rights of third persons, and misconduct.  On February 2,

2006, the court denied plaintiff’s request to substitute Samuel K. Lipari, CEO of Medical Supply, as

plaintiff for Medical Supply because although Medical Supply’s corporate status was dissolved on
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January 27, 2006, dissolution had not occurred at the time Mr. Lipari filed his motion to substitute. 

The court ordered Medical Supply to retain counsel because Mr. Lipari could not proceed pro se on

behalf of a corporation.  On February 7, 2006, Ira Dennis Hawver entered his appearance on behalf of

Medical Supply.  

Mr. Hawver requests that the court allow him to withdraw because Mr. Lipari no longer

requires his representation.  Attached to his motion to withdraw is Mr. Lipari’s Entry of Appearance

(Doc. 79), suggesting that Mr. Lipari intends to replace Mr. Hawver.  But Mr. Lipari is not an

attorney, and Mr. Hawver did not offer substitute counsel.  The court finds that Mr. Hawver’s motion

does not comport with D. Kan. Rule 83.5.5, which requires withdrawing counsel without substitute

counsel to “provide evidence of notice to the attorney’s client containing (1) the admonition that the

client is personally responsible for complying with all orders of the court and time limitations

established by the rules of procedure or by court order and (2) the dates of any pending trial, hearing

or conference.”   Mr. Hawver did not provide such notice to the court.  As such, the court denies Mr.

Hawver’s motion to withdraw. 

B. Mr. Lipari’s Motions (Docs. 80, 92, 95 and 102)

On March 14, 2006, one week after this court dismissed plaintiff’s case, Mr. Lipari filed an

Entry of Appearance (Doc. 79).  Since that time, Mr. Lipari has filed four motions currently pending

before the court.  The question before the court is whether Mr. Lipari may represent Medical Supply

or substitute himself for Medical Supply.

Because Medical Supply was incorporated under the laws of Missouri, the effect of corporate

dissolution on pending litigation is governed by Missouri law.  Pursuant to Mo. Ann. Stat. §

351.476.2(6), “[d]issolution of a corporation does not: . . . (6) Abate or suspend a proceeding pending

by or against the corporation on the effective date of dissolution.”  See also Reben v. Wilson, 861
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S.W.2d 171, 176 (Mo. App. E.D. 1993).  Therefore, even though Medical Supply was dissolved, its

corporate existence continues for purposes of proceeding with this litigation.  Medical Supply

remains the sole plaintiff in this case.  

Moreover, Mr. Lipari cannot proceed pro se on behalf of Medical Supply because a pro se

individual may not represent a corporation.  See Nato Indian Nation v. State of Utah, 76 Fed. Appx.

854, 856 (10th Cir. 2003) (“Individuals may appear in court pro se, but a corporation, other business

entity, or non-profit organization may only appear through a licensed attorney.”) (citations omitted). 

The court also finds that Mr. Lipari may not substitute himself for Medical Supply.  Federal

Rule of Civil Procedure 25(c), which governs the procedural substitution of a party after a transfer of

interest, states: “In case of any transfer of interest, the action may be continued by or against the

original party, unless the court upon motion directs the person to whom the interest is transferred to

be substituted in the action.”  Fed. R. Civ. P. 25(c) (emphasis added).  As evidenced by the plain

language of Rule 25(c), the court has discretion to allow Mr. Lipari to substitute.  Prop-Jets, Inc. v.

Chandler, 575 F.2d 1322, 1324 (10th Cir. 1978).  The court declines to exercise its discretion,

however, because this case has been dismissed, and substitution will not change that outcome.  

Mr. Lipari also argues that because the court sanctioned him personally, the court should

allow him to represent himself pro se.  Mr. Lipari is mistaken.  The court sanctioned Medical Supply,

not Mr. Lipari.  Although the court discussed Mr. Lipari’s personal involvement in the litigation in its

ruling opposing sanctions against plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel, it did so for the purpose of

demonstrating plaintiff’s culpability.  It is irrelevant that Mr. Lipari, as Medical Supply’s sole

shareholder, is ultimately liable for plaintiff’s sanctions.  

For the above-mentioned reasons, the court strikes each of Mr. Lipari’s pending motions,

including Documents 80, 92, 95 and 102.  Consistent with this ruling, the court cautions Mr. Lipari
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against filling additional motions.  Of course, plaintiff may allow Mr. Hawver or other counsel to

represent it.  But the court reiterates that it dismissed plaintiff’s case with prejudice and sanctioned

plaintiff for violations of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 11(b) and 28 U.S.C. § 1927.  Plaintiff has a

history of filing frivolous lawsuits and motions, for which the court has sanctioned plaintiff on

several occasions.  Future attempts to resurrect this case could result in the court imposing additional

sanctions.  

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Ira Dennis Hawver’s Motion to Withdraw (Doc. 81)

is denied. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that plaintiff’s Motion for Reconsideration (Doc. 80);

plaintiff’s Motion Under Rule 15 for Leave to Rewrite and Amend Complaint to Cure Any Defects

Requiring Dismissal Remaining After Outcome of Reconsideration Motion (Doc. 92); plaintiff’s

Motion to Strike Documents # 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 93 (Doc. 95); and plaintiff’s

Motion to Rewind Action and Return Proceeding to the Western District of Missouri in the Interest

of Justice Under 28 U.S.C. [§] 1631 (Doc. 102) are hereby stricken from the record.

Dated this 7th day of August 2006, at Kansas City, Kansas.

s/ Carlos Murguia                
   CARLOS MURGUIA
   United States District Judge
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1 Throughout the docket sheet, this defendant’s last name was spelled numerous different
ways.  The court will use “Cesare,” the spelling most often used by defendant’s counsel. 

2 Plaintiff’s complaint names “Shughart Thomson & Kilroy Watkins Boulware, P.C.” but the
law firm’s correct name is “Shughart Thomson & Kilroy, P.C.”.  

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., )
)

Plaintiff, )
) CIVIL ACTION

v. )
) No. 05-2299-CM

NEOFORMA, INC., et al., )
)

Defendants. )
                                                                              )

ORDER

Pending before the court are Defendants’ Motion for Attorney’s Fees (Doc. 85) and

Defendants’ Accounting of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (Doc. 100).

I. Background

On March 9, 2005, plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (“Medical Supply”) filed the above-

captioned case in the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri, case number

05-2010-CV-W-ODS.  Plaintiff brought suit against Neoforma, Inc.; Robert J. Zollars; Volunteer

Hospital Association, Inc. (“VHA”); Curt Nonomaque; University Healthsystem Consortium; Robert

J. Baker; US Bancorp NA; U.S. Bank National Association; Jerry A. Grundhofer; Andrew Cesare;1

Piper Jaffray Companies; Andrew S. Duff; Shughart Thomson & Kilroy, P.C.;2 and Novation, LLC. 

Plaintiff’s 115 page complaint alleges sixteen counts including claims for price restraint under the

Sherman Act, restraint of trade and monopolization under both federal and Missouri law, conspiracy,
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tortious interference with contract or business expectancy, breach of contract, breach of fiduciary

duty, fraud, prima facie tort, and claims under RICO and the USA PATRIOT Act. 

The Western District of Missouri court transferred the case to this court on July 14, 2005.  On

March 7, 2006, this court dismissed plaintiff’s case after finding that each of plaintiff’s federal claims

failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure

12(b)(6) and declining to retain supplemental jurisdiction over plaintiff’s state law claims.  The court

also found that claim preclusion barred several of plaintiff’s claims.  Furthermore, the court held that

plaintiff’s 115 page complaint violates Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 8(a) and 8(e)(1), and granted

sanctions in the form of attorney fees and costs to defendants pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil

Procedure 11(b) and 28 U.S.C. § 1927.   At issue here is the reasonable amount of defendants’

attorney fees and costs.  

II. Standard

The court follows a two-step process to determine an award of reasonable attorney fees and

costs.  The initial estimate is calculated by multiplying the number of hours reasonably expended by

a reasonable hourly fee, resulting in the “lodestar” amount.  Blum v. Stenson, 465 U.S. 886, 888

(1984); Hensley v. Eckerhart, 461 U.S. 424, 433 (1983).  The court may then adjust upward or

downward from the lodestar as necessary.  Blum, 465 U.S. at 888.  

The party moving for attorney fees “bears the burden of . . . documenting the appropriate

hours expended and the hourly rate.”  Case v. Unified Sch. Dist. No. 233, Johnson County, Kan., 157

F.3d 1243, 1249 (10th Cir. 1998).  To satisfy its burden, therefore, the party must submit “meticulous,

contemporaneous time records that reveal, for each lawyer for whom fees are sought, all hours for

which compensation is requested and how those hours were allotted to specific tasks.”  Id. at 1250
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(citing Ramos v. Lamm, 713 F.2d 546, 553 (10th Cir. 1983)).  “The prevailing party must make a

good-faith effort to exclude from a fee request hours that are excessive, redundant, or otherwise

unnecessary.”  Robinson v. City of Edmond, 160 F.3d 1275, 1280 (10th Cir. 1998).  The court will

reduce the hours claimed if the attorneys’ records are inadequate or fail to precisely document the

time necessary to complete specific tasks.  Hensley, 461 U.S. at 433-34; Case, 157 F.3d at 1250. 

III. Analysis

A.  Defendants US Bancorp NA; U.S. Bank National Association; Jerry A. Grundhofer;
Andrew Cesare; Piper Jaffray Companies; and Andrew S. Duff’s Motion for Attorney
Fees (Doc. 85)

Defendants US Bancorp NA, U.S. Bank National Association, Jerry A. Grundhofer, Andrew

Cesare, Piper Jaffray Companies, and Andrew S. Duff request $59,856.41 in attorney fees, which

they assert represent the work done and expenses incurred in responding to plaintiff’s March 9, 2005

complaint and obtaining dismissal of this case.  In support of this request, the law firm of Shughart

Thomson & Kilroy in Kansas City, Missouri submitted to the court numerous bills for legal services

rendered.  The bills were divided between two sets of clients: (1) US Bancorp NA, U.S. Bank

National Association, Jerry A. Grundhofer, and Andrew Cesare; and (2) Piper Jaffray Companies and

Andrew S. Duff.  Plaintiff does not oppose the reasonableness of these fees.  

The court’s examination of the two sets of bills revealed numerous errors and inconsistencies. 

First, each set of clients was billed for what appears to be identical work.  For example, the first entry

for each bill states that Mark Olthoff devoted .3 hours to “analysis of new complaint,” for which each

client was billed $85.50 ($285 an hour multiplied by .3 hours).  Neither the bills themselves nor Mr.

Olthoff’s declaration address this issue.  Second, although Mr. Olthoff’s declaration, which was

signed under penalty of perjury, lists the hourly rates for each attorney who worked on the case, the

hourly rates actually billed to the clients are inflated for all but one attorney by as much as seventeen
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3 By the court’s calculation, the amount Vison & Elkins billed to defendants totals
$57,270.39.  This discrepancy was not discussed in the affidavit of Kathleen Bone Spangler, Of
Counsel attorney for Vison & Elkins.  Since the amount requested is considerably lower than the
amount billed, the court will use the amount requested.  
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percent.  The court reiterates that defendants bear the burden of accurately demonstrating, through

meticulous records, the hours expended and the hourly rates charged for each attorney.  Case, 157

F.3d at 1249-50.

For the above-mentioned reasons, the court finds that these defendants have not met their

burden.  As such, the court denies defendants’ motion for attorney fees without prejudice with leave

to re-file within five (5) days of this Order.  Failure to sufficiently address each of the above-

mentioned issues will result in the court denying defendants’ motion.  

B. Defendants Novation, LLC; VHA Inc.; University Healthsystem Consortium; Robert

Baker; and Curt Nonomaque’s Accounting of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (Doc. 100)

Defendants Novation, LLC, VHA Inc., University Healthsystem Consortium, Robert Baker,

and Curt Nonomaque seek a total of $54,889.55 in attorney fees and costs.  The law firm of  Vison &

Elkins, LLP in Dallas, Texas requests $50,7113 in attorney fees, and the law firm of Husch &

Eppenberger, LLC in Kansas City, Missouri requests $4,178.55 in attorney fees and costs.  Plaintiff

does not oppose the reasonableness of these fees.  

The court finds that these defendants have met their burden of submitting “meticulous,

contemporaneous time records.”  Id. at 1250.  Furthermore, the court finds that the hours claimed, the

hourly rate of each attorney, and the documentation of time is reasonable.  As such, the court hereby

awards these defendants $54,889.55 in attorney fees and costs.  

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendants US Bancorp NA, U.S. Bank National

Association, Jerry A. Grundhofer, Andrew Cesare, Piper Jaffray Companies, and Andrew S. Duff’s
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Motion for Attorney Fees (Doc. 85) is denied without prejudice.  Defendants shall have five (5) days

from this Order to re-file their motion for attorney fees. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants Novation, LLC, VHA Inc., University

Healthsystem Consortium, Robert Baker, and Curt Nonomaque’s request for attorney fees is granted

as set forth above.  Defendants are hereby awarded $54,889.55 in attorney fees and costs from

plaintiff, to be divided as follows: $50,711 to the law firm of  Vison & Elkins, LLP in Dallas, Texas

and $4,178.55 to the law firm of Husch & Eppenberger, LLC in Kansas City, Missouri.

Dated this 7th day of August 2006, at Kansas City, Kansas.

s/ Carlos Murguia             
   CARLOS MURGUIA
   United States District Judge
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., ) 
      ) 
   Plaintiff,  ) 
      ) 
v.      ) Case No. 05-2299-CM 
      ) 
NOVATION, LLC, et al.,   ) 
      ) 
   Defendants.  ) 
 

DEFENDANTS’ SUPPLEMENTAL MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES 

Pursuant to the Court’s August 7, 2006 Order, the below-named Defendants supplement their 

previous motion for attorney fees incurred in opposing Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc.’s 

Complaint.  In support of this supplemental motion, and as more fully set forth in the accompanying 

Memorandum in Support, Defendants state: 

1. Plaintiff filed the instant action in the United States District Court for the Western 

District of Missouri on March 9, 2005.  After considerable motion practice, the case was transferred 

to this Court on June 15, 2005. 

2. After transfer, Defendants renewed their motions to dismiss because this Court, in a 

Memorandum and Order dated June 16, 2003, dismissed a virtually identical suit filed by Plaintiff.  

The June 16, 2003 dismissal was upheld on appeal by the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals and the 

United States Supreme Court denied review of the Tenth Circuit’s award of sanctions for filing a 

frivolous appeal. 

3. In the Court’s March 7, 2006 Memorandum and Order dismissing this Complaint, the 

Court also granted defendants’ Motion for Sanctions and assessed attorneys’ fees and costs against 

Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s former counsel under Fed. R. Civ. P. 11 and 28 U.S.C. § 1927. 
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4. Pursuant to the Court’s March 7, 2006 Memorandum and Order, Defendants 

submitted their motion, Memorandum in Support, and exhibits to establish the amount of the 

attorneys’ fees incurred in opposing Plaintiff’s Complaint. 

5. On August 7, 2006, the Court entered its Order denying without prejudice these 

Defendants’ March 27 motion, permitting five (5) days to provide clarification to address particular 

issues with the submission. 

6. On this date, Defendants hereby submit their supplemental information and 

Declaration to correct the inadvertent errors and inconsistencies noted by the Court. 

WHEREFORE, Defendants respectfully request that the Court enter an Order:  

(1) determining that the amount of Defendants’ attorneys’ fees incurred in opposing Plaintiff’s 

Complaint is $59,856.41; and (2) awarding that amount to Defendants pursuant to the Court’s 

March 7, 2006 Memorandum and Order. 

/s/ Mark A. Olthoff  
MARK A. OLTHOFF KS FED #70339 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
1700 Twelve Wyandotte Plaza 
120 W 12th Street 
Kansas City, Missouri  64105-1929 
Telephone:  (816) 421-3355 
Facsimile:  (816) 374-0509 
 
and 
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ANDREW M. DeMAREA KS #16141 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100 
9225 Indian Creek Parkway 
Overland Park, Kansas  66210 
Telephone:  (913) 451-3355 
Facsimile:  (913) 451-3361 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS US 
BANCORP, U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, PIPER JAFFRAY COMPANIES, 
JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, ANDREW CECERE 
AND ANDREW S. DUFF 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify a true and correct copy of the above item was filed in PDF format with the 
Court pursuant to its Case Management / Electronic Case Files program and thereby a notice of 
filing was e-mailed to counsel of record herein, all on the 10th day of August, 2006. 

 
 
/s/ Mark A. Olthoff  
Attorney for Defendants 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., ) 
      ) 
   Plaintiff,  ) 
      ) 
v.      ) Case No. 05-2299-CM 
      ) 
NOVATION, LLC, et al.,   ) 
      ) 
   Defendants.  ) 
 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANTS’ 
SUPPLEMENTAL MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES 

On August 7, 2006, the Court entered its Order addressing the various fee requests submitted.  

In particular, the Court noted some inconsistencies in the materials submitted by the attorneys for 

US Bancorp, Andrew Cecere, Jerry Grundhofer, Piper Jaffray Companies and Andrew Duff.  

Counsel recognizes the inadvertent mistakes, apologizes to the Court for the errors and submits this 

supplemental memorandum to amend the record.  A supplemental submission of the true and correct 

data also is being submitted to the Court to be filed under seal pursuant to the Court’s March 27, 

2006 Order. 

Defendants’ counsel has analyzed the billing records applicable to this matter once again.  

The billing records applicable to the case are attached to this memorandum as Exhibits A 

(US Bancorp, U.S. Bank, Andrew Cecere and Jerry Grundhofer) and B (Piper Jaffray Companies 

and Andrew Duff).  The records identify each time entry by date, the attorney or paralegal 

performing the work, time expended, and amount.  Each time entry also contains a description of the 

work performed.  The Supplemental Declaration also sets forth the correct hourly rates for the 

individuals performing work (Exhibit C). 

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1816



 2 
1937237.1 

After analyzing the billing records again, Defendants’ counsel has determined that the total 

amount of attorneys’ fees incurred in successfully opposing Plaintiff’s Complaint is $59,856.41.  

(See Exhibit C, Supplemental Declaration of Mark A. Olthoff, at ¶ 4.) 

The $59,856.41 figure is verified and sworn pursuant to the Supplemental Declaration of 

Mark A. Olthoff.  (See Exhibit C.)  Only that work done and expenses incurred for responding to the 

March 9, 2005 Complaint is included.  (Id. ¶¶ 5, 6.)  Based on Defendants’ counsel’s detailed review 

of the billing records, and personal knowledge of the work completed, the attorneys’ fees sought are 

true, accurate, and reasonable.  (Id. at ¶¶ 7-11.)  Moreover, the work underlying the attorneys’ fees 

was necessary to properly oppose Plaintiff’s Complaint and obtain dismissal.  (Id. at ¶¶ 4-11; 

Exhibits A, B to Memorandum.) 

CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, Defendants respectfully request that the Court enter an Order 

determining that Defendants should be awarded $59,856.41 in attorneys’ fees. 

 
 
/s/ Mark A. Olthoff  
MARK A. OLTHOFF KS FED #70339 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
1700 Twelve Wyandotte Plaza 
120 W 12th Street 
Kansas City, Missouri  64105-1929 
Telephone:  (816) 421-3355 
Facsimile:  (816) 374-0509 
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and 
 
ANDREW M. DeMAREA KS #16141 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100 
9225 Indian Creek Parkway 
Overland Park, Kansas  66210 
Telephone:  (913) 451-3355 
Facsimile:  (913) 451-3361 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS US 
BANCORP, U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, PIPER JAFFRAY COMPANIES, 
JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, ANDREW CECERE 
AND ANDREW S. DUFF 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify a true and correct copy of the above item was filed in PDF format with the 
Court pursuant to its Case Management / Electronic Case Files program and thereby a notice of 
filing was e-mailed to counsel of record herein, all on the 10th day of August, 2006. 

 
 
/s/ Mark A. Olthoff  
Attorney for Defendants 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., ) 
      ) 
   Plaintiff,  ) 
      ) 
v.      ) Case No. 05-2299-CM 
      ) 
NOVATION, LLC, et al.,   ) 
      ) 
   Defendants.  ) 
 

DEFENDANTS’ EXHIBITS TO BE FILED UNDER SEAL 

Defendants US Bancorp, U.S. Bank National Association, Piper Jaffray Companies, Jerry A. 

Grundhofer, Andrew Cecere and Andrew S. Duff submit the following documents, under seal 

pursuant to the Court’s March 27, 2006 Order, as their exhibits to the Memorandum in Support of 

Defendants’ Supplemental Motion for Attorneys’ Fees filed on August 10, 2006: 

A. Billing records of counsel to US Bancorp (US Bancorp, U.S. Bank, Jerry Grundhofer 

and Andrew Cecere); 

B. Billing records of counsel to Piper Jaffray Companies (Piper Jaffray and Andrew S. 

Duff); and 

C. Supplemental Declaration of Mark A. Olthoff dated August 10, 2006. 

 
 
/s/ Mark A. Olthoff  
MARK A. OLTHOFF KS FED #70339 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
1700 Twelve Wyandotte Plaza 
120 W 12th Street 
Kansas City, Missouri  64105-1929 
Telephone:  (816) 421-3355 
Facsimile:  (816) 374-0509 
 
and 
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ANDREW M. DeMAREA KS #16141 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C. 
32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100 
9225 Indian Creek Parkway 
Overland Park, Kansas  66210 
Telephone:  (913) 451-3355 
Facsimile:  (913) 451-3361 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS US 
BANCORP, U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, PIPER JAFFRAY COMPANIES, 
JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, ANDREW CECERE 
AND ANDREW S. DUFF 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify a true and correct copy of the above item was filed in PDF format with the 
Court pursuant to its Case Management / Electronic Case Files program and thereby a notice of 
filing was e-mailed to counsel of record herein, all on the 10th day of August, 2006. 

 
 
/s/ Mark A. Olthoff  
Attorney for Defendants 
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1 The court hereby incorporates by reference the facts and standards set forth in its August 8,
2006 Order (Doc. 105).  

2 The bills were divided between two sets of clients: (1) US Bancorp NA, U.S. Bank National
Association, Jerry A. Grundhofer, and Andrew Cesare; and (2) Piper Jaffray Companies and Andrew
S. Duff. 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., )
)

Plaintiff, )
) CIVIL ACTION

v. )
) No. 05-2299-CM

NEOFORMA, INC., et al., )
)

Defendants. )
                                                                              )

ORDER

Pending before the court is Defendants’ Motion for Attorney’s Fees (Doc. 85).1  At issue is

the reasonable amount of attorney fees and costs to be awarded to defendants US Bancorp NA, U.S.

Bank National Association, Jerry A. Grundhofer, Andrew Cesare, Piper Jaffray Companies, and

Andrew S. Duff.  The court previously considered this question in its August 8, 2006 Order (Doc.

105), which denied without prejudice these defendants’ request for attorney fees.  There, the court

held that the two sets of bills2 submitted in support of these defendants’ attorney fees revealed two

noteworthy errors or inconsistencies.  Without further information, the court was unable to conclude

whether these defendants’ attorney fees are reasonable.  Accordingly, the court allowed these

defendants five days in which to supplement the record.  

These defendants timely filed a supplemental motion for attorney fees.  The court is satisfied

with their response; these defendants met their burden of providing the court with detailed and
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meticulous billing records.  See Case v. Unified Sch. Dist. No. 233, Johnson County, Kan., 157 F.3d

1243, 1249 (10th Cir. 1998).  As such, the court finds that $59,856.41 in attorney fees and costs is

reasonable. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendants’ Motion for Attorney’s Fees (Doc. 85) is

granted.  Defendants US Bancorp NA, U.S. Bank National Association, Jerry A. Grundhofer,

Andrew Cesare, Piper Jaffray Companies, and Andrew S. Duff are hereby awarded $59,856.41 in

attorney fees and costs from plaintiff. 

Dated this 25th day of August 2006, at Kansas City, Kansas.

s/ Carlos Murguia          
   CARLOS MURGUIA
   United States District Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 

 
MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC.,    )   

Plaintiff,     ) 
v.       ) Case No. 05-2299 

NOVATION, LLC      )  
NEOFORMA, INC.      )  
ROBERT J. ZOLLARS     ) 
VOLUNTEER HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION  ) 
CURT NONOMAQUE     ) 
UNIVERSITY HEALTHSYSTEM CONSORTIUM  ) 
ROBERT J. BAKER      ) 
US BANCORP, NA      ) 
US BANK        ) 
JERRY A. GRUNDHOFFER    ) 
ANDREW CESERE      ) 
THE PIPER JAFFRAY COMPANIES   ) 
ANDREW S. DUFF      ) 
SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY       ) 
WATKINS BOULWARE, P.C.        ) 

Defendants.     ) 
 

NOTICE OF APPEAL 

 

Comes now, the plaintiff Medical Supply Chain and Samuel K. Lipari 

through their counsel, Dennis Hawver, Esq. and enters the present notice of 

appeal. Plaintiff respectfully appeals for the following reasons: 

1. The trial court’s order granting dismissal overrules the US Supreme 

Court decision regarding claim preclusion in Lawlor v. National Screen Service 

Corp., 349 U.S. 322, 75 S.Ct. 865, 99 L.Ed. 1122 (1955), a holding repeatedly 

followed by the Tenth Circuit. 

2.  The plaintiff has adequately pled Sherman Antitrust Act based 

claims that the defendants made specific agreements to restrain trade in the two 

relevant markets identified ( hospital supplies and hospital supplies through an 

electronic marketplace), that the defendants have monopoly power in the 

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1823



 2 

identified markets and the plaintiff has adequately alleged facts supporting the 

existence of a defendant antitrust conspiracy in an organized complaint where 

the required averments and claim elements are easily located by aid of a table of 

contents. Under the law, a conspiracy may consist of any mutual agreement or 

arrangement, knowingly made, between two or more competitors. Law v. Nat'l 

Collegiate Athletic Ass'n 185 F.R.D. 324, 336, n.19 (D. Kan. 1999). 

3. The plaintiff has adequately pled RICO, RICO Enterprise and RICO 

Conspiracy claims that included misconduct before the trial court warranting 

appeal. 

4. The trial court has again overruled the US Congress, invalidating 

two portions of the USA PATRIOT Act Public Law 107–56 ‘‘Uniting and 

Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and 

Obstruct Terrorism (USA PATRIOT ACT) Act of 2001’’ specifically § 814 of the 

USA PATRIOT Act entitled DETERRENCE AND PREVENTION OF 

CYBERTERRORISM (18 U.S.C.§1030 (e) ) which creates a private right of 

action for Medical Supply to address the conduct of the Defendants in gaining 

access to the FINCEN network for the purpose of filing a suspicious activity 

report to prevent Medical Supply from providing hospital supplies and reducing 

healthcare costs and § 351 (31 U.S.C. § 5318 (g)(3)) making the defendants 

liable for filing a malicious Suspicious Activity Report against the plaintiff.  

5.  The court has disregarded the principals of res judicata and the 

Rooker-Feldman Doctrine in ignoring the final ruling of a Missouri state court in 

Samuel K Lipari V General Electric Company, et al  Jackson County District 
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Court Case No. 0616-CV07421. Samuel Lipari was determined to be privileged 

to act pro se in vindicating his personal property interest that include the 

assigned claims of the dissolved Missouri corporation Medical Supply Chain, Inc. 

under the corporation laws of the State of Missouri, the source for determining 

Lipari’s rights under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure Rule 17. Fed.R.Civ.P. 17(b) 

requires that "(t)he capacity of a corporation to sue or be sued shall be 

determined by the law under which it was organized." The defense counsel John 

K. Power’s dismissal motion on behalf of alleged coconspirators in privity with the 

defendants in this matter was overruled by the Missouri state judge resolving the 

issue of whether Samuel Lipari acting pro se is the proper party under Missouri 

Statutes to represent the dissolved corporation’s claims. See Exb 1. at pg. 2 

(Order overruling GE defendants’ dismissal and ordering mediation). 

5. Finally, the trial court awarded attorneys fees to the defendants 

when Medical Supply was the prevailing party as an acting private attorney 

general under the catalyst test described in Ellis v. University of Kansas Medical 

Center 10th Cir. Case No. 96-3343a 12/21/1998. The defendants settled antitrust 

claims in the identified relevant market and would have continued their monopoly 

control of the hospital supply of retractable needles but for the plaintiff’s present 

lawsuit. See Exb 2. and 3.  

6. The plaintiff requires the opening brief to be increased from 30 to 

80 pages. 
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Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Dennis Hawver 
______________________ 
Ira Dennis Hawver 8337 
6993 Highway 92 
Ozawkie, Kansas 66070 
Telephone (785) 876 2233 
Fax (785) 876 3038 
hawverlaw@hughes.net 
Attorney for Medical Supply Chain 
And Samuel K. Lipari 

 
 
 

Certificate of Service 

 
 I certify that on September 8th,  2006 I have served the foregoing with the 
clerk of the court by using the CM/ECF system which will send a notice of 
electronic filing to the  following: 
 
Mark A. Olthoff , Jonathan H. Gregor, Logan W. Overman, Shughart Thomson & 
Kilroy, P.C.  1700 Twelve Wyandotte Plaza  120 W 12th Street  Kansas City, 
Missouri  64105-1929       
 
Andrew M. Demarea, Corporate Woods  Suite 1100, Building #32  9225 Indian 
Creek Parkway  Overland Park, Kansas  66210  (913) 451-3355  (913) 451-3361 
(FAX) 
 
John K. Power, Esq.  Husch & Eppenberger, LLC  1700 One Kansas City Place  
1200 Main Street  Kansas City, MO  64105-2122   ( Also attorney for the General 
Electric defendants and Jeffrey Immelt.) 
 
Stephen N. Roberts, Esq.  Natausha Wilson, Esq.  Nossaman, Guthner, Knox & 
Elliott  34th Floor  50 California Street  San Francisco, CA  94111     
 
Bruce Blefeld, Esq.  Kathleen Bone Spangler, Esq.  Vinson & Elkins L.L.P.  2300 
First City Tower  1001 Fannin  Houston, TX  77002     
 
Attorneys for Defendants 
 
 
 

/s/ Dennis Hawver 
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_____________________ 
Ira Dennis Hawver 8337 

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1827



16th Judicial Circuit (Jackson 
County)

0616-CV07421 - SAMUEL K LIPARI V GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY ET AL

 03/22/2006 Docket Entry: Filing: 

 Text: CIVIL FILING INFORMANTION SHEET 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 

 

  Docket Entry: Pet Filed in Circuit Ct 

  

 03/23/2006 Docket Entry: Case Mgmt Conf Scheduled 

 Associated Events: 07/05/2006 , 09:00:00 - Case Management 
Conference 

 

  Docket Entry: Notice 

 Text: OF CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE FOR 
CIVIL CASE AND ENTRY OF PRETRIAL 
ORDER ON JULY 05, 2006 IN DIV 5 AT 9:00 
AM 

  

 03/28/2006 Docket Entry: Summons Issued-Circuit 

 Text: Document ID: 06-SMCC-2237, for GENERAL 
ELECTRIC COMPANY; Document ID: 06-
SMCC-2238, for GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL 
BUSINESS ASSET FUNDING CORPORATION; 
Document ID: 06-SMCC-2239, for GE 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS GLOBAL 
SIGNALING LLC; Document ID: 06-SMCC-2240, 
for CARPETS N MORE; Document ID: 06-
SMCC-2241, for HEARTLAND FINANCIAL; 

  

 04/10/2006 Docket Entry: Corporation Served 

 Text: Document ID - 06-SMCC-2237; Served To - 
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY; Server - ; 
Served Date - 04-APR-06; Served Time - 
00:00:00; Service Type - Sheriff Department; 
Reason Description - Served; Service Text - E 
King 

 04/10/2006 Docket Entry: Corporation Served 

 Text: Document ID - 06-SMCC-2238; Served To - 
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL BUSINESS 
ASSET FUNDING CORPORATION; Server - ; 
Served Date - 04-APR-06; Served Time - 
00:00:00; Service Type - Sheriff Department; 
Reason Description - Served; Service Text - E 
King 

 

  Docket Entry: Corporation Served 

 Text: Document ID - 06-SMCC-2241; Served To - 
HEARTLAND FINANCIAL; Server - DAVID A. 
NICKERSON; Served Date - 04-APR-06; Served 
Time - 11:03:00; Service Type - Civil Process 
Server; Reason Description - Defendant Served; 
Service Text - JAMA BURKE/MGR-IN CHARGE 

  

 04/11/2006 Docket Entry: Corporation Served 

 Text: Document ID - 06-SMCC-2239; Served To - GE 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS GLOBAL 
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 Text: Document ID - 06-SMCC-2239; Served To - GE 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS GLOBAL 
SIGNALING LLC; Server - ; Served Date - 05-
APR-06; Served Time - 00:00:00; Service Type - 
Sheriff Department; Reason Description - 
Served; Service Text - E King 

  

 05/02/2006 Docket Entry: Summons Returned Non-Est 

 Text: Document ID - 06-SMCC-2240; Served To - 
CARPETS N MORE; Server - RONALD L. 
HOLLADAY; Served Date - 27-APR-06; Served 
Time - 23:59:00; Service Type - Civil Process 
Server; Reason Description - No Answer 

  

 05/04/2006 Docket Entry: Motion to Dismiss 

 Text: Gen Electric Capital Business Asset Funding 
Corp and GE Transp Systems Global signaling 
LLC. 

 Filing Party: GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, 

 Associated Docket Entries: 05/31/2006 - Motion Denied 

 ORDER DENYING DEFENDANTS GE'S MOTION 
TO DISMISS UPON FULL CONSIDERATION, 
the Court, having reviewed General Electric 
Company, General Electric Capital Business 
Asset Funding Corporation and GE 
Transportation System's Global Signaling, LLC's 
Motion to Dismiss filed on May 4, 2006 by 
Defendants and being fully advised in the 
premises, hereby DENIES the motion. 
WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, General Electric 
Company, General Electric Capital Business 
Asset Funding Corporation and GE 
Transportation System's Global Signaling, LLC's 
Motion to Dismiss is DENIED. Dated: MAY 25, 
2006 
____________________________________ 
W STEPHEN NIXON, Judge 

  Docket Entry: Suggestions in Support 

 Text: of their Motion to dismiss. 

 Filing Party: HEARTLAND FINANCIAL, 

 05/04/2006 Docket Entry: Motion to Dismiss 

 Filing Party: HEARTLAND FINANCIAL, 

 Associated Docket Entries: 05/31/2006 - Motion Granted/Sustained 

 ORDER GRANTING HEARTLAND FINANCIAL'S 
MOTION TO DISMISS UPON FULL 
CONSIDERATION, the Court, having reviewed 
Heartland Financial's Motion to Dismiss filed on 
May 4, 2006 by Defendant and being fully 
advised in the premises, hereby GRANTS the 
motion. WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, 
Heartland Financial's Motion to Dismiss is 
GRANTED for Plaintiff's failure to state a claim 
upon which relief can be granted. Dated: MAY 
25, 2006 
____________________________________ 
W STEPHEN NIXON, Judge 

 

  Docket Entry: Suggestions in Support 

 Text: of their motion to dismiss. 

 Filing Party: GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, 

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1829



  

 05/17/2006 Docket Entry: Notice 

 Text: LP NOTICE OF MISNOMER REGARDING PLT 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 

  

 05/30/2006 Docket Entry: Suggestions in Opposition 

 Text: l/p to plts notice of misnomer. 

  

 05/31/2006 Docket Entry: Motion Denied 

 Text: ORDER DENYING DEFENDANTS GE'S MOTION 
TO DISMISS UPON FULL CONSIDERATION, 
the Court, having reviewed General Electric 
Company, General Electric Capital Business 
Asset Funding Corporation and GE 
Transportation System's Global Signaling, LLC's 
Motion to Dismiss filed on May 4, 2006 by 
Defendants and being fully advised in the 
premises, hereby DENIES the motion. 
WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, General Electric 
Company, General Electric Capital Business 
Asset Funding Corporation and GE 
Transportation System's Global Signaling, LLC's 
Motion to Dismiss is DENIED. Dated: MAY 25, 
2006 
____________________________________ 
W STEPHEN NIXON, Judge 

 Associated Docket Entries: 05/04/2006 - Motion to Dismiss 

 Gen Electric Capital Business Asset Funding 
Corp and GE Transp Systems Global signaling 
LLC. 

 

  Docket Entry: Motion Granted/Sustained 

 Text: ORDER GRANTING HEARTLAND FINANCIAL'S 
MOTION TO DISMISS UPON FULL 
CONSIDERATION, the Court, having reviewed 
Heartland Financial's Motion to Dismiss filed on 
May 4, 2006 by Defendant and being fully 
advised in the premises, hereby GRANTS the 
motion. WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, 
Heartland Financial's Motion to Dismiss is 
GRANTED for Plaintiff's failure to state a claim 
upon which relief can be granted. Dated: MAY 
25, 2006 
____________________________________ 
W STEPHEN NIXON, Judge 

 Associated Docket Entries: 05/04/2006 - Motion to Dismiss 

 06/01/2006 Docket Entry: Suggestions in Opposition 

 Text: L/P - TO THE GENERAL ELECTRIC DEFT'S 
MOTION FOR DISMISSAL 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 

  

 06/15/2006 Docket Entry: Suggestions in Support 

 Text: OF MOT TO DISMISS GENERAL ELECTRIC 
DFTS AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 

 

  Docket Entry: Motion to Dismiss 

 Text: GE DFTS AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 
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  Docket Entry: Motion Filed 

 Text: TO REQUIRE GE DFTS TO ANSWER PETITION 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 

  

 07/05/2006 Docket Entry: Jury Trial Scheduled 

 Text: CIVIL CASE MANAGEMENT SCHEDULING 
ORDER Now on JULY 5, 2006 this matter 
coming on for scheduling conference and 
pursuant to Local Rule 35.1, the Court hereby 
enters the following Scheduling Order: Plaintiff 
appears by counsel, SAMUEL K LIPARI. 
Defendant fails to appear by counsel. 1. This 
case is set for trial on March 5, 2007 at 9:30 
A.M. 2. The parties are ordered to participate in 
mediation pursuant to Rule 17. Mediation shall 
be completed by September 1, 2006. Each party 
shall personally appear at the mediation and 
participate in the process. In the event a party 
does not have the authority to enter into a 
settlement, then a representative of the entity 
that does have actual authority to enter into a 
settlement on behalf of that party shall also 
personally attend the mediation with the party. 3. 
Lee Wells is appointed to be the mediator in this 
case. 4. Each party shall pay their respective 
pro-rata cost of the mediation directly to the 
mediator. 5. Parties shall file any designated 
portion of depositions to be read or shown or 
played to the jury by videotape ten (10) days 
before trial. 6. Five (5) days before trial, the 
parties shall file a list of exhibits to be offered or 
referred to in the evidence. 7. Five (5) days 
before trial, the parties shall file a list of 
witnesses to be called to testify at trial. 8. Five 
(5) days before trial, the parties shall file any 
motions in limine, proposed jury instructions, 
counter designations and objections to 
proposed deposition excerpts to be read or 
played to the jury by videotape, and any trial 
briefs with the Court and the opposite party. 9. 
Dates in this pretrial order shall be changed only 
by leave of Court. Dated: JULY 5, 2006 W 
STEPHEN NIXON Judge 

 Associated Events: 03/05/2007 , 09:30:00 - Jury Trial 

 

  Docket Entry: Filing: 

 Text: LP DISCLOSURE OF RELEVANT WITNESSES 
AND DOCUMENTS. 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 

 07/17/2006 Docket Entry: Answer Filed 

 Text: LP 

 Filing Party: GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, 

 

  Docket Entry: Notice 

 Text: L/P OF FILING OF REMOVAL 

 Filing Party: GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, 

  

 07/19/2006 Docket Entry: Notice 

 Text: L/P OF FILING PROPOSED ORDER 

 Filing Party: LIPARI, SAMUEL K 
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Shaw: ‘If you pay anybody a fee ... to try to influence a purchase,
that would put you in prison in any other industry.’

Novation claims it saves member hospitals $1 billion a year.

Hijacking at the Hospital

Purchasing groups created to hold down health costs seem to be holding up patients instead.

By PABLO LASTRA

A Texas engineer designed a syringe with a
needle that automatically retracts after one
use, a design that could save so many lives
among healthcare workers that a medical
workers’ union was screaming for it. But the
sales teams trying to sell the improved
syringes to hospitals were routinely shown
the door without even getting to make their
pitch.

The sales crew for a California inventor got
the same treatment. He’d developed a far
more accurate version of the device that
measures the levels of blood oxygen — an
advance with the potential to save many
newborns every year. But despite the
support of doctors’ groups, hospitals across
the United States were denied the chance to
buy his revolutionary product.

By comparison, new software to help
hospitals keep up with medical supply
needs doesn’t sound so dramatic.
Nonetheless, its developer says the software
could save healthcare consumers in this
country up to $80 billion a year. But when
the software company went looking for
funding to launch a business based on the
new system, the bank turned it down for
what seemed like bizarre reasons. Perhaps a
more plausible explanation: The bank had a
business relationship with an investment
firm closely tied to a giant hospital supply
entity, one that controls close to a third of all
the hospital supply business in the United
States — and that stood to lose hugely by
the introduction of such software.

The common link in all these cases is
Novation, a North Texas company that,
while little known to the average person, has
become the largest broker of hospital and
medical supplies in the country, wielding
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U.S. Sen. Herb Kohl of Wisconsin co-authored legislation that
would have strictly regulated GPOs like Novation.

Lipari: ‘They’re keeping us out of the market. There’s a vast number
of companies ... that Novation’s monopoly is doing this to.’

enormous influence over the lives of
patients, the safety of hospital workers, and
the zooming costs of healthcare in this
country. But it’s also a giant in trouble.
Several small medical supply manufacturers
that say they have been squeezed out of the
market by Novation are lining up to sue,
and the company has already paid out
millions of dollars in settlements. Congress
is in its third year of investigating
Novation’s activities. At least one state
attorney general is investigating the
company. And now the company is a target
of a Dallas-based investigation by the U.S.
Attorney’s office into massive allegations of
Medicare fraud — a probe that has been
hampered by the deaths, within the last 18
months, of two of the prosecutors involved
in it.

The irony is that Novation and other entities
like it — called group purchasing
organizations — were invented to help
hospitals save money. But instead of saving
patients money, many people charge,
Novation, in effect, is working on behalf of
manufacturers and suppliers, helping them 
— and Novation itself — to make as much
money as possible, to the detriment of taxpayers and the healthcare-buying public. Moreover, a recent
deal involving a publicly traded partner of Novation has raised more concerns about its position in
the healthcare industry, which verges ever closer to a monopoly. All while prices for medical supplies 
— paid for by insurers, patients, and taxpayers — continue to escalate at a rate far outpacing inflation.

“It’s a bad deal for consumers,” said Bud Weinstein, a University of North Texas professor of
economics who has studied the GPOs on behalf of smaller manufacturers. “They claim that they save
consumers money, but healthcare costs are rising at twice the rate of inflation.”

Novation and other GPOs were given the right by Congress to accept payments that would be illegal
kickbacks in any other industry. The end result is that groups that are supposed to be working for
hospitals and patients to lower costs actually get their money from manufacturers whose natural
tendency is to raise, not lower, prices and who can use their influence with the GPOs to corner the
market for their products through long-term contracts worth billions of dollars. Critics compare this
system to a car salesman who tells buyers that he’s working to get them a lower price, when it’s
clearly against his interest to reduce his percentage-based commission. Small manufacturers claim that
the GPOs, which control access to almost all hospitals, freeze them out of the market through
backroom deals with medical supply giants like Tyco and Becton Dickinson.

Some Novation board members purchased stock in the companies they were supposed to be
negotiating lower prices from — a clear conflict of interest. When Congress threatened to tighten up
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conflict-of-interest rules, they simply quit the board rather than give up the valuable stock.

How many patient-generated, taxpayer-provided, congressionally allowed dollars are ending up in
Novation directors’ personal pockets? That may be the biggest kick in the pants of all: Novation won’t
show the government or anyone else in the public their books — except as required by the subpoenas
that arrive with increasing frequency at the company offices.

The first group purchasing organization for medical supplies in the United States was created by New
York hospitals that teamed up almost a century ago. But GPOs really took off in the 1980s as
healthcare costs soared due to quickly evolving technology. Many of the small GPOs consolidated to
form larger buying pools that could negotiate better prices with manufacturers through combined
purchasing power and economies of scale.

Today there are some 600 GPOs, wielding control over $66 billion in healthcare supplies every year.
Only about 30 have the size to negotiate significant volumes of sales, and the largest of them all is
Irving-based Novation, a for-profit cooperative that claims to broker $24 billion in sales annually.
Novation and Premier, the second-place company, together control about 54 percent of all hospital
purchases in the country.

In 1986, Congress passed legislation regulating GPOs, including the so-called “safe harbor” agreement
that exempts GPOs from federal laws against kickbacks. The rationale was that allowing GPOs to be
financed by “administrative fees” paid by suppliers would allow hospitals to spend their money on
patient care. Hospitals that belong to GPOs are obligated to buy supplies from them.

Novation came into existence in 1998, when two hospital networks — VHA of Irving and the
University HealthSystem Consortium based in Illinois — set it up as a joint venture. VHA is a network
of around 2,200 nonprofit hospitals and care organizations, including large hospitals like Baylor and
Yale-New Haven. UHC has only about 200 members, but they include prestigious teaching and
research hospitals like Parkland in Dallas.

GPOs like Novation say that, if not for them, healthcare would be even more expensive. However, the
Government Accountability Office reported to Congress that in many cases, hospitals that used GPO
contracts paid more for supplies than they would if they negotiated with the vendors directly.

Fort Worth Weekly contacted Baylor, Parkland, Children’s Medical Center in Dallas, and Tarrant
County’s John Peter Smith hospital system to ask about their experiences with the GPOs. Baylor
officials said they didn’t have time for interviews. Children’s Medical Center officials didn’t return a
reporter’s phone calls. JPS officials called back but didn’t reach a reporter by deadline.

Anthony Hinds, Parkland’s vice president for strategic sourcing, said his hospital is “very satisfied”
with Novation.”Novation’s position is unique — if we had to actually do the contracting for every
item, we’d have to increase our staff fivefold,” Hinds said. “But Novation does that for us. As long as
we can validate that we’re getting the best values, it saves us a lot of effort and money. From my
standpoint, Novation really helps us not have to hike up our costs.”

Hinds said he could not say how much money Parkland saves through its Novation contracts, but that
considering other services Novation provides its members besides buying, such as evaluating
products, hospitals get a good deal.

Money’s not the only consideration, however. Some people believe that GPOs are costing lives as well
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as millions of dollars.

As many as 60,000 healthcare workers contracted serious infectious diseases from accidental needle
sticks in the last decade, including an average of one a week infected with the HIV virus. When Tom
Shaw of Little Elm, west of Frisco in Denton County, heard the statistics in the late ’80s, he started
thinking about how a syringe might work that would eliminate such risk. Shaw, an engineer by
training, eventually came up with a brilliantly simple solution: a syringe in which a spring mechanism
retracts the needle into the barrel once the plunger is depressed, making reuse — and accidental
pokes — impossible. He started Retractable Technologies to market the invention.

At the time there were other safety syringes in the market, but the mechanisms were more
complicated, weren’t completely foolproof, and could be modified for repeated use. However, when
Shaw began trying to market his line of safety syringes in 1997, he found he couldn’t even get in the
door to show the products to hospitals, despite some clear advantages over competing products and
the preference expressed by healthcare workers who had tried them. The reason, it turned out, was
that the hospitals he tried to sell to were on GPO contracts — and were required to purchase from the
large manufacturers that sold through the GPO, like $5 billion-a-year syringe giant Becton Dickinson,
which controls 90 percent of the syringe market in this country. Shaw criticized the system in the
press and to legislators while at the same trying to get on board with the GPOs by submitting bids.
But the methods of doing business that the GPOs demanded seemed like bribery to him.

“If you pay anybody any fee, administrative or otherwise, to try to influence a purchase, that would
put you in prison in any other industry,” he said. “With the safe harbor [provision], the major
manufacturers can pay GPOs to keep [other companies] out of the hospitals, and the GPOs make a lot
of money.”

When Novation finally looked at another of Retractable’s products — a safer device for taking blood
samples — the GPO suggested to Shaw that it could carry his company’s product under its private
label, Novaplus. Novation officials told him that by labeling the product as Novaplus, they could raise
the price per unit to $1 from the 27-cent bid that Retractable had submitted, and the two companies
would share the profits from the huge markup. According to the lawsuit Retractable eventually filed,
a similar offer came from Premier, the second-largest GPO, which invited Retractable to attend a
conference for suppliers, where $25,000 would buy Shaw not only advertising but also a “private
dinner” with Premier executives and a small-group meeting with hospitals. Shaw rejected both deals
and continued to rail against GPOs, eventually getting the attention of Congress.

Nick Rudikoff is a field researcher with the Service Employees International Union, which represents
many nurses and other medical care workers and also runs a web site called Novation Watch. He said
the union will oppose GPOs, especially Novation, as long as they continue to fail to deliver on their
promise of lower prices and safer products.

“We believe that Novation’s ... business practices exclude some of the most innovative medical
devices like safer needles, while the costs [of resulting injuries and claims by workers] are passed on
to healthcare purchasers,” he said. “The infuriating part is our members don’t mind putting their lives
on the line, but hospitals aren’t doing all they can to protect our workers. It’s completely unacceptable
that the hospitals can’t buy these technologies because they are locked in a contract.”

Shaw agreed. He said that even though his syringes cost a few pennies more than competitors’, the
cost is minimal compared to the risk of exposing healthcare workers to deadly disease. Retractable
now has a contract with Novation, but Becton Dickinson still sells far more needles thanks to its lower
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price and volume agreements with hospitals, even though clinical tests show Becton Dickinson’s
model resulted in more needle sticks. Shaw said Novation pushes Becton Dickinson’s syringes because
they make more money off them.

“They’re killing nurses,” he said. “Novation doesn’t tell them they’re not getting a safe needle. But
they’re moving a lot of them, and they’re collecting a lot of fees. Nurses don’t complain because they
care for other people, not themselves.”

When asked about Retractable’s charges, Lynn Gentry, director of public relations for VHA, a
Novation co-owner, said that small manufacturers like Retractable have gotten the attention of the
media, but that for all its complaints, Retractable is now under contract with Novation and hospitals
are free to buy its syringes.

Shaw and others said that his company’s experience makes it clear that the basic problem with GPOs
won’t be fixed until the organizations are forced to stop taking fees from manufacturers.

“You work for the man who pays you,” Shaw said. GPOs aren’t really group purchasing
organizations, working to help the buyer, he said — “They’re group sales organizations. They’re
moving sales for major manufacturers, who pay bribes they call ‘administrative fees.’ Becton
Dickinson pays to keep us out of hospitals — and that would put them in prison if they didn’t have a
safe harbor provision.”

Ironically, Retractable, which is struggling to compete in the American market, is succeeding in China,
which is licensing its safety syringe design with the intention of manufacturing 400 million syringes a
year. Retractable also scored a major contract with the U.S. government to provide seven African
countries with safe needles to help prevent transmission of AIDS.

“We can sell in communist countries because it’s very dangerous” for bigger companies “to try to pay
bribes over there,” he said. “I don’t know if there’s a safe harbor in China to pay bribes to put
products in the market that aren’t safe. Americans fund the development of this technology, but they
don’t get to use it because of all the illegal activities going on here.

“The system is crooked — even Japan and Germany can’t get into the American medical supply
market,” he said, because “the market here is already owned and paid for by the American
companies.”

And hospitals are part of the problem, not innocent victims of the scheme, Shaw said. Since GPOs are
set as up as cooperatives, their revenue from administrative fees is shared with member hospitals.

Several sources told the Weekly that most hospitals bill insurance companies and Medicare or
Medicaid for the full price of supplies bought through GPOs. When the hospitals later receive the fee
income that provides a substantial discount on those prices, the resulting cost reductions are not
passed through to those who were charged full price. Some question whether that practice constitutes
insurance and Medicare and Medicaid fraud.

“What they [hospitals] want is two sets of invoices, one that says that they paid a [higher] price, that
they turn over to the insurer or the government,” Shaw said. “Which is not what they really pay once
they take into account the reimbursements and rebates and benefits they get from GPOs.”

Joe Kiani couldn’t get his product into American hospitals even though doctors were asking for it and
babies’ lives were at stake.

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1837



09/08/2006 10:18 AMFWWeekly: Feature: Wednesday, September 06, 2006

Page 7 of 12http://www.fwweekly.com/content.asp?article=3419

An Iranian immigrant, Kiani took out a second mortgage on his California home in 1989 to start a
company called Masimo. His mission was developing a better pulse oximeter, the device that
measures oxygen in the blood and is critical to monitoring newborns. Independent testing showed
that Kiani’s version of the device virtually eliminated a problem plaguing earlier oximeters — false
readings of blood oxygen levels that occur as a result of patient movement. A false alarm could result
in a nurse administering too much oxygen to a baby, resulting in eye damage. On the other hand, if a
nurse, after getting false readings, then disregarded a true reading, the result could be lack of oxygen
to the brain, followed by brain damage. According to articles in The New York Times, doctors who
tried Kiani’s product found it far superior to the most popular oximeter, manufactured by Nellcor, a
unit of Tyco International, a $40 billion-a-year scandal-plagued conglomerate.

Like Shaw, Kiani found that hospitals would not buy his product because Masimo did not have a
contract with a GPO. According to court filings, when Masimo approached Premier, the GPO’s own
product-review process concluded that the new oximeter was superior to Nellcor’s. Nonetheless,
Premier’s contract for pulse oximetry went to Nellcor — which, along with its parent company, was
paying millions of dollars in fees to Premier and even investing in Premier’s “Innovation Institute.”
Nellcor also got a multi-year contract with Novation.

Masimo and Retractable both took on the system through the courts.

Retractable filed a federal lawsuit against Novation, Premier, Becton Dickinson, and Tyco in
Texarkana federal district court in January 2001, alleging that “the defendants combined or conspired
to eliminate or lessen competition and to acquire and maintain monopoly power among hospitals and
healthcare technology providers.” The antitrust complaint stated that Novation and Premier’s true
purpose in the marketplace as GPOs is “to deliver substantial market share to monopolistic medical
device manufacturers, such as Becton Dickinson and Tyco, in exchange for substantial ‘administrative
fees’ and other forms of remuneration.” Further, the complaint stated, GPOs require member
hospitals to purchase as much as 90 percent of their supplies from their contracted vendors, with
incentives for even higher levels of compliance, thereby blocking out small manufacturers.

The defendants denied any wrong-doing, but Novation, Premier, and Tyco all settled with Retractable
in April 2003 for an undisclosed amount plus promises to allow Retractable access to hospitals. Shaw
said that Becton Dickinson, the lone remaining defendant, settled in July 2004 for $100 million.

When asked for comment, Gentry, the Novation spokesman, requested that the Weekly submit
written questions via e-mail. Most of the questions posed to Novation went unanswered, however.
The spokesman did say that news coverage of the company has been “rife with errors” and that
Novation has had to spend a lot of time “educating the media” and trying to repair “the damage
caused by accusations from certain manufacturers” like Retractable.

As for Masimo, the company sued Tyco in 2002 but not the GPOs, although they were cited in the
complaint as sharing an interest with Tyco in keeping Masimo out of hospitals through “anti-
competitive agreements.” Masimo also alleged that Novation’s contract with Tyco gave larger
discounts to hospitals that purchased at least 95 percent of their oximeters from Tyco. “The most
favorable price discounts,” the complaint stated, “are not linked to sales volume, but ... to the
exclusion of competition.” The complaint also alleged that Novation offered additional incentives to
hospitals that purchased bundles of products from Tyco, leaving Masimo, which sold only oximeters,
in an uncompetitive position while giving Tyco larger sales for many different supplies. A hospital
that bought 95 percent of its supplies from a list of 12 Tyco product categories could receive a rebate
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for as much as 7 percent of its purchase.

Eventually pressure from doctors and nurses who clamored for Masimo’s oximeter led Premier to
grant Masimo a contract shortly after the lawsuit was filed. Novation did the same a year later, only
days before its CEO was scheduled to testify before Congress. Masimo’s revenues have taken off since
it gained that access to hospitals, and the company now has revenues in excess of $100 million a year.
In March of this year, a jury concluded that Tyco owed Masimo $140 million in damages. Tyco has
appealed this verdict.

Other small manufacturers have followed in the footsteps of Masimo and Retractable Technologies,
suing the GPOs to gain access to hospitals. Nick Patton, a lawyer in Texarkana, is representing Genico,
a manufacturer of laparoscopic surgical equipment, and Rochester Medical, which makes catheters, in
federal antitrust lawsuits against Novation, Premier, and Tyco.

“These companies’ products are competitive and represent a significant advance,” he said. “The
bottom-line effect of GPOs’ practices is to cut out competition. It seems near impossible for a new
company with a great product and good pricing to get in the marketplace.”

The floodgates may have been opened for small companies who want a piece of the GPOs. Patton
said that he’s talked to two or three other companies about possible litigation against Novation.

With 2,400 hospitals as members, Novation controls access to close to a third of hospitals nationwide
and claims to have saved its members $1 billion in 2003. But the company does not release
information on its revenue. In fact, Novation’s reputation is one of extreme secrecy.

“I’ve talked to member hospitals who say it’s like getting info out of the CIA,” said Rudikoff, of the
medical workers union. “They’re not open at all with them. As far as outside community scrutiny,
they don’t disclose anything to the public. They’re resistant to any kind of oversight. Novation is a
private entity owned by hospitals, which are a public trust, but they act as though everything is their
own private business, which just happens to be 60 percent sponsored by taxpayers.”

Many in the industry suspect Novation’s earnings go far beyond the 3 percent of sales that Congress
envisioned. Novation itself admitted that 30 percent of its contracts exceeded that, although following
congressional hearings, the company said it voluntarily capped its fees at 3 percent, and Gentry, the
Novation spokesperson, told the Weekly that the average fee is now 2.1 percent. Fees in excess of 3
percent of sales are supposed to be scrutinized for possible abuse by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services.

After Senate subcommittee hearings last year on GPOs’ influence on the healthcare market, legislation
was proposed by U. S. Sens. Herb Kohl of Wisconsin and Mike DeWine of Ohio that would have
more strictly regulated the purchasing groups, but the bill never made it out of committee. More
hearings are scheduled for next year — and a Senate Judiciary Committee source said the GPOs’ self-
imposed code of conduct as well as the “safe harbor” provision will be under scrutiny. “There’s also a
valid concern that the GPOs are getting bigger and bigger,” the source said. The high rate of
consolidation in the industry, he said, “makes this an antitrust issue.”

At the end of each year, Novation’s earnings beyond operating expenses technically are supposed to
go back to their member hospitals — but that doesn’t always happen. GPOs can use administrative
fees to finance other ventures. In Novation’s case, it invested heavily in a struggling company in a
deal that left industry experts scratching their heads.
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Neoforma was one of the darlings of the dot-com bubble. Started in 1996 to enable hospitals to order
supplies through the internet, Neoforma was embraced by Wall Street, and its stock reached a price of
$735 shortly after it went public in 2000. After that, it was all downhill for the company. As investors
realized that the company’s earnings prospects were miserable, the stock price plummeted, reaching
$5.66 at one point after a stock split. But where market watchers saw little hope, Novation saw an
opportunity. In 2000, Novation invested its member hospitals’ money in a deal that made Neoforma
into Novation’s e-commerce partner for 10 years. UHC and VHA, the two hospital consortia that
formed Novation, came to own 50 percent of a company that has bled more than $700 million in red
ink since it came into existence.

Neoforma’s main source of revenue came from that business relationship it formed with Novation.
Neoforma had $74.4 million in revenue in 2004 — mostly from suppliers that were forced by their
agreements with Novation to also sign up for Neoforma’s e-commerce service. But Neoforma also
reported losses of $61 million. Some member hospitals, according to The New York Times,
complained about Novation’s investment in a hopeless company.

Some Novation executives also owned shares of Neoforma — which hospital officials pointed to as a
conflict of interest. Curt Nonomaque, chief executive officer of VHA and a board member of
Novation, had personally invested $150,000 in Neoforma, although he sold that stock in 2001. When
congressional pressures for reform caused GPOs to institute an informal code of conduct, GPO board
members had to declare conflicts of interest, including investments in companies that did business
with the GPOs. This resulted in several board members at Novation leaving the company rather than
selling their stock.

And Neoforma didn’t just hemorrhage money — it infuriated suppliers who alleged that forcing them
to pay for Neoforma’s service was a double-dip by Novation.

“Neoforma has generated so many losses it’s just been a huge albatross around Novation’s neck,” said
a medical supply chain expert who did not want to be named because, he said, GPOs have “destroyed
his life” for comments he made in the past. “Novation was Neoforma’s largest consumer — that’s the
revenue that’s been keeping Neoforma afloat. If they lost that, they would disappear. People at VHA
and UHC didn’t look real smart taking their members’ money and investing into Neoforma.”

Mark Lahey, executive director of the Medical Device Manufacturers Association, a group that
represents small manufacturers like Retractable and Masimo, said Neoforma’s business model made
little sense for Novation to invest in.

Lahey said that Novation insists its vendors sign up for Marketplace@Neoforma, which “charg[es] six
figures for companies to list their products with Neoforma. And Novation pimps them endlessly,
even though they’re losing money.” Unfortunately, he added, “Hospitals aren’t looking as closely as
they should” into what Novation does with their money.

The latest developments regarding Neoforma have been even stranger. Last month, Neoforma
announced a merger with Global Healthcare Exchange, its only remaining competitor in healthcare e-
commerce. The action came after Neoforma’s gloomy prospects forced it to consider a merger “to
achieve maximum shareholder value” — and, reportedly, to stave off bankruptcy. In the pending
merger, individual Neoforma stockholders would receive $10 a share — while VHA and UHC would
end up with major ownership positions in the new company.

GHX is a privately owned enterprise belonging to Premier and 80 of the largest medical supply
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manufacturers, including Becton Dickinson and Tyco. The merger means Novation has jumped in bed
with its largest rival.

“This is just another opportunity for Novation and Premier to get together along with all the large
manufacturers and have meetings behind closed doors,” said the supply chain expert. “By having
GHX come and buy Neoforma, Novation executives look like geniuses to their member hospitals,
although they’re really creating a monopoly. The GPOs are supposed to be fighting the
manufacturers, but instead they’re openly getting in business with them.”

The deal may or may not make Novation execs look good in the long run. Neoforma is facing a class-
action lawsuit in Delaware filed by shareholders who allege that the deal is unfair to them. Lawyers
for the shareholders declined to comment on the case.

If people like Shaw, Patton, and Lahey sound paranoid about a conspiracy involving hospitals, big
manufacturers, and GPOs combining to rip off American healthcare consumers, they’re not alone.
Medical Supply Chain, a Missouri company that develops software that enables hospitals to order
supplies directly from manufacturers, alleges that Novation and Neoforma, in conspiracy with
manufacturers, distributors, and suppliers, have charged $100 billion in excess costs to hospitals since
2002. The anti-trust lawsuit seeks $1.5 billion in damages from Novation, Neoforma, and their
executives, as well as US Bank and investment firm Piper Jaffray.

Samuel Lipari, CEO of the Missouri firm, said that his company’s troubles began in 2002. Lipari
sought funding from US Bank to start MSC. The loan, which seemed like a sure thing, was denied. US
Bank cited a money laundering provision of the USA PATRIOT Act as the reason, telling Lipari that
his company “could not really give all the correct answers on the source and flow of money” for
Medical Supply Chain. Lipari and his attorney, Bret Landrith, argued that the PATRIOT Act seemed
irrelevant to a company in good standing with the state of Missouri and clearly traceable funds from
U.S. citizens seeking a bank loan.

“We knew Medical Supply Chain could save hospitals 40 percent over the prices they pay,” said
Landrith. “Web-based exchanges like ours can make hospitals more efficient than Wal-Mart.” But as
they looked into the problem, Landrith and Lipari said they noticed that US Bank had a business
relationship with Piper Jaffray, which in turn had a relationship with Novation and Neoforma. The
only explanation for denying funding to MSC, which claims that it could save hospitals $80 billion,
was that Piper Jaffray, US Bank, and Novation conspired to keep MSC out of the marketplace.

“They’re keeping us out of the market,” said Lipari. “There’s a vast number of other companies with
technology to improve healthcare that Novation’s monopoly is doing this to. Our litigation is identical
to Retractable’s, and the evidence is parallel to their case.”

An independent study by Harvard Law School Prof. Einer Elhauge brought together all the arguments
against GPOs. He said that contracts requiring hospitals to purchase 90 percent or more of their
supplies from large vendors exclude rivals and harm consumers and hospitals to the tune of $6 billion
a year. The loyalty rebates, he said, act as penalties for hospitals that stray from the GPO. Beyond that,
Elhauge concluded, the GPO process also stifles the development of even more innovative products.

The Justice Department is taking Novation’s role in the market seriously. In August of last year,
shortly before the Senate subcommittee held hearings on tighter regulation for GPOs, federal
prosecutors in Dallas opened a criminal investigation into the medical supply industry, with Novation
at the center of it.
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Federal officials declined to comment on the investigation, which came to light when Becton
Dickinson revealed in its financial statements that Justice had issued subpoenas regarding its
transactions with Novation. Officials at Novation also confirmed receiving federal subpoenas
demanding documents, but pointed out that investigations could be launched without evidence of
misconduct.

Based on the subpoenas, the investigation appears to be seeking evidence of Medicare fraud and
conspiracy to defraud the United States.

“Hospitals get a big fat check once or twice a year from the GPOs,” explained one expert who is close
to the investigation. “No other deal gives free money to a hospital. And they can report checks not as
a reduction in cost, but as miscellaneous income. This allows them to be reimbursed ... for the original
price before they account for the money they get from GPOs and manufacturers. That’s what the
investigation is about.”

The huge volume of documents that investigators are having to sort through has dragged the process
out for more than a year, another source said, and pointed out that hospitals and manufacturers have
received subpoenas as well as GPOs.

The investigation wasn’t helped when two federal prosecutors involved in the case died weeks apart
from each other. Thelma Colbert, who headed a civil litigation unit of the Fort Worth DOJ office that
prosecuted companies involved in defrauding government-funded programs, drowned in her
swimming pool in July 2004. The Tarrant County medical examiner’s office determined the death was
accidental. Then, on Sept. 13, 2004, Shannon Ross, the criminal chief for the U.S. Attorney’s office in
Dallas, who reportedly had signed the GPO subpoenas, was found dead in her Rowlett home. In that
case, the Dallas County medical examiner ruled the death to have been from natural causes.

About the same time federal prosecutors were launching their investigation of Novation, the company
also came under scrutiny from Connecticut Attorney General Richard Blumenthal, whose office, he
said, was “very interested in potential undue influence exerted by vendors and manufacturers on
individuals in positions to make healthcare purchasing decisions.” No indictments have been returned
in either the state or federal investigation, but Blumenthal’s office is continuing to serve subpoenas.

Gentry, the Novation spokesman to whom the Weekly delivered its written questions, was also asked
to arrange interviews with company officials regarding the investigations. The spokesman said
executives did not respond when he mentioned the Weekly’s requests. He also said no company
executives were under government investigation.

Meanwhile, Mark McKenna, CEO of Novation, announced his intent to step down in spring of 2006,
after his successor has been appointed. The press release announcing this did not give a reason for
McKenna’s decision, but the spokesperson said McKenna, who is 56, “wants to enjoy life.”

You can reach Pablo Lastra at pablo.lastra@fwweekly.com.

Back to Top
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NOVATION PRESS RELEASES

Media Contact: Nataaka Singleton, Novation, 972-581-5529

nsinglet@novationco.com

Novation Awards Multiple Contracts for Safety Needles and

Syringes

IRVING, TX; December 5, 2005 — Novation, the supply company of

VHA Inc. and the University HealthSystem Consortium, has signed

agreements with four suppliers for safety needles and syringes. The

agreements will take effect on Jan. 1, 2006 and run through Dec.

31, 2008. The agreements were signed based on Novation's public

competitive bid process and input from the member surveys and

member councils.

“Novation recognizes the critical importance of protecting patients,

health care workers and the environment,” said Cathy Denning,

senior director, contract and program services at Novation. “This is

why we actively pursue the inclusion of safety-related products in

our contract portfolio. These agreements exemplify Novation's

commitment to safety and providing members with a broad choice

of supplier options.”

The agreements are with the following companies:

Company Products

Becton Dickinson

(Franklin Lakes, N.J)

Safety-Lok™, SafetyGlide™, Eclipse™,

Integra™

Retractable Technologies

Inc.

(Little Elm, Texas)

Vanishpoint® Syringes, Vanishpoint®

Insulin, Vanishpoint® TB, Vanishpoint®

Allergy Tray

Smiths Medical

(Keene, N.H.)

Needle-Pro® Safety Needles, Needle-

Pro® Safety Combos, Insulin & TB

Needles, Edge® Safety Needles

Tyco Healthcare

(Mansfield, Mass.)

Magellan™ Safety Needles, Monoject®

Safety Needles/Syringes Combo,

Monoject® Safety Needles

The increase costs of raw materials such as resin and petroleum

necessitated a minimal price increase for Becton Dickinson and Tyco

Healthcare products.  However, Novation obtained – lower pricing on

Retractable Technologies Inc. products and Smiths Medical agreed to

maintain previous contract pricing on its products.

Many variables influence the supply of raw materials and ultimately

the cost of various medical and surgical supplies. Novation monitors

the market to ensure that as the availability and pricing of raw

materials improves, the original contract pricing is either restored

or prices are cut.

###

About Novation

Based in Irving, Texas, Novation is the leading health care

contracting services company, delivering unmatched savings and

value to nearly 2,500 members of VHA Inc. and the University

HealthSystem Consortium (UHC), two national health care alliances.

Through its public competitive bid process, Novation develops and

manages contracts with more than 700 suppliers, both large and

small. By combining scale and agility with clinical knowledge and

product expertise, Novation offers the most extensive range of

innovative contracting services, including: contract development,

contract and supplier management, custom contracting, enhanced

savings programs, online contract management and analytical tools,

order management and online supplier connectivity. VHA and UHC

members used Novation's contracts to purchase more than $25

billion in supplies in 2005.
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U N IT E D  S T A T E S  D IS T RIC T  C O U R T
O F FIC E  O F  T H E  C L E R K
D I S T RI C T  O F  K A N S A S

R A L P H  L .  D E L O A C H
C L E R K

I N G RI D  C A M P B E LL
C H IE F  D E P U T Y C L E R K

2 5 9  U . S . C O U R T H O U S E
5 0 0  S T A T E A V E N U E

K A N S A S CIT Y, K A N S A S  6 6 1 0 1
(9 1 3) 5 5 1 - 6 7 1 9

K a n s a s  C it y ,  K a n s a s
O c t o b er 2 3 , 2 0 0 6

2 0 4  U . S . C O U R T H O U S E
4 0 1  N . M A R K E T

W IC HIT A , K A N S A S   6 7 2 0 2
(3 1 6) 2 6 9 - 6 4 9 1

4 9 0  U . S . C O U R T H O U S E
4 4 4  S .E . Q UI N C Y

T O P E K A , K A N S A S  6 6 6 8 3
(7 8 5) 2 9 5 - 2 6 1 0

Clerk, U.S. Court of Appeals
The Byron White United States Courthouse
1823 Stout Street
Denver, Colorado  80257

Re: Medical Supply Chain, Inc. v. Neoforma, Inc.
USDC Case No. 05-2299 CM
USCA Case No. 06-3331

Dear Clerk:

Please be advised that the record is complete for the purposes of
appeal.

            The transcript was filed                   .

  XXX       A transcript is not necessary for this appeal.

            The necessary transcript is already on file in the U.S
District Court.

            The necessary transcript was ordered previously in appeal 
 #               .

Sincerely,

RALPH L. DeLOACH, CLERK

By:  s/ K. O’Keefe               
                                     Deputy Clerk

cc: (Ira Dennis Hawver, Janice Vaughn Mock, John K. Power, Sophie N.
Froelich, Andrew M. DeMarea, Stephen N. Roberts, Mark A. Olthoff,
Jonathan H. Gregor, Kathleen A. Hardee)
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CLOSED, CSREF

U.S. District Court

District of Kansas (Kansas City)

CIVIL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 2:02-cv-02539-CM

Medical Supply Chain v. US Bancorp N A, et al
Assigned to: Judge Carlos Murguia
Referred to: Magistrate Judge David J. Waxse
Demand: $0

Case in other court:  10CCA, 03-03342

10CCA, 02-03443

10CCA, 03-03342

Supreme Court, 05-05503

Cause: 15:1 Antitrust Litigation

Date Filed: 10/22/2002
Date Terminated: 06/16/2003
Jury Demand: Both
Nature of Suit: 190 Contract: Other
Jurisdiction: Federal Question

Plaintiff

Medical Supply Chain, Inc. represented by Bret D. Landrith 
PSUSBSID-NOMAIL 
785-876-2233 
Fax: 785-267-4084 
Email: landrithlaw@cox.net 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

V.

Defendant

US Bancorp N A represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
Shughart Thomson & Kilroy--Overland
Park 
32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100 
9225 Indian Creek Parkway 
Overland Park, KS 66210 
913-451-3355 
Fax: 913-451-3361 
Email: ademarea@stklaw.com 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
Shughart Thomson & Kilroy, PC--KC 
Twelve Wyandotte Plaza 
120 West 12th Street, Suite #1700 
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Kansas City, MO 64105 
816-421-3355 
Fax: 816-374-0509 
Email: molthoff@stklaw.com 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
Shughart Thomson & Kilroy--Overland
Park 
32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100 
9225 Indian Creek Parkway 
Overland Park, KS 66210 
913-451-3355 
Fax: 913-451-3361 
Email: sruse@stklaw.com 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

US Bank Private Client Group represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Corporate Trust represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
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(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Institutional Trust and Custody represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Mutual Fund Services, LLC represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Piper Jaffray represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
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Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Andrew Cesere represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Susan Paine represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Lars Anderson represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
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Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Brian Kabbes represented by Andrew M. DeMarea 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Mark A. Olthoff 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Steven D. Ruse 
(See above for address) 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant

Unknown Healthcare Supplier

Date Filed # Docket Text

10/22/2002 1 COMPLAINT with trial location of Kansas City, Kansas; No summons(es)
issued; jury demand (case referred to Magistrate Judge David J. Waxse) (BL)
(Entered: 10/23/2002)

10/22/2002  FILING FEE PAID on 10/22/02 in the amount of $150.00 Receipt #096099
(BL) (Entered: 10/23/2002)

11/12/2002 2 MOTION (requesting emergency hearing on) for preliminary injunction relief by
plaintiff; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia (MG) (Entered: 11/12/2002)

11/12/2002 3 AMENDED COMPLAINT regarding the complaint [1-1] with trial location of
Kansas City, Kansas by plaintiff; jury demand. (MG) (Entered: 11/12/2002)

11/18/2002 4 MINUTE SHEET of motion for TRO hearing before Judge Carlos Murguia
denying plaintiff's motion for preliminary injunctive relief. [2-1] Court Reporter:
Nancy Wiss (MG) (Entered: 11/19/2002)

11/18/2002 5 MEMORANDUM in opposition by defendants to plaintiff's motion for
preliminary relief; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia. [2-1] (MG) (Entered:
11/19/2002)
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11/22/2002 6 MOTION for urgent preliminary injunctive relief from USA Patriot Act
Reporting by plaintiff; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia (MG) (Entered:
11/22/2002)

11/22/2002 7 MOTION for urgent preliminary injunctive relief from trade secret
misappropriation by plaintiff; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia (MG) (Entered:
11/22/2002)

12/02/2002 8 MOTION to strike Motion for Urgent Preliminary Injunctive Relief from Trade
Secret Misappropriation and Motion for Urgent Preliminary Injunctive Relief
Against USA Patriot Act Reporting and MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION to
these 11/22/02 motions by defendant; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia (CK)
(Entered: 12/03/2002)

12/02/2002 8 MOTION TO STRIKE AND MEMORANDUM in opposition by defendant to
motion for urgent preliminary injunctive relief from trade secret
misappropriation by plaintiff; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia [7-1] and in
opposition to motion for urgent preliminary injunctive relief from USA Patriot
Act Reporting by plaintiff; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia [6-1] (CK)
(Entered: 12/03/2002)

12/06/2002 9 REPLY by plaintiff to defendants' (response) to their motion for urgent
preliminary injunctive relief from trade secret misappropriation; referred to
Judge Carlos Murguia [7-1], and for urgent preliminary injunctive relief from
USA Patriot Act Reporting; to Judge Carlos Murguia. [6-1] (MG) (Entered:
12/06/2002)

12/06/2002 9 RESPONSE (REPLY) by plaintiff to defendants' motion to strike plaintiff's
Motion for Urgent Preliminary Injunctive Relief from Trade Secret
Misappropriation and Motion for Urgent Preliminary Injunctive Relief Against
USA Patriot Act Reporting and MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION to these
11/22/02 motions by defendant; referred to Judge Carlos Murguia. [8-1] (MG)
(Entered: 12/06/2002)

12/09/2002 10 NOTICE OF HEARING before Judge Carlos Murguia regarding hearing on
motions [7-1], [6-1] for preliminary injunction; preliminary injunction hearing
set for 12:00 p.m. on 12/12/02 (cc: all counsel) (MG) (Entered: 12/10/2002)

12/12/2002 11 MINUTE SHEET of hearing before Judge Carlos Murguia: Prel inj hearing held;
the court denies motion for urgent preliminary injunctive relief from USA
Patriot Act by plaintiff [6-1]; denying motion for urgent preliminary injunctive
relief from trade secret misappropriation by plaintiff [7-1] and the court denies
motion to strike Motion for Urgent Preliminary Injunctive Relief from Trade
Secret Misappropriation and Motion for Urgent Preliminary Injunctive Relief
Against USA Patriot Act Reporting [8-1]. (CK) (Entered: 12/18/2002)

12/17/2002 12 NOTICE OF INTERLOCUTORY APPEAL to 10CCA by Medical Supply
Chain re: denial of motion for urgent preliminary injunctive relief from trade
secret misappropriation by plaintiff [7-1] and denial of motion for urgent
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preliminary injunctive relief from USA Patriot Act Reporting by plaintiff [6-1];
these rulings made 11/18/02 and 12/12/02; see minutes of 12/12/02 [11-2] (cc:
all counsel, 10CCA) (CK) (Entered: 12/18/2002)

12/18/2002  APPEAL FEE STATUS: filing fee paid re: appeal [12-1] (Receipt # 096791)
(CK) Modified on 12/18/2002 (Entered: 12/18/2002)

12/27/2002  LETTER to 10CCA stating transmittal of PROA re: appeal [12-1] ) (CK)
Modified on 12/27/2002 (Entered: 12/27/2002)

12/27/2002  LETTER to 10CCA stating transmitting Preliminary ROA re: appeal [12-1]
(KM) (Entered: 12/27/2002)

12/27/2002 13 ANSWER with trial location of Kansas City, KS by defendant to complaint [3-
1]; jury demand (CK) Modified on 12/31/2002 (Entered: 12/27/2002)

12/27/2002 14 NOTICE by defendants of Rule 7.1 Disclosure statement. (CK) Modified on
12/31/2002 (Entered: 12/27/2002)

01/02/2003 15 APPEAL DOCKETED in 10CCA on 12/30/02 regarding plaintiff's appeal [12-
1] and assigned Appeal No. 02-3443. (MG) (Entered: 01/02/2003)

01/10/2003 16 APPEAL TRANSCRIPT ORDER FORM regarding plaintiff's appeal [12-1];
stating a transcript is not necessary for this appeal. (Appeal No. 02-3443) (MG)
(Entered: 01/10/2003)

01/10/2003  LETTER to 10CCA stating a transcript is not necessary for the purpose of this
appeal regarding plaintiff's appeal. [12-1] (Appeal No. 02-3443) (MG) (Entered:
01/10/2003)

02/20/2003 17 TRANSCRIPT of hearing on motion for temporary restraining order held
11/18/02 before Judge Carlos Murguia regarding plaintiff's interlocutory appeal
[12-1]; volume 1, pages 1-19; Court Reporter: Nancy Wiss. (Appeal No. 02-
3443) (MG) (Entered: 02/20/2003)

02/20/2003 18 TRANSCRIPT of hearing on motion for temporary restraining order held
12/12/02 before Judge Carlos Murguia regarding plaintiff's interlocutory appeal
[12-1]; volume 1, pages 1-23; Court Reporter: Nancy Wiss. (Appeal No. 02-
3443) (MG) (Entered: 02/20/2003)

03/05/2003 19 NOTICE of Change of Address by Bret D. Landrith counsel for plaintiff. (mg)
(Entered: 03/05/2003)

03/20/2003 20 ORDER SETTING SCHEDULING CONFERENCE signed by Judge Waxse on
3/20/03: Telephone Scheduling Conference set for 5/6/2003 at 03:00 PM before
Judge Waxse. (ll) (Entered: 03/20/2003)

03/27/2003 21 MOTION to Dismiss by Defendants Lars Anderson, Andrew Cesere, Corporate
Trust, Institutional Trust and Custody, Brian Kabbes, Mutual Fund Services,
LLC, Susan Paine, Piper Jaffray, US Bancorp N A, US Bank Private Client
Group, Unknown Healthcare Supplier (Olthoff, Mark) (Entered: 03/27/2003)
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03/27/2003 22 MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT of 21 MOTION to Dismiss Plaintiff's

Amended Complaint by Defendants Lars Anderson, Andrew Cesere, Corporate
Trust, Institutional Trust and Custody, Brian Kabbes, Mutual Fund Services,
LLC, Susan Paine, Piper Jaffray, US Bancorp N A, US Bank Private Client
Group, Unknown Healthcare Supplier (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A# 2 Exhibit
B)(Olthoff, Mark) (Entered: 03/27/2003)

03/27/2003 23 MOTION to Dismiss by Defendant Piper Jaffray (Olthoff, Mark) (Entered:
03/27/2003)

03/27/2003 24 MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT of 23 MOTION to Dismiss by Defendant
Piper Jaffray (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A# 2 Exhibit B)(Olthoff, Mark)
(Entered: 03/27/2003)

03/27/2003 25 MOTION to Dismiss by Defendant Andrew Cesere (Olthoff, Mark) (Entered:
03/27/2003)

03/27/2003 26 MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT of 25 MOTION to Dismiss by Defendant
Andrew Cesere (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A# 2 Exhibit B)(Olthoff, Mark)
(Entered: 03/27/2003)

04/07/2003 27 RESPONSE (REPLY) by Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc. regarding
defendants' 21, 23, and 25 MOTIONS to Dismiss. (mg) (Entered: 04/07/2003)

04/17/2003 28 REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT of 21 MOTION to Dismiss, 23
MOTION to Dismiss, 25 MOTION to Dismiss by Defendants Lars Anderson,
Andrew Cesere, Corporate Trust, Institutional Trust and Custody, Brian Kabbes,
Mutual Fund Services, LLC, Susan Paine, Piper Jaffray, US Bancorp N A, US
Bank Private Client Group (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit)(Olthoff, Mark) (Entered:
04/17/2003)

04/28/2003 29 (ANSWER) to Defendant's 28 Reply Memorandum in Support of 21 MOTION
to Dismiss, 23 MOTION to Dismiss, and 25 MOTION to Dismiss by Plaintiff
Medical Supply Chain, Inc.. (mg) (Entered: 04/30/2003)

05/02/2003 30 MOTION to Strike 29 Response by Defendants Lars Anderson, Andrew Cesere,
Corporate Trust, Institutional Trust and Custody, Brian Kabbes, Mutual Fund
Services, LLC, Susan Paine, Piper Jaffray, US Bancorp N A, US Bank Private
Client Group (DeMarea, Andrew) (Entered: 05/02/2003)

05/02/2003 31 NOTICE OF SERVICE by Andrew Cesere, Corporate Trust, Institutional Trust
and Custody, Brian Kabbes, Mutual Fund Services, LLC, Susan Paine, Piper
Jaffray, US Bancorp N A, US Bank Private Client Group of Defendants' Rule
26(a)(1) Disclosures (DeMarea, Andrew) (Entered: 05/02/2003)

05/06/2003 32 SCHEDULING CONFERENCE held before Judge David J. Waxse and is
hereby continued to 6/18/2003 at 02:00 PM before Magistrate Judge David J.
Waxse. Signed by Judge David J. Waxse.(jm) (Entered: 05/07/2003)

05/14/2003 33 RESPONSE by Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc. re 30 MOTION to Strike
29 Response filed by Medical Supply Chain, Inc..(mm) (Entered: 05/15/2003)
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06/16/2003 34 ORDER granting 21 Motion to Dismiss, granting 23 Motion to Dismiss,
granting 25 Motion to Dismiss, finding as moot 30 Motion to Strike. Signed by
Judge Carlos Murguia on 06/16/2003. (jc) (Entered: 06/16/2003)

06/23/2003 35 MOTION for New Trial and Amendment by Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain,
Inc. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Attachment 1# 2 Exhibit Attachment 2# 3 Exhibit
Attachment 4# 4 Exhibit Attachment 5)(Landrith, Bret) (Entered: 06/23/2003)

07/03/2003 36 MEMORANDUM in Opposition by Defendants Lars Anderson, Andrew Cesere,
Corporate Trust, Institutional Trust and Custody, Brian Kabbes, Mutual Fund
Services, LLC, Susan Paine, Piper Jaffray, US Bancorp N A, US Bank Private
Client Group re 35 MOTION for New Trial and Amendment of Judgment and

Motion for Retrial on Denial of Preliminary Injunctive Relief (Olthoff, Mark)
(Entered: 07/03/2003)

07/06/2003 37 REPLY to Response to Motion by Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc. re: 35
MOTION for New Trial and Amendment Plaintiff's Answer (Landrith, Bret)
(Entered: 07/06/2003)

07/11/2003 38 MOTION to Strike Defense of Business Justification by Plaintiff Medical
Supply Chain, Inc. (Landrith, Bret) (Entered: 07/11/2003)

07/11/2003 39 MOTION to Strike Defense of Statute of Frauds by Plaintiff Medical Supply
Chain, Inc. (Landrith, Bret) (Entered: 07/11/2003)

07/16/2003 40 MEMORANDUM in Opposition by Defendants Lars Anderson, Andrew Cesere,
Corporate Trust, Institutional Trust and Custody, Brian Kabbes, Mutual Fund
Services, LLC, Susan Paine, Piper Jaffray, US Bancorp N A, US Bank Private
Client Group re 38 MOTION to Strike Defense of Business Justification, 39
MOTION to Strike Defense of Statute of Frauds (Olthoff, Mark) (Entered:
07/16/2003)

11/19/2003 41 MEMORANDUM AND ORDER denying 35 Motion for New Trial, finding as
moot 38 Motion to Strike, finding as moot 39 Motion to Strike. Signed by Judge
Carlos Murguia on 11/19/2003. (jc) Modified on 11/21/2003 to reflect
Memorandum and Order (ck). (Entered: 11/19/2003)

11/21/2003 42 NOTICE OF APPEAL by Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc.. (Landrith, Bret)
(Entered: 11/21/2003)

11/28/2003 43 PRELIMINARY RECORD ON APPEAL transmitted to 10CCA regarding 42
Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment. (Attachments: # 1 Receipt for Preliminary
Record on Appeal; #(2) A Copy of the Docket Sheet; #(3) A Copy of the Notice
of Appeal; #(4) A Copy of the Memorandum and Order, document #34; and
#(5) A Copy of the Memorandum and Order, document #41.) (Copies of these
documents will only be mailed to the 10CCA and to attorneys of record not
registered to receive e-notification.)(mg) (Entered: 11/28/2003)

11/28/2003 44 Letter to counsel stating Preliminary Record on Appeal has been transmitted to
the 10CCA regarding 42 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment. (Attachments: #(1)
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A Copy of the Notice of Appeal; #(2) A Copy of the Docket Sheet; # 3
Transcript Order Form; and #(4) Letter to Counsel From 10CCA.) (Copies of
these documents will only be mailed to counsel of record not registered to
receive e-notification.)(mg) (Entered: 11/28/2003)

12/04/2003 45 RECEIPT FROM 10CCA of the Preliminary Record on Appeal 10CCA
regarding 42 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment. (Appeal Number: 03-3342)
(mg) (Entered: 12/04/2003)

12/04/2003 46 APPEAL DOCKETED in 10CCA on 12/02/03 and assigned Appeal Number:
03-3342 regarding 42 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment filed by Medical
Supply Chain, Inc.. (mg) (Entered: 12/04/2003)

12/29/2003  APPEAL FEE PAID in the amount of $255.00; receipt number: 101659
regarding Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment 42 filed by Medical Supply Chain,
Inc.. (THIS IS A TEXT ONLY ENTRY-NO DOCUMENT IS ASSOCIATED
WITH THIS TRANSACTION) (mg) (Entered: 12/29/2003)

01/05/2004 47 Letter to 10CCA stating the appeal fee has been paid regarding 42 Notice of
Appeal - Final Judgment. (Appeal Number: 03-3342) (mg) (Entered:
01/05/2004)

01/07/2004 48 Letter from 10CCA requesting acknowledgement of receipt of the mandate in
this case regarding 42 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment. (Appeal Number: 02-
3443) (Receipt filed and returned to 10CCA as requested.) (mg) (Entered:
01/07/2004)

01/07/2004 49 APPEAL MANDATE from 10CCA dismissing as moot Notice of Appeal -
Final Judgment 42 filed by Medical Supply Chain, Inc.. (mg) (Entered:
01/07/2004)

01/16/2004 50 Letter from 10CCA stating the necessary transcripts were previously filed in
appeal #02-3343, and reqesting notification that the record is complete for
purposes of appeal, regarding 42 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment. (Appeal
Number: 03-3342) (mg) (Modified on 1/20/2004 to correct the appeal case
number. (mg)) (Entered: 01/20/2004)

01/20/2004 51 Letter to 10CCA stating the record is complete for purposes of appeal regarding
42 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment. (Appeal Number: 03-3342) (mg)
(Entered: 01/20/2004)

01/10/2005 52 APPEAL MANDATE from 10CCA affirming decision of the District Court as
to Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment42 filed by Medical Supply Chain, Inc.,
(km) (Entered: 01/10/2005)

01/11/2005 53 NOTICE of Motion for En Banc Rehearing on Sanctions and Reasonable Fees
Exceed $350.00 an Hour by Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (Attachments: # 1
Supplement Motion For En Banc Review of Sanctions# 2 Exhibit Exhibit 1
Saction Order# 3 Exhibit Denied En Banc Motion# 4 Exhibit Exb 3 Sherman
Act Claims# 5 Exhibit Exb 4 Letter to Patrick Fisher# 6 Exhibit Excerpt from
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new trial motion# 7 Exhibit Trial Court Order# 8 Exhibit USA PATRIOT Act
Claims# 9 Exhibit Appellate Show Cause Order)(Landrith, Bret) (Entered:
01/11/2005)

01/27/2005 54 MOTION for Attorney Fees by Defendants Lars Anderson, Brian Kabbes, US
Bancorp N A, US Bank Private Client Group, Corporate Trust, Institutional
Trust and Custody, Mutual Fund Services, LLC, Piper Jaffray, Andrew Cesere,
Susan Paine(Olthoff, Mark) (Entered: 01/27/2005)

01/27/2005 55 MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT of 54 MOTION for Attorney Fees by
Defendants Lars Anderson, Brian Kabbes, US Bancorp N A, US Bank Private
Client Group, Corporate Trust, Institutional Trust and Custody, Mutual Fund
Services, LLC, Piper Jaffray, Andrew Cesere, Susan Paine (Attachments: # 1
Exhibits)(Olthoff, Mark) (Entered: 01/27/2005)

01/27/2005 56 MOTION to Seal Document by Defendants Lars Anderson, Brian Kabbes, US
Bancorp N A, US Bank Private Client Group, Corporate Trust, Institutional
Trust and Custody, Mutual Fund Services, LLC, Piper Jaffray, Andrew Cesere,
Susan Paine(Olthoff, Mark) (Entered: 01/27/2005)

01/28/2005 57 ORDER granting 56 Motion to Seal Document. Counsel for defendants are
directed to provide the court with a disk containing a copy of the exhibits C and
D. Signed by Judge Carlos Murguia on 1/28/05. (ck) (Entered: 01/28/2005)

01/31/2005 58 INDEX AND SEALED EXHIBITS C -(Billing Records) and D -(Declaration of
Mark A. Olthoff) by Defendants re 54 MOTION for Attorney Fees. These
exhibits are contained in disc form and maintained in the Clerk's Office w/copy
to chambers. (ck ) (Entered: 02/01/2005)

02/14/2005 59 SUPPLEMENTAL APPEAL MANDATE from 10CCA as to Notice of Appeal -
Final Judgment42 filed by Medical Supply Chain, Inc., (km) (Entered:
02/14/2005)

03/24/2005 60 MOTION to Consolidate Cases by Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Medical Supply Chain, Inc. v. Novation et al# 2
Exhibit)(Landrith, Bret) (Entered: 03/24/2005)

04/05/2005 61 MEMORANDUM in Opposition by Defendant US Bancorp N A re 60
MOTION to Consolidate Cases (Olthoff, Mark) (Entered: 04/05/2005)

04/27/2005 62 ORDER finding as moot 60 Motion to Consolidate Cases. Case closed on
6/16/03. The only remaining issue before the court is Doc. 54, Motion for
Attorney Fees. Signed by Judge Carlos Murguia on 4/27/2005.(This is a TEXT
ENTRY ONLY. There is no.pdf document associated with this entry) (js)
(Entered: 04/27/2005)

05/13/2005 63 ORDER granting 54 Motion for Attorney Fees in the amount of $23,956.00.
Signed by Judge Carlos Murguia on 5/13/05. (ck ) (Entered: 05/15/2005)

06/09/2005 64 JUDGMENT regarding Order on Motion for Attorney Fees in favor of
defendants against plaintiff . Signed by Judge Carlos Murguia on 6/9/05. (yh, )
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(Entered: 06/09/2005)

08/04/2005 65 Letter from 10CCA stating that Petition for Writ of Certiorari has been filed re
42 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment ; assigned Supreme Court No. 05-5503
(Appeal No. 03-3342) (kao) (Entered: 08/04/2005)

10/26/2005 66 Letter from 10CCA stating petition for writ of certiorari was denied by an order
of the Supreme Court. (kao) (Entered: 10/26/2005)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS 
KANSAS CITY KANSAS DIVISION 

 
CASE NO.:  02-2539-CM 

____________________________________________ 
 
      
MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., 
 

Plaintiff , 
vs. 
 
US BANCORP, NA.  
US BANK 
PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST,  
     INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND CUSTODY,      
     AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC. 
PIPER JAFFRAY 
ANDREW CESERE 
SUSAN PAINE 
LARS ANDERSON 
BRIAN KABBES 
UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER 
 

Defendants. 
 

________________________________________________ 
 

 
PLAINTIFF’S AMENDED COMPLAINT  

 

 Plaintiff MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC. appears through its attorney, 

Bret D. Landrith, Esq., and submits the following amended complaint; adding a 

named defendant, JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, the President and Chief Executive 

Officer of US BANCORP NA. The Plaintiff adds requests for declaratory relief 

and additional injunctive relief including supplemental state law based causes of 

action for Misappropriation Of Trade Secrets, Tortuous Interference With 

Prospective Contracts, Tortuous Interference With Contracts, Promissory 

Estoppel, Breach Of Contract, Fraudulent Misrepresentation, Violation Of Good 

 1
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Faith And Fair Dealing. The Plaintiff adds requests for further equitable relief in 

the form of an urgent preliminary injunction preventing Defendant US BANCORP 

NA from denying the Plaintiff services, facilities and products of its financial 

institution under color of law through an abuse of Defendants’ policing power 

under the US Patriot Act and against the public interest embodied in the 

Sherman, Clayton and Hobbs Acts prohibiting obstruction and barriers in entry to 

commerce. Additionally, MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC. has amended its 

complaint to seek injunctive relief protecting its intellectual property and trade 

secrets from misappropriation under Kansas statute.  

NATURE OF THE CASE 

1. The Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc., (hereafter “MSCI”) brings this 

action to seek temporary relief from the defendants US BANK, US BANCORP, 

NA, US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC., JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, 

ANDREW CESERE, BRIAN KABBES, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE and 

UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER’S (hereafter collectively referred as “ 

Defendants”) illegal acts, which have resulted in loss of property and detriment to 

the Plaintiff’s business. 

2.  The Plaintiff MSCI has been harmed by the Defendants’ conduct in 

furtherance of a common enterprise by Defendants’ denial of services and 

facilities for hosting MSCI’s escrow accounts. The Defendants with full 

confidential knowledge of MSCI’s finances, business model, plan and proprietary 

business trade secrets obstructed and seek to delay MSCI’s entry into commerce 

through the marketing of its healthcare supply chain intellectual property 

consisting of an educational healthcare certification program for training 

independent consultants and MSCI’s entry into commerce through the marketing 

of its supply chain management and market making software. Defendant’s 

 2
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interference has affected MSCI’s movement of these products into commerce to 

a severe degree. 

3. Defendants own, control and broker shares of stock and bonds in 

healthcare industry companies MSCI has planned to compete with or rely on as 

suppliers. Defendants rely on the income from ownership in and services to 

healthcare industry companies and healthcare company officers that depend on 

profits derived from monopoly marketplace power. Defendants are suppliers of 

services to the healthcare industry and have combined to deny those services to 

MSCI. 

4.  The Plaintiff MSCI has been harmed by the Defendants’ conduct in 

furtherance of a common enterprise as shown by Defendant employees’ 

disclosure that the reason for Defendants’ denial of services and facilities in the 

form of hosting escrow accounts is their required performance of duties policing 

accounts as federally chartered financial institutions under the federal statutory 

anti-money laundering requirements of the USA PATRIOT Act.  

5.  The Plaintiff MSCI responded to the Defendants’ decision with 

communications to all levels of the Defendants’ common enterprise explaining 

the reporting requirements of the US PATRIOT Act were not a burden on the 

escrow accounts, that the act did not apply to MSCI which was an established 

US BANCORP account holder and a corporation in existence for over two and a 

half years, currently in good standing with the Missouri Secretary of State and to 

which the Defendants have performed diligence on at the time it set up  its 

corporate account under a federal tax id number and when its chief executive 

and sole officer opened his personal account. The Plaintiff MSCI informed the 

Defendants that they were in possession of the MSCI business plan, contract for 

certification, corporate report, certification of good standing from the Missouri 

Department of Revenue and a personal credit application of the chief executive 

 3
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and founder, Samuel Lipari for a line of credit based on the nonrefundable 

portion of each certification account. MSCI informed Defendants that it had a 14 

page financial application for each of the certification candidates, that all were US 

citizens and had provided releases for credit, financial and criminal background 

checks and that the funds would be wired from their personal financial 

institutions. The Defendants refused to reverse their denial of services and 

facilities in refusing to host MSCI’s escrow accounts. 

6.  The Plaintiff MSCI on October 15th, 2002 repeated the inapplicability of 

the US PATRIOT Act and the failure to provide a valid or truthful reason by the 

Defendants for their denial of services and facilities in refusing to host MSCI’s 

escrow accounts. The Plaintiff MSCI pointed out the inherent need to build 

candidate trust in MSCI exhibited by seeking the establishment of escrow 

accounts and that suddenly revoking US BANK as the trust entity would 

jeopardize the ten best independent representatives they had chosen at 

considerable time and expense out of hundreds of applicants. The Plaintiff MSCI 

explained that it was now trapped in a relationship with US Bank and could not 

seek escrow accounts at another bank without compounding the 

misunderstanding that USA PATRIOT Act requirements prevented MSCI from 

being entitled to escrow account services. The Plaintiff MSCI called attention to 

the Defendants knowledge of the magnitude of injury their obstruction and delay 

of MSCI’s entry into commerce including the loss of hundreds of millions of 

dollars of revenue MSCI was depending on from its independent representatives. 

The Plaintiff MSCI called attention to the illegal business practices rife in the 

healthcare supply market space MSCI was committed to entering and reforming 

and that the Defendants had relationships, substantial investments in and 

revenue from established entities in the healthcare market, including substantial 

trust accounts from healthcare entities. The Plaintiff MSCI pointed out the conflict 
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of interest imputed by Defendants denial of service and facilities in failing to 

provide the escrow accounts. The Plaintiff MSCI entreated the Defendants to 

help in remediating damages by establishing escrow accounts for only the 10 

candidates MSCI had relied upon the US Bank escrow account contract 

approved by the Defendants and sent 5 out before receiving notice of denial of 

service by the Defendants. Defendants again refused to provide escrow account 

services to MSCI. 

7. The Plaintiff MSCI now seeks declaratory relief based on the injury 

suffered as a result of conduct prohibited by federal and state law and urgent 

injunctive relief because it continues to suffer as a result of Defendants’ illegal 

conduct against it while MSCI attempts to remediate its injury.  

8. The Plaintiff MSCI seeks urgent injunctive relief on the basis it continues 

to be in jeopordy of the Defendants abuse of their police power and authority 

under the USA PATRIOT Act in the form of false clandestine reporting that will 

harm MSCI as it attempts to capitalize its entry into commerce.  

9. The Plaintiff MSCI seeks urgent injunctive relief on behalf of similarly 

situated companies without legal resources that might be discriminated against in 

banking services because of the ethnic or national origin of their corporate 

officers based on the pretextual use of USA PATRIOT Act reporting duties. 

10. The Plaintiff MSCI seeks urgent injunctive relief to prevent the further 

harm by Defendants of MSCI’s business associates and customers which are 

healthcare systems consisting of hospitals and long term care facilities who are 

dependent on a neutral electronic market place and supply mangement provider 

to enter a market in which they are being held hostage by corrupt healthcare 

product suppliers limiting their access to critical medical devices, pharmacuticals 

and material at the cost of human lives and countless unnecessary permanent 

bodily injuries. The healthsystems and hospital relying on a neutral electronic 
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marketplace to replace their current dependency on Group Purchasing 

Organizations utilizing anticompetitive business practices including kickbacks, 

equity exchanges of healthcare supplier corporate stock, tying and exclusive 

contracting are unable to jeapordize their patients and businesses out of a fear of 

retalliation from these distributors. 

11. The Plaintiff MSCI seeks urgent injunctive relief to prevent the further 

harm by Defendants to MSCI through harming MSCI’s business associates and 

customers which are information technology partners who have made significant 

investments, even to the point of millions of dollars in research and development 

in their own corporations, partially in reliance on becoming a vendor of high end 

supply chain strategic management services and human resources mangement 

services, respectively to the healthcare industry. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

12.  This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of the present injunctive 

relief sought based on federal statutes giving rise to federal civil causes of action 

and supplemental state law based claims for damages. The contract initiating the 

relationship between the parties was executed between US Bancorp and MSCI 

at the US Bank Office at 5730 SW 21st Street, Topeka, KS., therefore venue in 

this court is proper. 

13. This Complaint is filed and these proceedings are instituted under the 

provisions of the Sherman Act and the Clayton Act. 

14. This Court has jurisdiction over complaints based on Hobbs Act, 

The USA PATRIOT Act. 

15. Jurisdiction for Medical Supply Chain, Inc. to commence this action for 

injunctive relief is conferred by the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 13 and 26 and 

K.S.A. 60-3321.   Misappropriation of trade secret; injunctive or other protective 

relief 
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16. US BANCORP NA is a Delaware Corporation organized under the 

National Bank Act, 12 U.S.C. §§ 21-216d, headquartered in Minnesota and doing 

business in Kansas and other states through its wholly owned subsidiaries US 

BANK, PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL 

TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC and US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY and its employees and agents: JERRY A. 

GRUNDHOFER ,ANDREW CESERE, SUSAN PAINE, LARS ANDERSON, 

BRIAN KABBES and through its ownership interest or underwriting relationship in 

UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER. 

17. The violations alleged herein have a substantial effect on interstate 

commerce. 

18. Kansas substantive law permits an injured party to have civil 

remedies for criminal acts Smith v. Welch 265 Kan. 868. 

PARTIES 

PLAINTIFF: 

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN INC. 

19. Plaintiff MSCI or MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., is a registered Missouri 

Corporation in good standing with corporate headquarters at 1300 NW Jefferson 

Court, Blue Springs, MO. MSCI sought to obtain escrow account services for 

tuition from candidates for a year long healthcare supply strategist certification 

program, similar to bank escrow account arrangements for tuition from students 

enrolled in other Missouri technical and university education programs. MSCI 

was forced to develop its own educational program when over a period of several 

years it could not convince leading US universities to offer substantial course 

work concerning healthcare logistics and the entire healthcare supply chain. With 

the exception of limited courses provided with the assistance of MSCI’s associate 

industry experts available at Arizona State University, Wharton School of 
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Business and Harvard School of Business, MSCI could not find the external 

training it required for its independent representatives so it was forced at great 

expense to create a healthcare supply chain strategist certitication program 

which it made available to qualified consultants in healthcare and information 

technology with a tuition of $5000.00 for the first week of intensive introduction 

and orientation and $ 25,000.00 for the remaining year of instruction and 

healtcare supply chain practicum.  These funds were to be held in individual 

escrow accounts at US BANCORP NA. 

DEFENDANTS: 

US BANCORP NA 

20. Defendant US BANCORP, NA is a Bank Holding Corporation 

headquartered at U.S. Bancorp Center 800 Nicollet Mall , Minneapolis, MN 

55402. Defendant US BANCORP, NA merged with Firststar Bank to operate 

banks in several states under the name US Bank. US BANCORP, NA is the 

parent company of the employees and subsidiaries named as Defendants. US 

BANCORP, NA is thought to be invested in and have maintained accounts and 

provided services for Defendant UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE PROVIDER. At all 

times during this matter, US BANCORP NA provided information about its 

involvement in healthcare industry companies to all employees throughout its 

subsidiaries through daily updates on its corporate intranet, web site and media 

broadcasts in addition to newsletters,employee investment account solicitations 

and corporate publications. 

US BANK NA 

21. Defendant US BANK, NA is a Delaware Corporation organized under the 

National Bank Act, 12 U.S.C. §§ 21-216d, headquartered at U.S. Bancorp Center 

800 Nicollet Mall , Minneapolis, MN 55402. 
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PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST,INSTITUTIONAL TRUST 
AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC 

22. Defendant PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, 

INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, 

LLC. (hereafter “defendant LLC entity”) is a trust subsidiary of US BANCORP 

NA. , headquartered at U.S. Bancorp Center 800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 

55402 doing business in several states with an office at one US Bank Plaza, St. 

Louis, MO and at all times relevant to this matter was the entity responsible for 

setting up escrow accounts for MSCI. The defendant LLC entity was represented 

to be independent and free standing by its Vice President Brian Kabbes. 

23. Defendant LLC entity is the division of US BANCORP NA responsible for 

escrow accounts and trust accounts of hospitals and healthcare systems under 

contract with Group Purchasing Organizations responsible for limiting or 

obstructing market access 

US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC. 

24. Defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC. is the investment 

banking subsidiary of US BANCORP NA. US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC. 

does business in Kansas through its investment banking offices and licensed and 

registered securities brokers. Defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC 

corporate headquarters are at U.S. Bancorp Center 800 Nicollet Mall Suite 800 

Minneapolis, MN 55402. 
25. Defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC. has had underwriting 

and investment relationships with healthcare suppliers, including biotechnology 

producers and medical device manufacturers. Defendant US BANCORP PIPER 

JAFFRAY, INC. has investments in, underwritten and promoted the capitalization 

of biotechnology producers, including Omnicell, Inc. i and medical device 

manufacturers including Aspect Medical Systems, Inc. ii of Newton, MA, that 
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have engaged in anti competitive “sole” or “single source” contracts with health 

systems including Health Services Corporation of America of Cape Girardeau, 

MO that plea bargained a conclusion to a federal fraud investigation in 1997 iii 

and Group Purchasing Organizations held responsible for preventing competitive 

access to suppliers and creating unnecessary increases in healthcare supply 

costs iv  including AmeriNet, Inc.v of St. Louis, MO., Healthtrust Purchasing 

Group .vi 

26. Defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY, INC. has underwriting and 

investment relationships with healthcare Group Purchasing Organizations 

including Novation, Inc., a healthcare GPO currently the subject of Federal Trade 

Commission and General Accounting Office investigations into whether it holds 

too much control in the market for hospital supplies.vii Defendant US BANCORP 

PIPER JAFFRAY, INC. has underwriting, promotional and investment 

relationships with Neoforma, Inc. an internet supply chain software and electronic 

marketplace similar to MSCI but which is 60% owned by the above mentioned 

Novation, Inc. (UHA and VHA owned shares combined as of 8/9/02) and limits 

supplier access. Novation used tens of millions of dollars it held in custody and 

trust for its hospital customers to purchase the equities in the publicly traded, 

money-loosing electronic commerce company, Neoforma Inc,viii 

27. Defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY became attracted to the profit 

opportunity in internet delivery of medical supplies to hospital health systems 

approximately 5 years after Sam Lipari started developing software to order and 

track medical supplies from pc computers dialing up internet connections and 
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exchanging data with hospital mainframe computers. In February of 2000, US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY released a study it had commissioned that 

concluded similarly to Sam Lipari’s analysis that 13% of what US BANCORP 

PIPER JAFFRAY then estimated to be $83 billion dollars spent annually could be 

eliminated if supplies were purchased through the internet. US BANCORP 

PIPER JAFFRAY’s Senior Analyst Daren Marhula estimated $23 billion of the 

total spent on medical supplies is pure process and procurement costs, and 

about half of this cost could be eliminated by ordering supplies over the Internet. 

Roughly half of hospital supplies, for instance, are for routine purposes, such as 

office, janitorial and medical items that can easily be purchased through the 

Internet. However, US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY had failed to realize the 

implication of strategic management when the purchaser was able to utilize 

artificial intelligence to optimize purchase negotiations and quantity delivery 

throughout the complete supply chain and backed companies with business 

models incapable of creating the value and cost savings of Medical Supply Chain 

incorporated in the same year to provide a commercial platform for Sam Lipari’s 

research and development work. 

28. The defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY invested in, underwrote 

and promoted companies providing internet or web based software to help 

healthcare systems mange their purchasing, including Embion, Inc. (which US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY raised 10 million dollars for)ix or Centromine, to 

improve their service delivery. Several did not make it to the IPO stage and US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY has difficulty maintaining the good will of its venture 
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fund investors.x Some companies made it to the public offering stage like 

Eclipsys Corp to have their shares promoted and marketed for 125 million dollars 

by US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY only to fall drastically in value like upon 

revelation of sharply lower financial expectations then investors had been lead to 

believe. Now US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY is embroiled in numerous investor 

law suits for irregularities in its promotion of IPO capitalization equity shares. 

29. In both healthcare supplier and healthcare electronic commerce firms, the 

defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY concentrates its investments in early 

stage firms that partner with existing dominant healthcare suppliers and 

distributors. US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY publicizes these relationships as it 

solicits and promotes investment in the venture funds US BANCORP PIPER 

JAFFRAY uses for their capitalization. US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY 

publicized a high profile merger Eclipsys Corp with the GPO controlled Neoforma 

to dominate the healthcare supply electronic marketplacexi. Later, the merger 

would terminate and Eclipsys Corp and Neoforma would announce a mutual 

alliance to dominate online healthcare supplies utilizing their existing dominant 

GPO partner; Novation.xiiThe existing dominant healthcare suppliers and 

distributors co-opt the business model development of the healthcare electronic 

commerce firms into channels to push a limited sub set of products whose 

suppliers are allied with the established partnering firms, creating only additional 

dimensions to the anticompetitive market. The technology for web based supply 

chain management merely becomes Internet storefront faces for existing 

monopolistic suppliers motivated to increase costs as they do in their traditional 
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GPO distribution channels. Whatever potential exists in the still nascent 

technologies of MSCI’s potential competitors like MedCenterDirect.comxiii (initially 

given 30 million dollars in early stage capital) to provide widespread cost savings 

and obtain high rates of adoption is subordinated by the defendant US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY’s use of anticompetitive business practices 

including sole source or exclusive dealing contracts, and vertical exchange of 

stock ownership with established dominant suppliers, distributors and their 

corporate officers to inflate the value of its equity funds and offerings. 

UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE ENTITY 

30. Defendant UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE ENTITY is believed to be a 

supplier or purchasing organization who has communicated with US Bancorp 

NA, its employees or its subsidiaries  about MSCI for the purpose of obstructing 

or delaying MSCI’s entry into commerce. Defendant UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE 

ENTITY and its corporate executives and directors are assisted by US 

BANCORP NA in obtaining ownership shares in companies Defendant 

UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE ENTITY allows to enter the healthcare supply chain 

marketplace. 

INDIVIDUAL US BANCORP EMPLOYEES 

31. Defendant JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, the President and Chief Executive 

Officer of US BANCORP NA and at all times relevant to this action was the 

controlling  officer of US BANCORP NA. Defendant JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER 

was in communication with MSCI regarding the action of US Bank trust 

department in St. Louis rejecting MSCI escrow accounts and MSCI’s efforts to 

reverse or remidiate the decision. Defendant JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER directly 

supervised Defendant ANDREW CESERE. Defendant JERRY A. 
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GRUNDHOFER acquired Piper Jaffray and renamed the subsidiary US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY and oversaw the units anticompetitive business 

practices, including setting revenue goals and providing finincing and guarantees 

for US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY healthcare supplier and distribution 

integration and combination. Defendant JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER refused to 

review the decision to deny services and critical facilities to MSCI or to participate 

in a fact finding effort to clear up the problem without litigation. 

32. Defendant ANDREW CESERE is identified as Vice Chairman of US 

Bancorp trust division by the US Bank website and at all times relevant to this 

action was a senior controlling  officer of US BANCORP in communication with 

the US Bank trust department in St. Louis regarding the acceptance of MSCI 

escrow accounts and MSCI’s efforts to reverse or remidiate the decision.  

Defendant ANDREW CESERE would not take calls or return them form Plaintiff 

MSCI. Defendant ANDREW CESERE directed LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN 

PAINE and BRIAN KABBES not to reverse their decision on MSCI and not to 

perform the required dilligence on MSCI to meet the standard of expectation of 

providing a professional service or their duties under the USA PATRIOT Act. 

33. Defendant SUSAN PAINE is the supervisor for US BANK’s St. Louis, MO  

corporate trust offfice. SUSAN PAINE was identified by Defendant Brian Kabbes 

as being present during a conference call where Plaintiff MSCI sought to reverse 

or remediate the damages from Defendants and in which Defendants expressed 

their disturbance that MSCI had contacted the corporate headquarters of US 

BANCORP NA  about the problem with setting up escrow accounts.   

34. Defendant LARS ANDERSON was identified to MSCI as the new 

customer acquistion manger for US BANK’s St. Louis, MO  corporate trust offfice 

by Defendant BRIAN KABBES. Defendant LARS ANDERSON stated he made 

the decision not to provide escrow account services to MSCI. 
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35. Defendant BRIAN KABBES identified himself as Vice President of 

Corporate Trusts for US BANK. Plaintiff MSCI was referred to Brian Kabbes for 

escrow account services by its neighborhood US BANK branch in Independence, 

MO and later when MSCI was again referred to Defendant BRIAN KABBES 

when MSCI sought to establish a Kansas escrow account after having difficulty 

with the St. Louis corporate Trust Department. Defendant BRIAN KABBES 

provided a review of Plaintiff MSCI’s proposed escrow account agreement and 

suggested changes to meet US BANK’s acceptance. Defendant BRIAN KABBES 

reviewed an approved the escrow account agreement with his name on it as 

escrow agent for US BANK , along with the changes to make it correct for 

transmittal to MSCI’s ten known selected candidates with their certification 

contract. After the escrow agreements were sent to the candidates Defendant 

BRIAN KABBES contacted Sameul Lipari of MSCI to inform him US BANK would 

not host the escrow accounts because of the USA PATRIOT Act. Defendant 

BRIAN KABBES maintains the he and Samuel Lipari had not reached an oral 

contract for service and that reservation for additional approvals were part of 

earlier conversations.  

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

36. On or about 3/12/2002, and following 3 years of R&D Sam Lipari, 

President and CEO of Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (MSCI) began a process of 

selecting a corporate bank for the rollout of its healthcare supply chain 

empowerment program that produces significant benefits to healthcare and its 

patients. He sought input from associates and advisors concerning selection of 
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an appropriate national bank that would be capable of a full range of corporate 

banking services, including nation wide checking, escrow services, short and 

long term credit facilities, receivables financing and international clearing of 

transactions between thousands of health systems and their suppliers. Several 

national banks were evaluated but US BANCORP NA was selected because it 

also had an investment arm called US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY that had 

targeted healthcare customers and participated as underwriter and funds 

manager for pre IPO healthcare manufacturers and service providers and US 

BANCORP NA acted as underwriter for corporate bonds of healthcare 

companies. 

37. On or about 4/15/02 Sam Lipari arranged for MSCI’s corporate account to 

be opened at US BANK’s SW Topeka branch. The account was opened in the 

name of Medical Supply Chain, Inc., using MSCI’s federal tax I.D. number with a 

cashier’s check in the name of MSCI’s agent and drawn on Miner’s State Bank of 

Frontenac Kansas for $7,500.00. 

38. On or about 4/25/02 Sam Lipari opened a personal account in his name at 

US BANK’s neighborhood branch at 3640 S. Noland Road, Independence, MO. 

Before opening the checking account, the US BANK employee reviewed Sam 

Lipari’s account application and submitted Sam Lipari’s personal data to Chex 

Systems, Inc. for a background check, evaluation and verification of eight years 

of his previous banking history at other banking institutions. Sam Lipari was 

approved for a personal checking account and an electronic debit card. Sam 
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Lipari initially used the personal account to pay expenses of MSCI with 

reimbursement from the corporation. 

39. On 6/5/02 Sam Lipari contacted US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY’S 

Minneapolis headquarters to speak to Heath Lukatch, managing director of the 

US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY healthcare venture fund about MSCI being 

considered as a venture capital candidate. He was instructed to send an 

executive summary of his business plan via email. Sam Lipari sent the summary 

and financial projections for MSCI with a restriction on disclosure notice. US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY made no response to the receipt of the executive 

summary and financial projections from MSCI’s business plan. Sam Lipari again 

telephoned the Minneapolis offices of the US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY 

venture fund managers and his calls were not taken and not returned. Sam Lipari 

also attempted to speak to a US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY venture fund 

manger in their San Francisco office but again, his calls were not taken or 

returned. 

40. On 7/9/02 Sam Lipari and MSCI were visited by a Merger and Acquisitions 

attorney for another San Francisco venture capital firm and after extensive 

discussions with her at MSCI’s Blue Springs, MO headquarters on the need to 

quickly enter the healthcare supply chain market and take advantage of the 

opportunity created by the healthcare industry’s sudden willingness to reject the 

existing Group Purchasing Organizations, and after the New York Times had 

began uncovering corruption revelations in the market. However the discussions 

revealed the current condition of venture funding and IPO underwriting was very 

 17

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1875



troubling. At the time of these meetings the first news of WorldCom’s debacle 

was breaking. MSCI’s management felt with the exception of US BANCORP 

PIPER JAFFRAY, which concentrated its investments in healthcare, that much of 

the assets venture funds reported were in fact overvalued equities in telecom 

technology companies and that the collapse of WorldCom would further depress 

the venture capital markets. 

41. The venture capital M&A attorney questioned Sam Lipari about the 

overtures of large companies seeking to acquire MSCI. Sam Lipari recounted the 

contacts made with Supply Solution, a Michigan based company focused on 

expanding integration in the healthcare industry, GoCoop/Avendra a Florida 

based company providing e-procurement/group purchasing in the hospitality 

industry and also wanted to integrate in the healthcare industry, both of which 

were seeking go to market partners in healthcare, and Cerner, a Kansas City 

healthcare company with enterprise resource planning software that is based on 

an older operating system, called EDI that is inferior to MSCI’s web based 

services and poorly suited for electronic commerce. Cerner had bought out Mitch 

Cooper & Associates, a healthcare supply chain consulting company and 

seemed to be trying to acquire the capability to create an electronic healthcare 

marketplace. Sam Lipari told the VC attorney that MSCI would not compromise 

itself by being aligned with any existing healthcare supplier. MSCI has the 

solution and he did not want to be tainted with companies that support the high 

cost healthcare problem. He also recounted how start up healthcare electronic 

marketplace firms with technology similar to MSCI like Impact Health and 
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Medibuy had been bought up by GPOs for tens of millions of dollars, but that 

once they were no longer independent, their market potential was eliminated and 

the technology was used by GPO firms to deceive health systems into thinking 

their GPO partner was attempting to increase its economic efficiency when in fact 

they continued to restrict trade in support of monopolizing markets.  

42. MSCI resolved to develop a way to internally capitalize a roll out of its 

supply chain empowerment program and supply chain management technology. 

MSCI settled on a plan that would utilize the value of its healthcare supply chain 

intellectual property and offer a comprehensive year long education and 

healthcare supply chain certification program to independent representatives.  

43. This plan would put representatives in the field nationwide that possess 

the knowledge and skills to relate to all levels of management in healthcare 

systems and assist in the adoption of MSCI’s supply chain empowerment 

program. The independent representatives would pay for their certification and 

fund their own marketing and sales operations, consistent with distribution 

systems that rely on independent manufacturer’s representatives. Since MSCI’s 

web services were new to the market, Sam Lipari decided that it would be critical 

for the certification fee to be held in escrow until the candidates had a chance to 

meet MSCI’s certification team and have a chance to see if they would succeed 

in mastering healthcare supply chain empowerment knowledge. After a week 

long intensive seminar, the candidates would have the opportunity to decide 

whether or not to commit to the certification program and MSCI would have the 

opportunity to reject any candidates it felt would not succeed in the program. 
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44. MSCI developed a curriculum and contracted with the industry’s foremost 

logistics and supply chain experts to provide instruction during the weeklong 

seminar and assist and advice candidates throughout the certification process. 

MSCI made arrangements to include information and presenters from companies 

with expertise in financial analysis of healthcare purchasing, including strategic 

sourcing and human resource evaluations so that the representatives would be 

able to represent products and technology services outside of MSCI’s capabilities 

that would complement MSCI’s supply chain empowerment program in allowing 

a health system/hospital to break free of its GPO supplier. 

45. Beginning 8/1/02 MSCI advertised nationwide to recruit experienced 

account executives and sales professionals and processed hundreds of 

applicants with detailed evaluation of resumes, job history and financial 

disclosure applications. For the first of what were to be quarterly classes, MSCI 

selected 15 candidates that had the potential to succeed as independent 

representatives for its services. After numerous telephone interviews ten 

applicants had committed to becoming certification candidates and attend the 

certification class starting the first week of December/02. During this same time, 

MSCI was preparing the escrow account system that the candidates would 

utilize. 

46. On or about 10/1/02 MSCI contacted Chris Walden of the Noland Road, 

Independence MO branch of US BANK for direction on escrow accounts and 

commercial banking services. MSCI was referred to Becky Hainje a US 

BANCORP “Private Banker” and on or about 10/3/02 Becky Hainje contacted 
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Sam Lipari and told him she would arrange to put him in contact with the persons 

in different departments of US BANK that could provide MSCI the services MSCI 

requested and needed. She connected MSCI with Brian Kabbes in St. Louis who 

was responsible for US BANK commercial trust accounts in Missouri and 

Kansas. She also connected MSCI with Douglas Lewis, responsible for 

commercial loans in the Noland Road office. 

47. Sam Lipari described MSCI’s need for escrow accounts to Brian Kabbes 

and emailed him an escrow contract that MSCI counsel had prepared for its 

candidates. Brian Kabbes asked questions about the candidates, the certification 

program and how many candidates had been selected so far. Sam Lipari 

negotiated with Brian Kabbes to reduce the escrow fee per account since all 

escrow accounts would be identical, and US BANK had refused to have the 

funds in a single account. Brian Kabbes agreed to lower the fee for US BANKS 

escrow agent services from the normal of $1,500 to $600 per account and no 

hidden or additional transaction or dispersement fees. 

 48. After reviewing the escrow contract, on or about 10/5/02 Brian Kabbes 

communicated to Sam Lipari that the language of paragraph 10 “Security 

Interests” should be changed so that a security interest for US BANK could be 

created in the $5,000 portion of the escrow that became MSCI’s property the 

moment a candidate submitted their certification funds into escrow. MSCI altered 

its escrow contract to conform to Brian Kabbes’ s suggestion and on or about 

10/7/02 emailed the changes to Brian Kabbes. Brian Kabbes and US Bank were 
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identified as the escrow agent in the escrow agreement and Brian Kabbes’ 

address was included in the body of the agreement. 

49. On or about 10/8/02 Sam Lipari spoke again to Becky Hainje about 

MSCI’s need for a business line of credit based on the MSCI portion of the 

escrow assets. Becky Hainje said she had talked to Brian Kabbes and he had 

told her there would be no problems with the escrow accounts, that they were a 

“slam dunk.” She suggested Sam Lipari call Doug Lewis and make an 

appointment to apply for the line of credit, which was based on the escrow 

account assets. 

50. On or about 10/9/02 Brian Kabbes called to request an additional change 

in the escrow contract. He supplied a specified US Treasury fund investment 

language for the funds while the funds were in the custody of US BANK TRUST 

DEPARTMENT. MSCI agreed to the additional change and modified the 

investment instructions exactly as Brian Kabbes instructed. MSCI also ask if 

there were any other changes needed before MSCI sent the contracts out to its 

certification candidates. Brian Kabbes said there would be no other changes and 

asked why MSCI was sending the candidates the escrow contract. MSCI 

explained that the contracts were going out with the certification program 

agreement so candidates would have a chance to review the information before 

their November 1st deadline, which required their funds to be in the US BANK 

escrow accounts. Brian Kabbes acknowledged the explanation and agreed to 

look over the release document MSCI developed that candidates would execute 

following the weeklong evaluation seminar to be held the first week of December. 
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51. During this conversation, Brian Kabbes also requested MSCI’s current 

corporate good standing documentation from the Missouri Secretary of State’s 

Office. MSCI agreed to send him the reinstatement and tax clearance documents 

on Friday 10/11/02 and that Sam Lipari was meeting with Doug Lewis on the 

afternoon of Thursday 10/10/02 to set up the credit facility using the escrow 

accounts as security. Sam Lipari told Brian Kabbes he would have Doug Lewis 

send the requested information to Brian Kabbes on 10/11/02. Brian Kabbes 

made no statement that US BANK had yet to approve MSCI ‘s escrow accounts 

and sought no additional information. 

52. On or about Thursday 10/10/02, Sam Lipari delivered the MSCI business 

plan and associate program to Douglas Lewis, at the US BANK, Noland road 

office to apply for the agreed upon commercial line of credit based on the portion 

of the escrow accounts MSCI would retain. The business plan and associate 

program booklets each had cover pages giving notice of restricted use and that 

MSCI protected the confidential business trade secret and intellectual property 

contained in them. A letter of introduction also stated the contents were protected 

and restricted disclosure and possession of the materials. Two more folders 

contained the good standing documentation Brian Kabbes requested and the 

associate program contracts that were sent to the candidates. Doug Lewis asked 

how many candidates MSCI had and Sam Lipari reached into his brief case and 

held up the ten folders of applicants who had committed to sending in their funds 

by November 1st and five others who were in the final stages. Sam Lipari further 

explained that he planned to start a new certification group each quarter. Sam 
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Lipari was given a loan application and agreed to and did return the application 

the next day. 

53. On or about Tuesday 10/15/02 Brian Kabbes called Sam Lipari and 

informed him that US BANK had turned down the escrow accounts because of 

the USA Patriot Act. When asked to clarify, he said the know your customer 

requirements had changed and US Bank could not set up the escrow accounts 

for MSCI. Sam Lipari was shocked and stunned and handed away the phone, 

where Brian Kabbes repeated again The Patriot Act as the reason the accounts 

were denied. 

54. Later that morning Sam Lipari called Becky Hainje and asked if she could 

see what happened. Sam Lipari explained that MSCI was counting on the escrow 

accounts and that the line of credit depended on them too. He said he could not 

believe the USA Patriot Act could be a reason that applied to MSCI. She said she 

would call and see what happened. Becky Hainje called back and left a taped 

recording on the MSCI answering system and listed the reasons Brian Kabbes 

told her. She said the reasons were the lack of a “relationship with the Bank... 

that the principals involved with the business were people unknown to the bank, 

but the main reason is to know your customer "Patriot Act" that was enacted after 

9/11, and which we could not really give all the correct answers on the source 

and flow of money. 

55. On or about 10/15/02 MSCI found ANDREW CESERE was the head of 

US BANCORP trust department on the US BANK web site and at 4 p.m. called 

his secretary Barb in Minneapolis. He was unavailable so MSCI asked her to 
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leave instructions for him to call Sam Lipari about MSCI’s corporate escrow 

account rejection at 9 a.m. the following morning. Barb asked for more details 

concerning the problem. She said Mr. Cesere had a morning meeting but she 

would get the message to him. At 4:30 p.m. she called back and asked for 

additional information and the names of the people MSCI had dealt with so that 

Mr. Cesere could inquire about the problem. 

56. At 9 a.m. the following morning on or about 10/16/02 Ed Higgens called, 

leaving a tape-recorded message on MSCI’s answering system identifying him 

as the executive vice president of Midwest trusts for US BANK. 

Sam Lipari, believing that the USA Patriot Act had probably been used to reject 

the escrow accounts because of his family sir name which is also the name of a 

small group of Islands in the Mediterranean Sea and which ends in “ari” like 

many Moslem sir names of people of Arabic descent, activated a tape recorder 

with a built in microphone and called Mr. Higgens back on the speaker phone. 

Each subsequent call to US Bank in which Sam Lipari participated was also 

recorded by him to document what he suspected was discrimination based on his 

national origin or ethnic descent.  

57. Ed Higgins listened to Sam Lipari after stating he was an attorney and 

how long he had been working in trust banking, agreed with him that he saw no 

reason why the USA Patriot Act would apply to MSCI. Sam Lipari explained that 

MSCI needed additional US BANK services including credit facilities, receivables 

financing and clearing and settlement services for approximately 90 million worth 
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of transactions in the first year of operations. He said he would check into the 

matter and call Sam Lipari back later that day. 

58. Instead Brian Kabbes called back with Lars Anderson who he identified as 

head of corporate trust new business development person and Susan Paine who 

he said he reported to, both on the line with him. MSCI explained that at the time 

of his previous call, it was not realized that the escrow account contracts that US 

BANK had approved had already been sent out to the candidates in reliance on 

US BANKS agreement to host the escrow accounts.  

59. Lars Anderson expressed some irritation that MSCI had contacted the 

head of the trust unit about the rejection of escrow accounts. Lars Anderson said 

the bank had never been on board and it was not a done deal. Brian Kabbes 

denied that there had been an agreement; he said he had twice told Sam Lipari. 

Lars Anderson said that there had never been a signed off agreement to provide 

the service and that there had never been any bid for it. MSCI contradicted that 

and said the price for the service had been quoted by Brian Kabbes and after 

negotiating, a specific amount had been agreed upon. Sam Lipari also told them 

Brian Kabbes provided and requested changes to the escrow and that Brian 

Kabbes had told Becky Hainje it was a “slam dunk.” 

60. During the call MSCI attempted several times to work out any 

misunderstandings and set up at least the 10 accounts MSCI had relied on US 

BANK for and that US BANK had known about and that MSCI was now in danger 

of being irreparably harmed. MSCI stated that the Patriot Act did not apply and 

that MSCI was in actuality an established US BANK customer and that MSCI had 
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been in a trust relationship with US BANK and the bank even had its business 

plan and information about its proprietary business model. Brian Kabbes said 

that the trust department was a stand-alone unit and had its own criteria for 

accepting customers. US BANK refused to reverse its decision. 

61. MSCI pointed out that it had not received a true reason for denial of the 

accounts and that the reason given was a pretext at best. Viewing US BANK’s 

actions, MSCI stated they could only be explained by a conflict of interest due to 

US BANCORP’s existing healthcare investments and involvement. 

MSCI felt extremely disturbed by the apparent out come of this situation, there 

was not enough time to establish a new banking relationship with another 

nationally recognized Bank and MSCI would loose substantial momentum. MSCI 

had spent several months building up to roll out it’s supply chain empowerment 

program and felt to change a trust relationship in the middle will be devastating to 

it’s entry to market. MSCI researched over 300 resumes only to find 30 that 

appeared to be qualified.       

62. On or about 10/17/02 Sam Lipari telephoned Douglas Lewis and told him 

what had happened. Doug said he had sent Brian Kabbes the good standing 

documentation but not the business plan and associate program. Sam Lipari 

instructed him not to send the business plan and associate program materials to 

the corporate trust office of US BANK in St. Louis. He told Douglas Lewis that 

MSCI would be litigating over the escrow decision and planned to renew its 

application for a line of credit once it had the situation straightened out. Sam 

Lipari suggested he might find another bank but Douglas Lewis said that would 
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make the line of credit difficult. Sam Lipari further instructed Douglas Lewis to 

hold on to the materials and keep anyone else from having access to them. 

Douglas Lewis agreed and stated he would keep the business plan materials 

safe. 

63. On or about 10/18/02 MSCI drafted a letter and sent it to Jerry A. 

Grundhofer, the President and Chief Executive Officer of US BANCORP NA with 

a copy being sent to Andrew Cesere, explaining the staggering damages US 

BANCORP would be liable for in imminent litigation due to the refusal to provide 

escrow accounts to MSCI. MSCI suggested an alternative of fact finding 

depositions to take place in St. Louis, MO before the end of the day Tuesday 

10/22/02, believing US BANK to be misinformed about the USA Patriot Act and 

any reason for denying the escrow accounts. 

64. US BANCORP Trust Department corporate counsel replied Friday 

10/18/02 via fax and priority delivery with a letter denying US BANCORP NA was 

in contract with MSCI and that if any law suit is filed to address service for the 

trust department to her at her office. 

65. MSCI called the trust department counsel Monday10/21/02 to ask for 

service addresses of the other named entities and employees. She said the 

same address would be good for all and then proceeded to ask what the causes 

of action were. MSCI explained that it was chiefly an antitrust action based on the 

Sherman, Clayton and Hobbs Act and that causes of action under the USA 

Patriot Act were also a basis for the suit. She was surprised MSCI was told the 

USA Patriot Act had been given as the reason for the denial of escrow account 
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service but reiterated that there was no contract in her view and she saw no 

basis for the other causes of action. MSCI stated that it would fax the complaint 

to her at the time the action was filed at the end of business Thursday 10/24/02, 

but they were still waiting for Mr. Gunderson to select the alternative of mutual 

fact finding to promote a resolution of the matter without litigation. She stated that 

the depositions would not lead to any meaningful explanation, that we had her 

letter explaining US BANK’s reason for denying the escrow accounts and that the 

bank reserved the right to choose whom it served. MSCI reminded her that US 

BANCORP had extensive investments in healthcare and that choosing not to 

provide a service to a competitor is actionable under antitrust law. 

 66. She warned MSCI not to contact anyone at US BANK and said if MSCI 

filed an action against US BANCORP NA, she would send a letter to the judge in 

advance of her answer to our complaint saying we had ex parte communications. 

MSCI stated that it had not had any communications with US BANK employees 

since receiving her reply on Friday 10/18/02. However, MSCI was an account 

holder at US BANK and would continue to have communications with US BANK 

regarding its other bank business. MSCI reminded her that US BANCORP had 

extensive investments in healthcare distributors and that choosing not to provide 

a service to a competitor is actionable under antitrust law. 

67. MSCI contacted an attorney, familiar with the healthcare supply chain 

research and development done by Sam Lipari at the law firm of Shook Hardy 

and Bacon and asked if his firm could act as escrow agent for accounts to be set 
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up in US BANK. He said the bank is better prepared to provide escrow services 

and declined to act as escrow agent. 

68. On Thursday 10/24/02 MSCI filed for urgent injunctive relief against US 

BANCORP NA, its subsidiaries and named employees. MSCI counsel contacted 

US BANK counsel Kristin Strong to clarify the clerk of the court’s questioning of 

service and to attempt to schedule a hearing. Ms. Strong said she would call the 

following morning Friday 10/25/02 to answer the question about service. She did 

not call and took the day off. MSCI counsel called her on Monday morning 

10/28/02 at which time she said the case had been transferred to outside counsel 

and gave the phone number to MSCI. 

69. On or about 10/28/02 MSCI contacted US BANCORP’s retained counsel 

and explained that there were questions about service and that MSCI was 

seeking to schedule a hearing that week for its requested relief to stop the harm 

it was suffering and to avoid a terminal outcome for the company. US 

BANCORP’s counsel said he had to travel and was unsure of his schedule but by 

the next day he might know of a time he could make a hearing. Without hearing 

from the opposing counsel, MSCI became concerned and sent an email on or 

about 10/29/02 suggesting portions of the injunctive relief it seemed likely the two 

parties could agree on and explaining the harm it was suffering and what 

delaying the relief beyond critical dates would inflict on MSCI, its associates and 

customers.  

70. The email explained the losses as follows: the damages of failing to 

receive the $350,000 to $450,000 it depended on November 1st and the resulting 
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effects of that delay on its projected financials including lost profit of 

$51,795,005.00, lost increase in average valuation of $155,385,015.00, 

Candidate lost revenue of $15,499,788.00. The email explained that these 

injuries would be far greater if a December 1st deadline is missed. However, if the 

company does not recover from US BANK’s denial of the escrow accounts the 

total third year losses of the company would be as follows: lost profits 

$51,795,005.00, loss of increased company avg. valuation of $155,385,015.00, 

Candidate lost revenue of $15,499,788.00 and Customer losses of 

$697,486,200.00. 

71. On or about Wednesday 10/30/02, US BANCORP’s counsel sent a letter 

to the court dismissive of MSCI’s complaint and stating that it would oppose all 

requested relief. 

72. On or about Thursday 10/31/02, MSCI called US BANCORP’s counsel 

explaining the necessity of the relief sought and specifically the relief requested 

under paragraph 66 seeking to stop US BANK from reporting negative 

information about MSCI under the USA PATRIOT Act. US BANCORP’s counsel 

reiterated his belief MSCI needed to find another bank and that no liability 

existed. MSCI’s counsel explained that Sam Lipari will not risk a hundred million 

dollar company that requires high level banking services to future damage from a 

secret USA Patriot Act report that has misinformation in it and would create a 

black mark preventing them from ever being able to do any business. US 

BANCORP’s counsel said it would not agree to even just the relief sought in 

paragraph 66. MSCI asked US BANCORP’s counsel if his firm would act as an 
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escrow agent for accounts to be deposited in US BANK, since Shook Hardy and 

Bacon had declined to do so. US BANCORP’s counsel refused to do so stating 

that US BANK did not owe any duty to MSCI. 

73. Realizing there was no immediate solution to this matter, and the fact that 

a previous business model pricing system developed by Sam Lipari in 1995 was 

appropriated by HSCA and MEDECON through exploitation of a confidential 

business relationship  and then taken later by many other GPOs; on or about 

11/6/02 Sam Lipari visited US Bank, Noland road branch to retrieve the 

documents left by him following the meeting with Doug Lewis on 10/10/02. Doug 

Lewis gave the documents back to Sam Lipari. Sam Lipari specifically ask if the 

documents were copied or faxed and Doug Lewis said he put all of the 

information in his analysis and Sam Lipari left the bank. Upon returning to MSCI’s 

office Sam Lipari Inspected the documents and found that the binders had been 

separated and copies or faxes had been made of the associate program and the 

business plan documents. There are tractor marks from a copy or fax machine 

on the back of all the pages. The documents relating to the escrow agreement 

associate program application, and certification contract were not faxed or 

copied. There were no marks on the back of these documents. 

74. MSCI is now fearful of where these documents were sent or who has 

reviewed them. The documents that were copied or faxed contain all confidential 

details to the business, business model, management team, investors, industry 

experts, advisors, business practices, market strategies, revenue model, service 

structure, formula, algorithms and financials including 5 year details, 5 year 
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condensed and break even analysis. Sam Lipari is fearful this information will fall 

into the wrong hands further blocking or eliminating entry to market. 

75. On or about 11/7/02 Sam Lipari received a complimentary D&B report 

dated 10/31/02 on MSCI. The report indicated MSCI started in 2000 and has a 

clear credit history and a strong financial condition. 

 
CAUSES OF ACTION 

 
COUNT I: VIOLATIONS OF THE SHERMAN ANTITRUST ACT 
 
76. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-75 above. 

77. Defendants have violated Section 1of the Sherman Anti Trust Act 

prohibition against combination or conspiracy, in restraint of commerce. 

78. Defendants are a vertically integrated commercial banking, private 

banking, trust and investment banking concern with investment and underwriting 

trade concentrated in the healthcare supplier market. In this specific market of 

companies supplying new products, services and technology, new entrants are 

dependant on the approval and endorsement of the Defendants to healthcare 

supply distributors dominated by Healthcare Group Purchasing Organizations or 

GPO’s due to the Defendants’ monopoly power.  

79. Defendants are believed to be the largest holder of healthcare supplier 

equity issues through their direct investments and the investments of funds they 

manage. Defendants are believed to be the largest promoters of healthcare 

supplier stock issues and provide the largest amount of industry analysis for 

investor evaluation of healthcare supplier stock issues. On information and belief, 

US BANCORP NA, US BANK, PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE 
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TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND 

SERVICES, LLC and US BANCORP PIPER are alter egos of each other in that 

they now and at all relevant times (a) held themselves out to the public as a 

single, integrated, full-service, professional business enterprise; (b) completely 

dominated and controlled each other’s assets, operations, policies, procedures, 

strategies, and tactics; (c) failed to observe corporate formalities; (d) and used 

and commingled the assets, facilities, employees, and business opportunities of 

each other, as if those assets, facilities, employees, and business opportunities 

were their own -- all to such an extent that any adherence to the fiction of the 

separate existence of any of these defendants distinct from the others would be 

inequitable, would permit egregious wrongdoers to abuse a corporate, limited 

liability corporation, and/or similar privilege of limited liability, if any, and would 

promote injustice by allowing these defendants to evade liability or veil assets 

that should be attachable. 

80. Defendants’ predatory practices in the capitalization of healthcare 

suppliers have been found to be in violation of regulatory statutes. In June of 

2002, US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY was censured and fined  $250,000.00 by 

the National Association of Securities Dealers for threatening to deny 

Antigenetics, Inc. a critical service of analyst coverage if it did not select US 

BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY as a lead underwriter for a second issuing of 

stock.xiv 

81. US BANCORP has participated in underwriting syndicates for 131 IPO’s 

worth nearly 10 billion dollars since January 1999. xvUS BANCORP is named as 

 34

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1892



a defendant in shareholder law suits investigating US BANCORP’s role in a 

scheme to allocate equity shares of Commerce One to particular customers on 

the condition that these customers would then buy additional equity shares in the 

securities markets at agreed upon times to create a false increase in the prices of 

Commerce One shares.xvi Commerce One is an electronic marketplace 

technology company providing supply chain management services in the 

business to business market and specifically through Medibuy in a “strategic 

relationship” to provide these services to healthcare facilities. Medibuy is a 

partner of the largest GPO which is also the main subject of federal healthcare 

supply marketplace inquiry, Premier, Inc. Medibuy is also the exclusive e-

commerce supplier for HCA. 

82. The Defendants maintain control over the day-to-day operations of 

healthcare supplier companies they invest in or provide services for. xvii This 

control extends to interlocking directors when Defendants place corporate 

officers of US BANCORP NA on the boards of the healthcare supplier 

corporations that the Defendants have participated with in creating anti 

competitive sole source supplier contracts with healthcare GPO’s that are 

"agreements whose nature and necessary effect are so plainly anticompetitive . . 

. no elaborate study of the industry is needed to establish their illegality-they are 

'illegal per se.'" National Society of Professional Engineers v. United States, 435 

U.S. 679, 692, 98 S. Ct.1355, 1365, 55 L. Ed. 2d 637 (1978).  

83. The Defendants use the creation of anticompetitive sole source contracts 

between their client healthcare suppliers and healthcare GPO’s the Defendants 
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have developed to promote and inflate the value of equity shares they are 

marketing. 

The Defendants operate a conspiracy among their subsidiaries and parent 

companies and through their employees as “Persons” engaged in combination 

with healthcare GPO’s including UNKOWN HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER for the 

purpose of restraining commerce. On information and belief, Defendants, in 

agreement, concert, and conspiracy with each other, directly or indirectly 

initiated, directed, participated in, aided and abetted, furthered, otherwise 

caused, and/or concealed the anticompetitive denial of services and critical 

facilities, or related events, for the purpose of preserving their directorships 

and/or other positions with US BANCORP NA, keeping their contracts with US 

BANCORP NA, their income, compensation, and fringe benefits, supporting the 

value of their US BANCORP NA securities, and/or concealing their participation 

in and liability for anticompetitive activities. 

84. The Defendants prevented MSCI from establishing escrow accounts it 

was intending to use as a unique banking service with special escrow account 

agreements reviewed and approved by the Defendants to finance MSCI’s entry 

into to commerce in competition to reduce prices and increase manufacturers of 

healthcare devices and other healthcare suppliers access to markets in 

competition with sole source healthcare suppliers and healthcare GPO’s. 

85. The escrow account contracts are novel and could not be duplicated at 

another bank in the short time between the Defendants surprise announcement 

that they were not going to host the accounts, breaching their contract or duty to 

 36

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1894



MSCI based falsely on the USA Patriot Act, and the deadlines MSCI was in 

reliance on for receipt of funds. The escrow accounts developed between MSCI 

and US BANK, along with the line of credit tying arrangement based on the 

contract guaranteed portion were “unique and unusual financing terms which are 

unavailable from competing financial institutions.” If other financial institutions 

have the required presence of bank branches and familiarity with MSCI 

candidates in several states, along with commercial trust departments capable of 

acting as escrow agent for accounts that provide fractional secured interests for a 

bank commercial loan line of credit, they were not present with the capability of 

putting the arrangement together in Blue Springs or Independence MO. Sam 

Lipari turned to US BANK for the escrow accounts after evaluating and visiting 

other banks within driving range of his Blue Springs office. US BANK’s branch 

office on Noland Rd. in Independence, MO was able to perform this custom 

financial service and proceeded to do so with a regional US BANK commercial 

trust office in St. Louis pooling resources for a multi state district. Once US BANK 

decided to withdraw the service, there was no financial institution MSCI could 

turn to that was capable of meeting its requirements in the few days remaining in 

which to get out the escrow contracts to the candidates for their examination in 

advance of the November 1st deadline. If US BANK had made its reversal earlier; 

there still was no competing national financial institution capable of providing 

such a complex custom service without having a pre-established banking 

relationship. US BANCORP NA was a financial institution lending upon a unique, 

novel or custom escrow financial instrument in the commercial money market 
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with sufficient economic power to give rise to a claim under the Sherman Act as 

contemplated in United States Steel Corporation v. Fortner Enterprises, Inc., 429 

U.S. 610, 51 L. Ed. 2d 80, 97 S. Ct. 861 (1977). 

86. Defendants through their financial institutions act as a supplier of financial 

services to companies in the healthcare industry. Defendants own and control 

other supplier companies including medical device manufacturers, biotechnology 

producers, healthcare distributors and health system end users. Defendants 

have conspired with, aided and abetted and participated in the financing of efforts 

to limit or prevent competition in healthcare supply. Defendants have prevented 

MSCI from entering the healthcare supply market by refusing to act as a supplier 

of escrow accounts at any price to MSCI. Such conduct constitutes a contract, 

combination or conspiracy in restraint of trade in per se violation of Section 1 of 

the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1. 

87. The Defendants have acted in furtherance of the combine’s conspiracy to 

deny MSCI access to services and essential facilities through a refusal to deal, 

denial of services, boycott or withholding of critical facilities which is conducted 

"to exclude a person or group from the market, or to accomplish some other anti-

competitive objective, or both," DeFilippo v. Ford Motor Co., 516 F.2d 1313, 1318 

(3d Cir.) (citations omitted), cert. denied, 423U.S. 912, 96 S. Ct. 216, 46 L. Ed. 

2d 141 (1975), and is a per se violations of § 1.  

88. Defendants through their financial institutions have discriminated against 

MSCI in provision of services and facilities in the form of the five escrow 

accounts MSCI had mailed out contracts for and the five escrow accounts for 
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candidates committing to payment of funds by November 1st which MSCI was in 

the process of sending contracts to and the future escrow accounts for its 

ongoing future quarterly medical supply chain strategist certification programs.   

89. The public is being severely injured by the Defendants actions in restraint 

of trade through their combination or conspiracy, in restraint of commerce 

90. MSCI has been severely injured and is in danger of further injury resulting 

from the Defendants actions in restraint of trade through their combination or 

conspiracy, in restraint of commerce. MSCI is now unable to meet its obligations, 

and risks damage to its corporate credit rating. MSCI is unable to procure an 

escrow agent to substitute for US BANK. MSCI is unable to meet its 

commitments to independent representatives that MSCI depended on to enter 

commerce. MSCI is unable to produce revenue without independent consultants 

who have begun its very expensive certification program. MSCI’s good will with 

its associates and customers has been harmed by not meeting its scheduled 

entry to market. 

91. Defendants have violated Section 2 of the Sherman Anti Trust Act 

prohibition against combining or conspiring with any other person or persons, to 

monopolize or attempt to monopolize any part of the trade or commerce. 

92. Defendants have acquired, maintained and extended their monopoly 

power through improper means, including attempting to extort healthcare 

technology companies into using US BANCORP as the underwriter of 

capitalization against securities regulations and in denying MSCI the escrow 

accounts it required to capitalize its entry into commerce through extortion under 
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the color of official right-The USA Patriot Act, fraudulently invoked to tortuously 

Interfere with MSCI’s contracts and prospective contracts.  

93. Defendants utilize their monopoly power to foreclose competition and gain 

a competitive advantage for their client and associate companies, in which they 

have invested millions of dollars and on whose behalf and acting as a 

combination, they have attempted to destroy MSCI, a potential competitor in 

violation of 15 U.S.C.S. § 2.  

94. The Defendants’ vertical integration is part of a calculated scheme to gain 

control over the 1.3 trillion dollar healthcare supplier and distribution segment of 

the healthcare industry and to restrain or suppress competition, rather than an 

expansion to meet the legitimate business needs of US BANCORP’s customers, 

exhibiting the requisite specific intent needed to show a violation of 15 U.S.C.S. § 

2. 

95. The Defendants as monopolists, or would be monopolists of the 

healthcare supplier/distribution marketplace engage in predatory tactics and dirty 

tricks including the above mentioned extortion of business customers seeking 

capitalization, “laddering” schemes to fraudulently inflate equity values of 

competitors they own interests in. Additionally, healthcare suppliers the 

Defendants invest in and promote engage in anticompetitive predatory sole 

source contract agreements with healthcare GPOs. 

96. The Defendants through conspiracy and combination with healthcare 

suppliers and distributors have established monopoly power and have the power 

to control prices of healthcare supplies which they exercise in maintaining higher 
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prices through GPO distribution channels that are higher than those negotiated 

directly by hospitals, sometimes 25% higher according to the Government 

Accounting Officexviii and by excluding competition in violation of 15 U.S.C.S. § 2. 

97. Anticompetitive effects have resulted from the Defendant's actions. New 

technologies have been prevented from entering the healthcare market to protect 

competitors with the capitalization provided by the actions of the Defendants to 

make kickback payments to GPOs in exchange for sole source contracts. This 

has resulted in the unavailability of superior products and services that would 

have been able to save lives and alleviate suffering in hospital patients 

98. The public is being severely injured by the Defendants actions in restraint 

of trade through their combining or conspiring with any other person or persons, 

to monopolize or attempt to monopolize any part of the trade or commerce 

99. MSCI has been severely injured and is in danger of further injury resulting 

from the Defendants actions in restraint of trade through their combining or 

conspiring with any other person or persons, to monopolize or attempt to 

monopolize any part of the trade or commerce.  

COUNT II: VIOLATIONS OF CLAYTON ANTITRUST ACT 

100. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 99 above. 

101.  Defendants have denied MSCI escrow account services, a critical facility 

in violation of the Robinson-Patman Act against discrimination in price, services, 

or facilities; 15 U.S.C. § 13 of the Clayton Antitrust Act. 

102.  Defendants provide financial services and facilities to existing healthcare 

supply market participants on the basis of those participants maintaining 
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exclusive dealing arrangements. The Defendants exclusive dealing criteria is 

directly applied where Defendants make contracts and provide investment and 

financing to healthcare supplier companies the Defendants proclaim and 

publicize as entering into and maintaining sole source or single source contracts 

with distributors and end user health systems. The Defendants publicize this 

information to solicit subscription of stocks they underwrite and to obtain 

additional investors. As a direct and proximate result of the Defendants’ 

pervasive conspiracy to restrain trade in healthcare supplies, against the 

interests of shareholders, potential investors, and the integrity of the securities 

market, as set forth fully above, Plaintiffs have suffered injury and damages in 

the capitalization of their entry into market.  

103. The Defendants exclusive dealing criteria is indirectly applied where 

Defendants make contracts and provide investment and financing to healthcare 

supplier companies on the basis of collusion derived profits. The Defendants 

have prevented MSCI from entering the healthcare supplier/distribution market 

by refusing to act as a supplier of financial services and facilities in the form of 

escrow accounts in violation of the Robinson-Patman Act.  

104. The Defendants have denied MSCI equal access to these financial 

services on the basis of tying financial services to healthcare supplier and 

distribution customers participating in market limitation and denial of access. 

105. Defendants through their financial institutions have discriminated against 

MSCI in provision of services and facilities in the form of the five escrow 

accounts MSCI had mailed out contracts for and the five escrow accounts for 
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candidates committing to payment of funds by November 1st which MSCI was in 

the process of sending contracts to and the future escrow accounts for its 

ongoing future quarterly medical supply chain strategist certification program. 

106.  Defendants provide financial services and facilities to existing healthcare 

supplier market participants. Defendants own, control or have a participatory 

interest in healthcare supplier market participants that they provide financial 

services and facilities to. Defendants have prevented MSCI from entering the 

healthcare supply market by refusing to act as a supplier of financial services and 

facilities in the form of escrow accounts. Such conduct constitutes a per se  

violation of 15 U.S.C. § 13. 

107. The public is being severely injured by the Defendants actions in restraint 

of trade. 

108. MSCI has been severely injured and is in danger of further injury resulting 

from the Defendants actions in restraint of trade. 

109. MSCI is a corporation entitled to sue for and have injunctive relief, in any 

court of the United States having jurisdiction over the Defendants, against 

threatened loss or damage by a violation of the antitrust laws, including sections 

13 of this title. MSCI is likely to prevail on one or all of its claims against the 

Defendants. The danger of irreparable loss or damage to MSCI is immediate. 

There is a substantial threat that MSCI will suffer irreparable injury in the 

absence of preliminary relief; the likely injury to MSCI is greater than that likely to 

be suffered by the Defendants; and entry of the preliminary injunction would not 

disserve the public interest. Lucero v. Operation Rescue of Birmingham, 954 
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F.2d 624, 627 (11th Cir. 1992), reh’g denied, 961 F.2d 224 (1992). Where, as 

here, the plaintiff advances anti-trust claims, preliminary relief is specifically 

authorized by 15 U.S.C. § 26. 

COUNT III: VIOLATIONS OF THE HOBBS ACT AGAINST RACKETEERING 

110. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 109 above. 

111. Defendants violated The Hobbs Act prohibition against racketeering by 

preventing MSCI’s entry into commerce under color of official right in violation of 

18 U.S.C. 1951(b)(2). 

112. Defendants committed an unusual act for banks by denial of service and 

facilities for plaintiff MSCI’s escrow accounts in bad faith or nonperformance of 

their duty as financial institutions and employees. Defendants “under color of 

official right” through invocation of the USA PATRIOT Act deny and threaten 

MSCI’s access to service at any national bank that MSCI, its customers or 

associates require to conduct their business, effecting the unjust enrichment of 

the Defendants and their related healthcare suppliers and distributors combine, 

preventing MSCI’s services from entering into commerce in violation of The 

Hobbs Act, 18 U.S.C. 1951(b)(2).  

113. Defendants are extensively invested in selected healthcare suppliers. The 

profits of these healthcare companies are dependent on a current market where 

competition in pricing is severely curtailed. Defendants’ US BANCORP NA profit 

has not increased proportionately to its acquisition of banks and traditional 

commercial banking business. Defendants are consequentially dependant on 

revenue from their private banking, trust and investment banking divisions which 
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are disproportionately concentrated in healthcare suppliers engaging in 

anticompetitive business practices. 

114. Defendants’ US BANCORP NA , despite the patriotic appellation “US 

BANK” in red white and blue signage that it places on its newly acquired Kansas 

and Missouri banks, is unlike a traditional American bank in that Defendants US 

BANCORP NA functions like an Asian bank interlinked in an industry group 

combine, acting against the combine’s industry competitors and aiding the 

combine’s allies. In Japan a similar industry group would be called a “Keiretsu”xix 

or in Korea a “Chaebol.”  The Defendants’ vertically integrated monopoly acting 

in consort with their healthcare suppliers and distributors combine in efforts to 

prevent MSCI from entering into commerce through the misuse of the USA 

Patriot Act are extorting property from MSCI, its associates and customers.  

115. The Defendants did not do the investigation of MSCI they claimed was 

required under the USA PATRIOT Act and sought to harm MSCI out of an 

undisclosed profit incentive. In using the USA PATRIOT Act the Defendants are 

using force or in the alternative acting under color of law in taking property from 

MSCI its associates and customers. 

116. This bad faith performance of its regulator imposed and customer 

expected duty was made self evident by the Defendants’ St. Louis Trust 

Department telling MSCI that it “did not understand why MSCI went to them and 

not MSCI’s local bank” without even realizing MSCI was already an established 

US BANCORP NA client customer with a corporate checking account and a 
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pending corporate credit application, or that MSCI’s chief executive was an 

established checking account holder.  

117. Plaintiff MSCI has accepted voluntarily that it will be delayed, suffer lost 

profits, injury to its associates and loose some or all of the ten best candidates 

for bringing its electronic marketplace and supply chain management software 

services to commerce. The Defendants have the power to label MSCI as a 

money laundering suspect or to do their normal duty of diligence and discover 

MSCI, its candidates and associates are upstanding citizens with documented 

funds. MSCI may reluctantly have no choice but to wait until the Defendants’ 

healthcare suppliers and distributors develop a strategy to counter MSCI’s 

neutral electronic marketplace and cost reducing supply chain management 

software before the Defendants allow MSCI the escrow accounts it needs to 

enter the healthcare supply marketplace. 

118. MSCI’s chief executive prudently fears that bad faith reporting under the 

USA PATRIOT Act by the Defendants to enrich their vertically integrated 

combine will prevent MSCI from going to other financial institutions and opening 

escrow accounts or obtaining other banking services, including the clearing and 

settlement of over 90 million dollars in annual healthcare supply transactions, 

foreign exchange conversion and purchasing finance, all of which are far more 

sensitive and subject to greater anti-money laundering scrutiny under know your 

customer laws and the USA Patriot Act. 

119.  The Defendants have opposed MSCI’s requested injunctive relief which 

would have temporarily ordered US BANCORP NA and its employees to stop 
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secretly reporting negative information against MSCI under the USA Patriot Act 

until adequate training and the required compliance officers were in place. The 

Defendants have not denied exercising the USA Patriot Act against MSCI. 

120. The Defendants’ unprofessional conduct and lack of truthful disclosure 

about USA PATRIOT Act based conduct continues to threaten the Plaintiff MSCI, 

its associates and customers through actions that may trigger similar surprise 

denials of critical banking services at other financial institutions.   

121. The Public has been harmed by the Defendants extortion of MSCI that 

has obstructed or delayed MSCI’s entry into commerce and the resulting cost 

savings and increased availability of beneficial healthcare technologies. Over 

2000 hospitals nation-wide are endangered by the current anticompetitive market 

for healthcare supplies and are harmed by the Defendants continued prevention 

of MSCI from entering commerce. Public access to healthcare will be harmfully 

cut back if more hospitals are closed because they are unable to realize the 20% 

cost reduction provided through MSCI’s system. 

COUNT IV : FAILURE TO PROPERLY TRAIN EMPLOYEES ON USA 
PATRIOT ACT OR PROVIDE A COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
 
122. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 121 above. 

123. Defendants US BANCORP NA, US BANK; PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, 

CORPORATE TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND 

MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC., failed to provide training or adequate training 

to its employees or to designate a USA PATRIOT Act compliance officer in each 

of its financial institutions as required under Section 352 of USA Patriot Act. 

Without training, employees of US BANCORP denied MSCI, a known domestic 
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corporation in good standing with its Secretary of State and State Department of 

Revenue an escrow account service even though it was not an activity that was 

regulated under Section 312 effective July 23, 2002. 

124. Without having adequately trained employees and a USA PATRIOT Act 

mandated compliance officer in each of their financial institutions, the Defendants 

continue to endanger the plaintiff MSCI, its associates and customers with 

wrongful denial of services and facilities of US BANCORP NA where MSCI has 

its accounts or at other national and state banks where MSCI and its associates 

may be harmed through denied services based on erroneous reporting by the 

Defendants.   

COUNT V: MISUSE OF AUTHORITY AND EXCESSIVE USE OF FORCE AS 
ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS UNDER THE USA PATRIOT ACT 
 
125. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 124 above. 

126. The Defendants BRIAN KABBES, LARS ANDERSON and SUSAN 

PAINE, under knowing direction of Defendants ANDREW CESERE and JERRY 

A. GRUNDHOFER, repeatedly used the USA Patriot Act to deny services of US 

BANK, PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL 

TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC. and US 

BANCORP NA to MSCI, causing the loss of MSCI property. The Defendants, 

despite their regulated status as financial institutions and corporate officers of 

financial institutions responsible for providing a professional service; denied 

MSCI, a known domestic corporation in good standing with its Secretary of State 

and State Department of Revenue an escrow account service on the basis of 

increased reporting requirements for new accounts under the USA PATRIOT Act 
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even though The US Treasury Department had previously announced it was 

delaying the date account opening requirements become issued and effective 

and US BANCORP was under no reporting requirements for MSCI’s escrow 

accounts. 

127. The Defendants continue to endanger the plaintiff MSCI and its associates 

with wrongful denial of services and facilities of US Bancorp NA where MSCI has 

its accounts or at other national and state banks where MSCI may be denied 

services based on erroneous or bad faith reporting by the Defendants.   

128. The Defendants continue to endanger the plaintiff MSCI its associates and 

customers with wrongful denial of services and facilities of national and state 

banks where MSCI may be denied services based on the Defendants 

unprofessional and bad faith denial of escrow accounts based on the US 

PATRIOT Act. The Defendants action prevents MSCI from escaping the denial of 

escrow accounts history and banking references in all new financial 

arrangements.  

129.  On October 22, 2002 MSCI approached an attorney of Shook, Hardy and 

Bacon for the purpose of acting as escrow agent in substitute accounts to be set 

up at a national bank. After asking why MSCI’s existing bank did not provide the 

accounts, the attorney declined to act as escrow agent. 

COUNT VI: VIOLATION OF CRIMINAL LAWS TO INFLUENCE PUBLIC 
POLICY UNDER SECTION 802 OF THE USA PATRIOT ACT 
 
130. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 129 above. 

131.  Defendants are preventing MSCI from entry into commerce to alleviate 

market collusion in healthcare supplies that has lead to injury and loss of life and 
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continues to threaten US citizens. This healthcare supply emergency has been 

the subject of US agency action and investigation. Members and committees of 

the US Congress have begun inquiry into the failure of the healthcare supply 

market place for the purposes of creating public policy regulating market 

participants. Defendants are preventing MSCI’s entry into commerce in violation 

of Section 802 of the USA PATRIOT Act which creates a federal crime of 

"domestic terrorism" that broadly extends to "acts dangerous to human life that 

are a violation of the criminal laws" if they "appear to be intended…to influence 

the policy of a government by intimidation or coercion," and if they "occur 

primarily within the territorial jurisdiction of the United States." 

132. The Defendants continue to endanger the plaintiff MSCI, its associates 

and customers with illegal conduct that prevents them from or threatens to 

prevent them providing a market solution to this governmental healthcare policy 

issue. 

Supplemental State Law Based Causes Of Action 
 
COUNT VII: MISAPPROPRIATION OF TRADE SECRETS 
 
133. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-132 above. 
 
134. The Defendants have misappropriated MSCI’s business plan and 

associate program containing MSCI’s trade secrets. The Defendants have made 

use of MSCI’s trade secrets through unauthorized copying and transmittal. 

135. The Defendants directed Douglas Lewis to disassemble MSCI’s Business 

Plan and Associate Program and make copies and or fax their contents in 

violation of Sam Lipari’s oral instructions to Douglas Lewis and the notice of 
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limitations of disclosure, use, transmittal and copying expressly stated on the 

covers and in the bodies of the above documents.  US BANK’s exceeded its 

authorized use and copieded and or transmitted the above documents to the 

defendants PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL 

TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC., UNKNOWN 

HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE and BRIAN 

KABBES. 

136. The Defendants directed Douglas Lewis to disassemble MSCI’s Business 

Plan and Associate Program and make a derivative analysis document 

containing MSCI’s trade secret and or fax their contents in violation of Sam 

Lipari’s oral instructions to Douglas Lewis and the notice of limitations of 

disclosure, use, transmittal and copying expressly stated on the covers and in the 

bodies of the above documents.  US BANK’s exceeded its authorized use and 

cop ied and or transmitted the above documents to the defendants PRIVATE 

CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND 

CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC., UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE 

SUPPLIER, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE and BRIAN KABBES. 

137. The defendants US BANCORP NA; US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY; 

PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL TRUST 

AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC.; LARS ANDERSON; 

SUSAN PAINE and BRIAN KABBES acquired unconsented knowledge of 

MSCI’s trade secrets and made use thereof. 
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138. The Defendants are attempting to settle litigation through payment of 

several million dollars for theft of customer information in an unrelated class 

action lawsuit giving rise to MSCI’s heightened fears of being materially inured if 

its trade secrets are not recovered and their dissemination is not disclosed. 

COUNT VIII: TORTUOUS INTERFERENCE WITH PROSPECTIVE 
CONTRACTS 
 
139. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-138 above. 

140. The Defendants have committed Tortuous Interference With Prospective 

MSCI Contracts for independent representatives, business associates and health 

system customers. 

141. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to prevent 15 prospective 

contractual relationships between MSCI and independent representatives. 

142. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to prevent or interfere with 

the prospective contractual relationships between MSCI and business associates 

named in MSCI’s business plan and associate agreement. 

143. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to prevent or interfere with 

the prospective contractual relationships between MSCI and health system 

customers including hospitals. 

144. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to prevent or interfere with 

the prospective contractual relationships between MSCI and the technology 

partners discussed in MSCI’s business plan and associate agreement. 

145. MSCI had a reasonable probability of entering into contracts with 15 

independent representatives for the December 1st course, nine business 

associates, three technology partners and numerous hospital groups. 
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146. The Defendants decision to withdraw from acting as MSCI’s escrow agent 

on October 15, and refusing to repair or reverse their decision was the proximate 

cause of MSCI’s damages and loss. 

147. The Defendants decision to withdraw from acting as MSCI’s escrow agent 

on October 15, and refusing to repair or reverse their decision caused the actual 

loss of 350,000 to 450,000 dollars MSCI would have on deposit on November 1st, 

of which $50,000 to $75,000 would be available for securing credit and which the 

entire sum would be the property of MSCI by December 15th. MSCI depended on 

these funds to meet its contractual obligations. 

COUNT IX: TORTUOUS INTERFERENCE WITH CONTRACTS 
 
148. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-147 above. 

149. The Defendants have committed Tortuous Interference With MSCI 

Contracts for independent representatives, business associates and health 

system customers. 

150. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to disrupt or interfere with 

10 contractual relationships between MSCI and potential independent 

representatives. 

151. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to disrupt or interfere with 

the contractual relationships between MSCI and business associates named in 

MSCI’s business plan and associate agreement. 

152. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to disrupt or interfere with 

the contractual relationships between MSCI and a human resource technology 

partner.  
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153. The Defendants willfully and intentionally acted to disrupt or interfere with 

the contractual relationships between MSCI and its landlord and utilities.  

154. The Defendants decision to withdraw from acting as MSCI’s escrow agent 

on October 15, and refusing to repair or reverse their decision was the proximate 

cause of MSCI’s damages and loss. 

155. The Defendants decision to withdraw from acting as MSCI’s escrow agent 

on October 15, and refusing to repair or reverse their decision caused the actual 

loss of 350,000 to 450,000 dollars MSCI would have on deposit on November 1st, 

of which $50,000 to $75,000 would be available for securing credit and which the 

entire sum would be the property of MSCI by December 15th. MSCI depended on 

these funds to meet its contractual obligations. 

COUNT X: BREACH OF CONTRACT 

156. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-155 above. 

157. The Defendants breached their contract with MSCI to provide MSCI with a 

full range of business banking services, including corporate trust services and 

escrow agency to be performed lawfully and professionally with a “five star 

guarantee” of quality of service. This contract was executed in writing by the 

Defendants and MSCI when their respective agents opened the Medical Supply 

Chain Corporate checking account in Topeka, Kansas. 

158. The Defendants breached their contract with MSCI to provide MSCI with 

corporate trust services, escrow agency and the service of hosting escrow 

accounts for MSCI and its candidates. This contract was made over the phone at 

a distance of 300 miles between the defendant US BANK’s St. Louis office and 
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MSCI a customer of US BANK’s Noland Road Independence office in the regular 

course of business. No writing or other memorialization of this contract was 

referred to or contemplated at any time during its negotiation and formation by 

either the Defendants or MSCI.   

159. The Defendant BRIAN KABBES and Sam Lipari came into formation of 

contract when both had agreed upon some or all of the terms including: the 

composition of the escrow form, the language limiting the liability of US BANK 

and the escrow agent, the language designating US BANK’s compensation for its 

duties in any legal disputes arising between the parties, the directions for US 

BANK’s investment of long term held funds, the directions for US BANK’s 

investment of short term held funds, the selection of investment vehicles for both 

funds respectively, the name and address of BRIAN KABBES as escrow agent 

on the escrow form, the name and address of US BANK as escrow depository on 

the escrow form, the price term US BANK is charging for the agreed upon 

escrow service and the price term and payment schedule for maintaining the 

account. 

160. The Defendants performed diligence to determine whether to accept the 

contract with MSCI to provide MSCI with corporate trust services, escrow agency 

and the service of hosting escrow accounts for MSCI and its candidates. The 

Defendants required only one item to be rectified for approval; a current good 

standing status from the Missouri Secretary of State, which MSCI provided, 

satisfying their sole open element.  
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161. The Defendants approved MSCI’s escrow form for delivery along with 

MSCI’s associate contract to MSCI’s independent representative candidates for 

their examination and submission for review to their personal legal counsel. 

COUNT XI: PROMISSORY ESTOPPEL 

162. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-161 above. 

163. The Defendants repudiated the existence of a binding oral contract to 

provide MSCI with corporate trust services, escrow agency and the service of 

hosting escrow accounts for MSCI and its independent representative 

candidates. The Defendants refused to perform the services that their actions 

and communications reasonably lead MSCI to rely on when the Defendants were 

estopped from doing so by their promises.  

164. The Defendants approved MSCI’s escrow form for delivery along with 

MSCI’s associate contract to MSCI’s independent representative candidates and 

did other actions and made statements that caused MSCI with the full knowledge 

of the Defendants to rely on the Defendants’ performance of the escrow agency 

and to host the accounts at US BANK. 

165. MSCI relied on the Defendants conduct and statements to MSCI’s 

detriment when Defendants refused to perform and host the escrow accounts 

and perform as escrow agents for MSCI. MSCI was harmed by the Defendants 

actions, resulting in the loss of from three hundred thousand to four hundred and 

fifty thousand dollars and the inability to act on the opportunity it had planned to 

realize with the funds, including the recruitment and training of a nationwide 
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network of independent representatives and the revenue the representatives 

would create through MSCI’s entry into commerce. 

COUNT XII: FRAUDULENT MISREPRESENTATION 

166. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-165 above. 

167. The Defendants injured MSCI with a fraudulent misrepresentation material 

to their transaction of escrow agency and escrow account hosting with MSCI. 

168. The Defendant BRIAN KABBES speaking as a Vice President of US 

BANK falsely represented to MSCI that US BANK and the commercial trust 

department would not perform as escrow agent or host MSCI’s escrow accounts 

because of the “know your customer” diligence requirements of the USA Patriot 

Act had come into effect and made it impossible for the bank to perform this 

service for MSCI. 

169. The defendants LARS ANDERSON and SUSAN PAINE made this 

fraudulent misrepresentation through the defendant BRIAN KABBES by directing 

him to give this reason to MSCI’s chief executive, Sam Lipari. 

170. The defendant ANDREW CESERE directed the defendants LARS 

ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE and BRIAN KABBES not to retract this fraudulent 

misrepresentation when it had been questioned by MSCI and to maintain the 

misrepresentation in their capacity as managing speaking officers for US 

BANCORP NA, US BANK and LLC 

171. The defendants ANDREW CESERE, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE 

and BRIAN KABBES caused this fraudulent misrepresentation to be 

communicated to Sam Lipari with the intention to induce MSCI to refrain from 

 57

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  1915



enforcing US BANK’s agreement to provide MSCI escrow agency services and 

escrow account hosting. 

172. MSCI justifiably relied upon this fraudulent misrepresentation to not 

enforce US BANK’s promise with the defendant BRIAN KABBES upon learning 

that US BANK was not going to provide the escrow services. MSCI justifiably 

relied upon this fraudulent misrepresentation and did not seek a reversal of the 

decision from the St. Louis office of US BANK’s Commercial Trust department 

and instead contacted US BANCORP NA’s ANDREW CESERE, to try and 

resolve the problem, unintentionally angering LARS ANDERSON and SUSAN 

PAINE. 

173. The defendants ANDREW CESERE, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE 

BRIAN KABBES and PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, 

INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, 

LLC., UNKOWN HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER, US BANCORP NA and US BANK 

caused this fraudulent misrepresentation to be communicated to MSCI with 

knowledge of its falsity or reckless disregard as to whether it was true or false to 

the point of not checking and realizing that the increased duties of the “know your 

customer” for new account holders had not been enacted. Or, the defendants 

caused this fraudulent misrepresentation to be communicated with reckless 

disregard as to whether it was true or false to the point of not checking and 

realizing MSCI and Sam Lipari were established existing customers of US BANK 

the increased duties of the “know your customer” did not apply to. 
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174. MSCI relied on the Defendants fraudulent misrepresentation to MSCI’s 

detriment. MSCI was harmed by the Defendants actions, resulting in the loss of 

from three hundred thousand to four hundred and fifty thousand dollars and the 

inability to act on the opportunity it had planned to realize with the funds, 

including the recruitment and training of a nationwide network of independent 

representatives and the revenue the representatives would create through 

MSCI’s entry into commerce. 

COUNT XIII: VIOLATION OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 
 
175. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-174 above. 

176. The defendants ANDREW CESERE, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE 

and BRIAN KABBES were trust officers in a fiduciary relationship with MSCI that 

was established at the point BRIAN KABBES began working with Sam Lipari to 

draft MSCI’s escrow form. As trust officers in a confidential relationship they had 

the duty of providing a professional service for MSCI in good faith performance of 

that duty including keeping abreast of the current status of federal account 

reporting regulations the duty of disclosure of obstacles to US BANK’s ability to 

perform for MSCI the services it was seeking. The defendants ANDREW 

CESERE, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE, BRIAN KABBES, US BANCORP 

NA and PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, INSTITUTIONAL 

TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES, LLC., breached their 

duty of good faith performance when they failed to alert MSCI to the possibility 

US BANK would not perform the services MSCI was seeking.  
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177. The defendants ANDREW CESERE, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE 

and BRIAN KABBES breached their duty of good faith performance when they 

failed to apply the current status of the USA Patriot Act to MSCI’s requirements. 

178. The defendants ANDREW CESERE, LARS ANDERSON, SUSAN PAINE 

and BRIAN KABBES breach their duty of good faith and fair dealing when they 

misuse the USA Patriot Act to injure MSCI. 

179. MSCI was harmed by the Defendants breach of their duty of good faith 

and fair dealing, resulting in the loss of from three hundred thousand to four 

hundred and fifty thousand dollars and the inability to act on the opportunity it 

had planned to realize with the funds, including the recruitment and training of a 

nationwide network of independent representatives and the revenue the 

representatives would create through MSCI’s entry into commerce, and including 

the ability to obtain sensitive banking services required by the business model 

and future growth of MSCI. 

PRESENT AND FUTURE INJURY 

180. The actions taken by the Defendants have resulted in dramatic losses to 

MSCI its stakeholder, associates, suppliers and customers. As of 11/1/02 under 

traditional Robinson-Patman Act (Clayton Antitrust Act sec. 13) damages 

calculations, the Defendants have caused substantial short and long-term losses 

that are not recoverable due to MSCI’s injury and delay in obtaining banking 

services. According to the formula utilized under a Robinson-Patman Act 

proceeding, the first 3 months losses are $15,000,000. In the alternative, MSCI 
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business plan losses are $300,000 to $450,000 in addition to the last three 

months of MSCI’s 3-year financials, which combined, are $24,547,576. 

181. As a direct result of MSCI’s injury, its associates also are damaged due to 

the actions of the Defendants. Losses include an average of 40-60 hours per 

week participation in MSCI’s evaluation and hiring practices; in addition to due 

diligence and market evaluation activities. Sustained losses of revenue for 

associate/representatives outlined in the last three months of MSCI’s 3-year 

financials are $4,819,515. 

182. As a direct result of MSCI’s injury, its consultants and suppliers have been 

harmed by MSCI’s inability to fulfill success agreements and service contracts 

due to the actions of the Defendants. MSCI consultants and suppliers have 

performed several hundred hours in services that are contractually due and 

MSCI is unable to perform as a result of the actions of the Defendants. These 

consultants and suppliers depend on MSCI to meet its obligations and the 

actions of the Defendants are preventing MSCI from doing so.  

183. The direct result of MSCI injury and inability to perform its services to 

customers are the lost savings and additional revenue MSCI generates for its 

customers through its services. Losses to MSCI customers are directly due to the 

actions of the Defendants and are 20% of the total supplies spend health 

systems currently pay out annually. Sustained losses of revenue for MSCI health 

system customers outlined in the last three months of MSCI’s 3-year financials 

are $13,759,800. 
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184. The above claims reflect the immediate losses suffered by MSCI its 

stakeholders, associates, suppliers and customers as of 11/1/02 excluding legal 

representation. To date MSCI and its counsel have performed over 378 hours in 

legal work on the antitrust based preliminary injunction remedy. 

185. Failure to resolve this matter increases MSCI damages over time. 

Stakeholders, associates, suppliers and customers will also suffer far more in 

damages. MSCI will directly suffer $2,901,600 in revenue the 1st year, 

$27,366,576 in revenue the 2nd year and $74,798,940 in the 3rd year, as a 

combined total of $105,067,116. 

186. Failure to resolve this matter increases the damages MSCI will suffer for 

injury to associate/representatives including in the 1st year $490,320, in the 2nd 

year $5,293,315, and in the 3rd year $14,779,788 as a total combined 

$20,563,423.  

187. Failure to resolve this matter increases the damages MSCI will suffer over 

time, through harm to its suppliers which will suffer losses in the 1st year of 

$540,000, the 2nd year of $540,000 and in the 3rd year $540,000 as a total 

combined $1,620,000.   

188. Failure to resolve this matter increases the damages MSCI’s customers 

will suffer over time, including losses in the 1st year of $1,705,400, the 2nd year of 

$244,032,960 and the 3rd year of $697,486,200 as a total combined 

$943,224,560. 

189.  MSCI’s customers are healthcare systems consisting of hospital groups. 

The actions of the Defendants to preserve an anticompetitive marketplace in 
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healthcare supplies keeps in jeapordy over 2000 of the nation’s 6,500 hospitals. 

The resulting closings of some or most of these hospitals due to unsustainable 

supply costs will significantly harm public access to healthcare, increasing loss of 

life and unnecessary injury. 

PRAYER FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF 

190. Paragraphs 1 through 189 are incorporated herein by this reference as if 

fully pled herein.          

191. As a direct result of the conduct of said defendants as set forth in Counts I,  

II,  III and IV, V, VI, VII,VIII,IX,X,XI,XII, and XIII and herein, plaintiff has sustained 

actual damages in excess of $75,000.00.   Such actual damages also include, 

but are not limited to, damages for injury to business associates, including 

suppliers,partners, independent representative candidates, prospective 

customers, other lost benefits, reasonable attorney's fees, expert fees, and costs. 

192.  Plaintiff’s Sherman I & II and Clayton antitrust  claims against the 

Defendants include claims against the noncorporate “Persons” in their individual 

and official capacities: JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER, ANDREW CESERE, BRIAN 

KABBES, LARS ANDERSON, and SUSAN PAINE for constructive knowledge of 

intentional denial of services and critical facilities to injur the Plaintiff and delay or 

obstruct its entry into commerce. 

193. Because elements of malice, wantonness and oppression mingle in the 

conduct of the defendant County  and its agents, plaintiff is entitled to recover 

damages against the County for violation of plaintiff’s rights as claimed herein 
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and guaranteed under Title VII, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Kansas Act 

Against Discrimination, 42 U.S.C. § 1981,1981 (a) and 1981 (a)(b)(4). 

PRAYER FOR URGENT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

194. WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff respectfully prays for the following urgent 

injunctive prospective relief in exceptional circumstances including:  

195. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants who are the subject of causes of action based in 

criminal law and to which the above Defendant persons and entities have varying 

degrees of culpability or liability ; obtain separate and independent counsel for 

any future civil claims seeking monetary damages for the purpose of avoiding 

conflicts of interest among commonly represented parties prohibited under 

Kansas law and which may jeopardize recovery under future resulting judgments.  

196. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants cease reporting information related to MSCI under 

the USA PATRIOT Act or Anti Money Laundering laws until the Plaintiffs can 

exhaust administrative relief from the Defendants misconduct available through 

the US Office of the Comptroller of Currency. 

197. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants disclose the names of bank or trust officers that 

performed any diligence duty regarding MSCI and the names of any AML or USA 

PATRIOT Act compliance officers consulted regarding MSCI’s escrow accounts. 

198. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants provide their employees adequate training 

regarding their duties and responsibilities enforcing the USA PATRIOT Act.  
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199. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants provide their employees adequate training 

regarding their duties and responsibilities avoiding antitrust prohibited conduct in 

their non traditional banking activity including investment banking , trusts and 

escrow services. 

200. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the corporate governance organ of above named Defendants review and audit 

their relationships with healthcare companies engaging in restrictive trade 

practices, including the assistance Defendants have provided in purchasing or 

selling healthcare supplier equity to healthcare companies or corporate officers 

engaging in restrictive trade practices. 

201. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants including US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY be 

barred from publicizing a sole source, multi year or exclusive contract to provide 

healthcare supplies related to any company the Defendants own part of or 

control an interest in or to which the Defendants currently market investment 

opportunities, including venture fund and equity shares or anticipate marketing in 

the future. 

202. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants provide escrow accounts for MSCI and its 

independent representative candidates and future banking services for 

reasonable fees, equal to the fees charged other corporate customers for similar 

services for the duration of the preliminary relief order. 

203. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants provide escrow accounts and escrow agency for 

MSCI and its independent representative candidates and future banking services 
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for reasonable fees, equal to the fees charged other corporate customers for 

similar services for the duration of the preliminary relief order. 

204. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants provide a letter stating the delay and resumption of 

banking services to MSCI’s associates, customers, credit references and 

independent representative candidates.  

205. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants correct any negative reporting made to 

government or industry agencies regarding MSCI. 

206. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants reimburse the Plaintiff for all legal fees and costs 

related to obtaining injunctive relief under the Clayton Act.  

207. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants pay interest on the Plaintiff’s damages from the 

date a complaint for injunctive relief was first filed until any award is paid by the 

Defendants. 

208. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants are restrained from copying, circulating, disclosing 

or transmitting MSCI’s business information including trade secrets derived from 

MSCI’s business plan or associate program amongst employees of US 

BANCORP NA and its subsidiaries or outside persons and entities. 

209. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order mandating 

the above named Defendants participate in expedited discovery including 

depositions and document production related to the dissemination of MSCI’s 

confidential business information and trade secrets. 
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210. The Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief in the form of a court order allowing the 

Plaintiff to assist a United States Marshal in searching the premises of the 

Defendants for evidence of their violations of Misappropriation of Trade Secrets.  

REQUEST FOR ORAL HEARING 

WHEREAS the above stated facts are true based on information and 

belief of the Plaintiff MSCI, attested to by its chief executive officer Samuel Lipari 

and in a previously filed affidavit of facts, the Plaintiff respectfully requests the 

above stated injunctive relief is granted. In the event that the Defendants oppose 

the granting of the above relief or challenge the truthfulness of the above stated 

facts, the Plaintiff requests the opportunity to supply the court evidence, expert 

testimony and memorandums in support of the contested facts and the 

appropriateness of the relief requested. Additionally, the Plaintiff requests an oral 

hearing on the evidence and memorandum filed in support of or opposing the 

above requested relief.   
 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for judgment against all defendants for actual 

damages in excess of $75,000.00; injunctive relief as indicated; costs, including 

all appropriate attorney's fees, expert fees and expenses allowed; and for such 

other and further relief as the Court may deem appropriate in law and equity. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 ___________________ 

Bret D. Landrith 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

         
 
 
 

DESIGNATION OF PLACE OF TRIAL 
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Comes now plaintiff and designates Kansas City, Kansas as the place of trial. 
 
            
 ___________________ 
 Bret D. Landrith 
 
 
 

VERIFICATION 
 

STATE OF KANSAS  ) 
     )  
COUNTY OF WYANDOTTE ) 
 
 

I, Samuel Lipari, President of Medical Supply Chain, Inc., being of lawful 

age and being first duly sworn upon my oath, state that I am the Chief Executive 

Officer of the corporate plaintiff herein and that I have read the above and 

foregoing Second Amended Complaint and find the statements therein made to 

be true and correct to the best of my information, knowledge and belief.    

_________________ November___ 2002 
Samuel K. Lipari 
CEO  
Medical Supply Chain, Inc.       

        

JURY DEMAND 

 Plaintiffs renew their demand for a trial by jury on all issues so triable. 

 Respectfully submitted this 12th of November, 2002.  

 
___________________ 
Bret D. Landrith 

 Attorney for Plaintiff 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
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 I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I caused a true and correct copy 

of the foregoing to be deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, on this 12th 

day of November, 2002 addressed to: 
 
Patrick J. McLaughlin 
Mark A. Olthoff 
Attorneys for Defendants 
Suite 1500 
50 South Sixth Street 
Minneapolis, MN 55402-1498 

Fax 612-340-2643 

Certified by, 

 
______________ 
Bret D. Landrith 
Kansas Supreme Court # 20380 
Attorney for Plaintiff MSCI 
P.O. Box 17-2137 
Kansas City, KS 66117-0137 
1.816-220-4128 
1.620.231-7636 
Fax 1-734-549-6495 
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UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS 

 

FOR THE TENTH CIRCUIT 

 

 

 

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., 

 

  Plaintiff-Appellant, 

 

v. 

 

US BANCORP, NA; US BANK 

PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP; 

CORPORATE TRUST; 

INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND 

CUSTODY; MUTUAL FUND 

SERVICES, LLC.; PIPER JAFFRAY; 

ANDREW CESERE; SUSAN PAINE; 

LARS ANDERSON; BRIAN KABBES; 

UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE 

SUPPLIER, 

 

  Defendants-Appellees. 

 

 

 

 

No.  03-3342 

(D.C. No. 02-CV-2539-CM) 

(D. Kan.) 

 

 

 

ORDER AND JUDGMENT* 

 

 

 

Before McCONNELL, HOLLOWAY, and PORFILIO, Circuit Judges. 

 

 

 

 

                                                             
* This order and judgment is not binding precedent, except under the doctrines of 

law of the case, res judicata, and collateral estoppel.  The court generally disfavors the 

citation of orders and judgments; nevertheless, an order and judgment may be cited under 

the terms and conditions of 10th Cir. R. 36.3. 

FILED 

United States Court of Appeals 

Tenth Circuit 

 

NOV 8 2004 

 

PATRICK FISHER 

Clerk 
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 After examining the briefs and appellate record, this panel has determined 

unanimously to grant the partiesí request for a decision on the briefs without oral 

argument.  See Fed. R. App. P. 34(f); 10th Cir. R. 34.1(G).  The case is therefore ordered 

submitted without oral argument.   

 Medical Supply Chain, Inc. appeals from the dismissal of its complaint asserting 

claims under the Sherman Antitrust Act, the Clayton Antitrust Act, the Hobbs Act, and 

the USA Patriot Act, and various state law claims.  In dismissing the complaint, the 

district court determined that plaintiff failed to state a claim for relief under each of the 

antitrust acts and that there was no private right of action under the USA Patriot Act.  

Because the district court dismissed all of plaintiffís federal law claims, it declined to 

retain jurisdiction over appellantís state law claims.  Plaintiff argues that the district court 

erred by: 1) dismissing plaintiffís antitrust claims by imposing a heightened pleading 

standard,1 and 2) finding no private right of action under the USA Patriot Act.  We review 

de novo the district courtís grant of a motion to dismiss pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 

12(b)(6).  Sutton v. Utah State Sch. for the Deaf & Blind, 173 F.3d 1226, 1236 (10th Cir. 

1999). 

 Having reviewed the briefs, the record, and the applicable law pursuant to the 

above-mentioned standard, we conclude that the district court correctly decided this case.  

We therefore AFFIRM the challenged decision for the same reasons stated by the district 

court in its Memorandum and Order of June 16, 2003.  Appellantís Motion to Amend 

Complaint on Jurisdictional Grounds is DENIED.   

 Finally, in the district courtís order, the court reminded plaintiffís counsel of his 

obligations under Rule 11 and stated ì[p]laintiffís counsel is advised to take greater care 

                                                             
1 Appellantís brief mentions its Clayton Act and Hobbs Act claims, but appellant 

fails to include any argument as to how the district court erred in dismissing those claims.  

See Aplt. Br. at 7-8, 19.  Any issue with respect to those claims is therefore waived.  

Ambus v. Granite Bd. of Educ., 975 F.2d 1555 (10th Cir. 1992). 
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in ensuring that the claims he brings on his clientsí behalf are supported by the law and 

the facts.î  Aplt. App. Vol. II at 402.  Plaintiff then proceeded to file this appeal that is not 

supported by the law or the facts.  Accordingly, we ORDER the plaintiff and plaintiffís 

counsel to SHOW CAUSE in writing within twenty days of the date of this order why 

they, jointly or severally, should not be sanctioned for this frivolous appeal pursuant to 

Fed. R. App. P. 38.  See Braley v. Campbell, 832 F.2d 1504, 1510-11 (10th Cir. 1987) 

(discussing courtís ability to impose sanctions against clients and their attorneys under 

Fed. R. App. P. 38). 

    Entered for the Court 

 

 

 

    John C. Porfilio  

    Circuit Judge 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

KANSAS CITY KANSAS DIVISION

CASE NO.:  02-2539-CM

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC.,

Plaintiff ,
vs.

US BANCORP, NA.; US BANK, PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST,
INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND SERVICES,
LLC; US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY; JERRY GRUNDHOFER; ANDREW
CESERE; SUSAN PAINE; LARS ANDERSON; BRIAN KABBES; UNKNOWN
HEALTHCARE SUPPLIER

Defendants.

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL UNDER F.R.CIV.P. RULE 59,

"#$%#&'(#)')*+,'-./01'2",&3",&$'#('4*35",&$

"#$%#&'(#)'),$)%2+'#&'3,&%2+'#('6),+%"%&2)7'%&4*&8$%9,'),+%,(

8:;<='>:?'@A<'BCDE>@EFF'"<GEHDC'IJBBCK'8ADE>L'%>HML'@A:JNA'E@='H:J>=<CL'OP<@'3M

+D>GPE@AL',=QM'D>G';DR<='@A<'F:CC:?E>N'BC<DGE>N'<>@E@C<G'6CDE>@EFFS='":@E:>'(:P'&<?

$PEDC'*>G<P'(M)M8ETM6M')JC<'-U'":@E:>'F:P')JC<'-./01'2;<>G;<>@':F'4JGN;<>@'D>G

":@E:>'F:P')<@PEDC':>'3<>EDC':F'6P<CE;E>DPK'%>VJ>H@ET<')<CE<F, seeking relief from the

court’s order of dismissal, dated June 16th, 2003. The plaintiff seeks this relief because 1)

the plaintiff requires the state law claims remain before this court and the amended

complaint sufficiently pleads diversity jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1332(a)(1), 2)

intervening change in controlling pleading standard law, 3) Mistake of Law and Fact

regarding the plaintiff’s federal claims, 4) New evidence.
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The plaintiff sets out reasons the court should set aside its memorandum and order

dated May 16th, 2003 in what is believed is the most useful order for the court and

opposing counsel as follows:

Intervening Change in Controlling Pleading Standard Law

There has been an intervening change in controlling law invalidating the court’s

cited authorities for antitrust pleading requirements. The court at page 6 of its order states

the basis for its dismissal is that the plaintiff has failed to state a claim for relief under TV

Communications Network, Inc., 964 F. 2d at 1024, a May 19, 1992 decision used for the

first time by the court in the present order and refuted by the plaintiff with Leatherman v.

Tarrant County Narcotics Intelligence and Coordination Unit, 507 U.S. 163, 164-169

(1993) every time it is cited by the defense.

The language from TV Communications; “Although the modern pleading

requirements are quite liberal, a plaintiff must do more than cite relevant antitrust

language to state a claim for relief” cited by the defense and now the court may be the

root of the vast disparity between the parties on the validity of the antitrust claims and

similarly why 180 pages of filings supported with voluminous relevant affidavit prefaced

fact ( the founder of Medical Supply, an industry expert attested to the amended

complaint in a sworn affidavit ) referenced by footnotes in the pleading instead of filed

under local Rule 5.1(f), including a description ( See Attachment 1)  of the antitrust

activity in the hospital supply market (the secondary relevant market alleged by the

plaintiff’s claims) authored by the plaintiff’s antitrust expert witness and discovery

consultant, Harvard Law Professor Einer Elhauge were never given consideration by the

court.
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In addressing  “liberal pleading requirements”, TV Communications seems to

conform to the US Supreme Court reemphasis of Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41 in

Leatherman 507 U.S. 163 and make a special requirement for antitrust which in actuality

is a heightened pleading standard. The language is a citation to Mountain View Pharmacy

v. Abbott Labs., 630 F.2d 1383, 1387 (10th Cir.1980) supported by Klebanow v. New

York Produce Exch., 344 F.2d 294, 299 (2d Cir.1965) and the TV Communications

decision like the court’s present dismissal order even mentions Conley v. Gibson, so

superficially, they appear to be conforming to current controlling law. However, there is

no support for a heightened pleading standard for antitrust claims as an exception to

F.R.Civ. P. Rule 8 (a)(2) liberal pleading requirements under F.R.Civ. P. Rule 9.

The plaintiff’s research indicates that where circuit courts of appeal have

addressed the continuing viability of heightened pleading standards in antitrust, they have

been overturned in the wake of Leatherman 507 U.S. 163, a 1993 decision. The plaintiff

believes the Fifth Circuit is typical:

“The district court’s willingness to look behind MCM’s allegations because

it believed MCM had not alleged facts to support the complaint's market
definition is in considerable tension with our recent decision Hammes v.
AAMCO Transmissions, Inc., 33 F.3d 774, 778, 782 (7th Cir.1994).
There, we explained that judicial attempts to apply a heightened pleading
standard in antitrust cases had been "scotched" by the Supreme Court's
decision in Leatherman v. Tarrant County Narcotics Intelligence and
Coordination Unit, 507 U.S. 163 (1993), and that after Leatherman, an

antitrust plaintiff need not include "the particulars of his claim" to

survive a motion to dismiss. 33 F.3d at 782. It is instead sufficient for
the plaintiff to include in its complaint only "a short and plain statement of
the claim" showing an entitlement to relief. FED .R. CIV. P. 8(a)(2); see
Leatherman, 507 U.S. at ----, 113 S.Ct. at 1163; Hammes, 33 F.3d at
778… [I]t is not inconceivable to us that MCM could prove a set of facts

supporting the relevant market definition alleged in its complaint. Conley
v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46, 78 S.Ct. 99, 101-02, 2 L.Ed.2d 80 (1957).
It was therefore erroneous for the district court . . . to dismiss MCM's
section 1 claim on this ground. Id. at 976-77 (emphasis added).” Apani
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Southwest, Inc., Plaintiff-Appellant, v. Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc., No.
01-11026 ( 5th Circuit, August 12, 2002).

The plaintiff believes the Tenth Circuit decision in Currier v. Doran, 242 F.3d 905

(10th Cir., 2001), a later case than the court’s authority and cited treatise now controls

heightened pleading standards for non official immunity and fraud claims in this

jurisdiction after Leatherman 507 U.S. 163. Currier v. Doran, 242 F.3d 905 (10th Cir.,

2001). When faced with a 1998 decision by the US Supreme Court again reemphasizing

the liberal pleading requirements and destroying exceptions in Crawford-El v. Britton,

118 S. Ct. 1584 (1998), the Tenth Circuit explains how it had in the past responded to

Leatherman 507 U.S. 163 and found a viable exception limited to a special issue in civil

rights cases, that of official immunity (U.S. Bank at one time was immune to Sherman 1

and 2 claims but the immunity ended in 1999 with the Graham-Leach-Bliliey Act, and

motive is not a requirement of monopolization under Sherman 1 or 2 ).  At page 914 of

Currier, the 10th circuit explains: “Our reasons for those unanimous rulings apply with

equal force to the imposition of a clear and convincing burden of proof in cases alleging

unconstitutional motive.” At page 916-7, The Currier court resolves that its heightened

pleading standards do not survive Crawford-El Britton, stating: “Like the D.C. Circuit’s

heightened proof requirement, this court's heightened pleading requirement finds no

support in the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and constitutes a deviation from the

notice-pleading standards of Rule 8. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 8(a) (‘A pleading which sets

forth a claim for relief . . . shall contain . . . a short and plain statement of the claim

showing that the pleader is entitled to relief . . .’); Fed. R. Civ. P. 9(b) (‘Malice, intent,

knowledge, and other condition of mind of a person may be averred generally.’)” and

returns to the liberal pleading requirement quoting"[A] complaint should not be
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dismissed for failure to state a claim unless it appears beyond doubt that the plaintiff can

prove no set of facts in support of his claim which would entitle him to relief." Conley,

355 U.S. at 45-46.

The court in its present decision overtly imposes a heightened pleading standard

on the plaintiff that is not saved by Perington Wholesale, Inc. v. Burger King Corp., 631

F.2d 1369 (10th Cir. 1979) and Klebanow v. N.Y. Produce Exch., 344 F.2d 294, 299 (2d

Cir. 1965), both being earlier cases cited for their now nonconforming rule requiring

increased specificity and fact in an antitrust pleading. While this court’s dismissal of

Medical Supply’s claims gives lip service to Conley, 355 U.S. at 45-46 in its order on

page 3, it is clear when it defines Medical Supply and the relevant markets, not as the

plaintiff has, but instead as the defense has attempted to that this court has “obviously

misapprehended a party’s position on the facts or the law, or the court has mistakenly

decided issues outside of those the parties presented for determination….” Cirulis v.

Unum Corp. Severance Plan, 204 F.R.D. 677, 678 (D. Kan. 2001) (Murgia, J.). Medical

Supply has consistently stated Leatherman 507 U.S. 163 controls and the defense has not

made a counter argument responsive to Leatherman.

The amended complaint gave notice of the gravamen of Medical Supply’s claims

and the entitlement to relief (the sole requirement of Conley). The defense was able to

(and required) to investigate the supporting facts, including the footnoted articles. It

appears the defense did so and studiously avoided direct challenges to the plaintiff’s

description of conduct between US Bancorp NA, its employees and alter egos and the

healthcare supplier companies it controlled to maintain a monopoly market in healthcare

supplies (the defendants possessed the business plan discussed in the complaint and never
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faulted the plaintiff for a missing geographic element-clearly the hospital supply market

in the plan and in the complaint facts and damages section was for USA as a whole). The

conduct described in the complaint included contracts between U.S. Bancorp N.A. et al

and the healthcare suppliers alleged to have dominant positions in the hospital supply

market, the complaint’s secondary market. The facts included with the complaint also

described conduct documented showing U.S. Bancorp through its entities and employees

committed antitrust prohibited conduct in the primary relevant market-capitalization of

healthcare technology companies, and leveraged its monopoly in related markets to hurt

healthcare technology companies, including Medical Supply.

Without following Conley, the court erroneously failed to accept the possibility

that the plaintiff could state a claim. The court “mistakenly decided issues outside of

those the parties presented for determination” (Cirulis v. Unum 204 F.R.D. 677,678)

including the relevant market definition, diversity jurisdiction of state law claims,

amendments to claims before leave to amend has been applied for and amended causes of

action framed and before the plaintiff could include evidence obtained without the aid of

discovery-including the identity of the unknown healthcare supplier and the details of its

relationship to US Bancorp NA. There is more to Conley than the sentence the court

quotes in the fashion of pre 1993 authorities as an introduction to a heightened pleading

standard for antitrust. This dismissal stops the plaintiff from obtaining discovery. This

goes against Conley:

“The respondents also argue that the complaint failed to set forth specific

facts to support its general allegations of discrimination and that its
dismissal is therefore proper. The decisive answer to this is that the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure do not require a claimant to set out in
detail the facts upon which he bases his claim. To the contrary, all the
Rules require is ‘a short and plain statement of the claim’8 that will give
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the defendant fair notice of what the plaintiff’s claim is and the grounds

upon which it rests. The illustrative forms appended to the Rules plainly
demonstrate this. Such simplified ‘notice pleading’ is made possible by

the liberal opportunity for discovery and the other pretrial

procedures established by the Rules to disclose more precisely the

basis of both claim and defense and to define more narrowly the

disputed facts and issues. Following the simple guide of Rule 8(f) that
‘all pleadings shall be so construed as to do substantial justice,’ we have

no doubt that petitioners’ complaint adequately set forth a claim and gave

the respondents fair notice of its basis. The Federal Rules reject the
approach that pleading is a game of skill in which one misstep by counsel
may be decisive to the outcome and accept the principle that the purpose
of pleading is to facilitate a proper decision on the merits. Maty v.
Grasselli Chemical Co., 303 U.S. 197, 58 S.Ct. 507, 82 L.Ed. 745.”

[emphasis added]Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41 at 47-48 (1957).

Plaintiff sufficiently pleads diversity jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1332(a)(1)

Under the amended complaint jurisdiction and venue statement, ¶ 16 gives notice

to the court and the defense that the defendant entities are the subsidiaries of a Delaware

corporation, headquartered in Minnesota. ¶ 12 identifies that Medical Supply Chain, Inc.

entered into contract with the defendants in Kansas. ¶ 17 gives notice that all violations

alleged are related to interstate commerce. ¶¶ 133 – 179 identify defendant individuals

and entities in violations of duties to Medical Supply complained of under Kansas state

law based claims. ¶¶ 180 – 188 identify injury in excess of $75,000.00. The complaint

names individual defendants that are not residents of Kansas or Missouri.1 The amended

complaint gave notice to the court and defendants of federal diversity jurisdiction over

the plaintiff’s state law claims. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(a)(1), "[t] he district courts

shall have original jurisdiction of all civil actions where the matter in controversy

"#$%#&'(#)*+,&#'(-+*%.#)/+#0+(1*2*%-+3#*%45%6&*7(#+(1*()8#&'(#01-*%&*))#9'/#9-,#:(%*(:#&'(

+(,*:(%6(#-::+(,,(,#;3#&'(#:()(%,(#,/5.'&#-%#/+:(+#+(<5*+*%.#&'(#:()(%,(#&/#0+/7*:(#&'(2=

>'(#6/5+&#:(%*(:#&'(#/+:(+=#>'(#4/*%&#0-+&*(,#01-%%*%.#6/%)(+(%6(#+(0/+&#)*%-113#+(7(-1(:

&'(#:()(%:-%&,#?-*%(#-%:#@%:(+,/%#-+(#*%#A*6'*.-%#-%:#:()(%:-%&,#B(,(+(#-%:

C+5%:'/)(+#-+(#*%#A*%%(,/&-=
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exceeds the sum or value of $75,000, exclusive of interest and costs, and is between

citizens of different States." The plaintiff’s jurisdictional statement gives notice of

diversity sufficient to meet F.R.Civ.P. 8 pleading requirements under Leatherman v.

Tarrant County Narcotics Intelligence and Coordination Unit, 507 U.S. 163, 164-169

(1993).

The amended complaint jurisdiction and venue statement, ¶ 18 gives notice to the

court and the defense that the defendant entities and individuals are subject to federal

jurisdiction over the plaintiff’s pursuit of civil remedies to criminal actions under Kansas

state law.  Smith v. Welch, 265 Kan. 868 stands for the rule in Kansas that defendants

can be held liable in civil action for criminal conduct. Smith v. Welch cites Taiwo v. Vu,

249 Kan. 585. Both cases interpret criminal conduct as outrageous conduct in tort. The

defendants were in a fiduciary relationship (from the trust department relationship)

imputing a duty not to act criminally against Medical Supply Chain, Inc.  ¶¶110-121

describe the claim alleged by plaintiff that the defendants violated The Hobbs Act

prohibition against racketeering by preventing MSCI’s entry into commerce under color

of official right in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1951(b)(2). ¶¶130-132 describe a criminal

statute and conduct by the defendants meeting the elements of Section 802 of the USA

PATRIOT Act which creates a federal crime of "domestic terrorism" that broadly extends

to "acts dangerous to human life that are a violation of the criminal laws" if they "appear

to be intended…to influence the policy of a government by intimidation or coercion," and

if they "occur primarily within the territorial jurisdiction of the United States."
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Mistake of Law and Fact regarding the plaintiff’s federal claims

1. Section 1

The court is in error in dismissing the plaintiff’s section 1 claims in reliance on

TV Communications’ heightened standard of pleading, overturned by Leatherman in the

US Supreme Court and Currier v. Doran (See supra). The court mistakes fact. Medical

Supply, Inc. is a business that empowers competition through free and open market

access for hospital supplies, as an electronic marketplace. In order to enter this market

after being stopped in April 2002 by Piper Jaffray, it created a training program to get the

initial capitalization for entry in the market to sell hospital supplies, getting stopped in

October by U.S. Bank at Piper Jaffray’s direction. Unknown Healthcare Supplier (about

which a tremendous amount of facts are in the complaint) is alleged to conspire with U.S.

Bancorp N.A. (the US Bancorp subsidiaries are treated as a single firm under

Copperweld).

The amended complaint in alleging a conspiracy between the named defendants

and the Unknown Healthcare Supplier to control prices in the relevant markets of

healthcare technology company capitalization and hospital supplies, stated a Sherman 1

per se offense of boycott2 in most circuits. The conspiracy is alleged to control both

" “Defendants through their financial institutions act as a supplier of financial services to
companies in the healthcare industry. Defendants own and control other supplier
companies including medical device manufacturers, biotechnology producers, healthcare
distributors and health system end users. Defendants have conspired with, aided and
abetted and participated in the financing of efforts to limit or prevent competition in
healthcare supply. Defendants have prevented MSCI from entering the healthcare supply
market by refusing to act as a supplier of escrow accounts at any price to MSCI. Such
conduct constitutes a contract, combination or conspiracy in restraint of trade in per se
violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1.” #$%&'(&))*+,-./'0/0

12.3$%&'( pg. 39, para 86
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relevant markets and related markets leveraged for power in the two relevant markets.

The result is alleged to be unreasonable, resulting in high prices, even in the death of

consumers. The 10th circuit rulings requiring the element of price manipulation for a per

se offense of boycott might indicate that on these facts alone, a rule of reason test-shifting

the burden of proof to the defendants, might be proper (A burden the defense has never

accepted or shouldered). However, it is obvious from additional facts in the plaintiff’s

amended complaint that US Bancorp NA was setting prices in the market for healthcare

company equities (even committing securities fraud through illegally manipulating listed

prices in “laddering” and “marking the close” fraud schemes) and that US Bancorp NA

was advertising exclusive anticompetitive contracts for its affiliate healthcare suppliers,

made with its affiliate healthcare distributors and returning higher profits from this

anticompetitive advantage than other nonaffiliated healthcare supplier public offerings

which would be properly cause the Tenth Circuit to find the defendants in violation of 15

USC §1, for per se naked restraint of trade through boycott or concerted refusal to deal.

2. Section 2

The court has made a mistake of law in requiring a heightened antitrust pleading

standard after Leatherman and Currier, which provide intervening change in the court’s

cited authorities. The court has made a mistake of law in the application of Copperweld,

failing to address defendant Unknown Healthcare Supplier the independent conspirator

(meeting Copperweld’s requirement) and the application of In re Indep. Serv. Orgs. ,

where the plaintiff’s amended complaint has plead command and control, not mere

coordination. The court has made a mistake in fact and law regarding the plaintiff’s

section 2 claims. The court misses the plaintiff has both monopolization and attempted
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monopolization claims, the court misses the Sheman 2 denial of essential facilities claims

altogether.

The court indicates it interprets the plaintiff’s complaint as a claim of combination

or conspiracy to monopolize, then applies three theories of recovery and concludes the

plaintiff has failed to state a claim under § 2. The plaintiff observes that 1) the court

quotes the complaint without recognizing the elements the court states are missing,

though the elements are contained even in the cited text, 2) the court appears to be overly

reliant on “combination and conspiracy” as two synonyms in a misunderstanding of their

separate and distinct meaning and the controlling case law for our jurisdiction and the US

Supreme Court where a single firm (often a combination) refusal to deal is a Sherman

Act monopolization or attempted monopolization violation, 3) the court appears to be

omitting from consideration actions of the defendants against similar healthcare

technology companies where government regulators found after an investigation and

hearing that the defendants were guilty of violations that are antitrust prohibited conduct (

The Tunney Act relieves the plaintiff of the burden to prove the elements in the present

case.) The court also confuses the relevant market and in raising sua sponte a criticism of

failing to have a defined geographic market, the court has missed in its research the case

law regarding circumstances where geography is not a required component of the

relevant market.

The Plaintiff’s amended complaint charges the defendants with violations of 15

U.S.C. § 2 both as a combination or single firm refusing to deal (¶ 93 combination to

exclude Medical Supply horizontally in refusing to deal (per se / no defense) and ¶ 94

vertically, (the rule of reason / burden shifts to defense to prove competition not harmed);
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and as separate entities acting in concert (¶ 96 and ¶ 97) through conspiracy to exclude

Medical Supply horizontally (per se / no defense). The purpose of the defendants’

conduct is alleged to be both 15 U.S.C. § 2 monopolization (intent presumed) and 15

U.S.C. § 2 attempted monopolization (specific intent required).

The court’s dismissal order defines monopolization and attempted monopolization

consistent with the plaintiff’s complaint by quoting 15 U.S.C. § 2 and using two

appropriate cases; United States v. E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., 351 U.S. 377, 389-90

(1956), Instructional Sys. Dev. Corp. v. Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co., 817 F. 2d 639, 649 (10th

Cir. 1987) that emphasize acquiring or maintaining monopoly power to “preclude” other

firms from competing. Sherman Section 2, Dismissal Order, page 7-9

Extortion, obstruction, misuse of official reporting, “dirty tricks” are all

recognized terms for antitrust prohibited behaviors in federal case law. When the court

uses these terms in quotation from the plaintiff’s complaint, the court is acknowledging

the plaintiff has pled elements of section 2 prohibited conduct. The complaint deals with

the investment banking and healthcare industries where more specific terms of art for

section 2 prohibited conduct exist. “Laddering” quoted here by the court is the prohibited

conduct of fixing prices of NYSE and NASDQ shares as they are trading on the market.

This is done by creating contracts to presale a company’s stock before it goes public with

buyers, rewarding them with kickbacks in the form of free shares in return for securing

their illegal commitment to buy up large lots at specific times once the shares are trading

to manipulate the prices of the shares. The amended complaint also identified and

“marking the close” another way the defendants used their power to manipulate equity

prices. This of course is describing price manipulation in the primary relevant market
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(capitalization of healthcare entities) that Medical Supply has claimed. Medical Supply

has alleged that these illegal contracts exist in its amended complaint and identified them

for discovery in the plaintiff’s case management conference report. Medical Supply was

excluded from the relevant market for healthcare capitalization. The defendants were

alleged to control prices.

In the secondary relevant market, hospital supplies, the plaintiff used the

defendants’ adverse omission by US Bancorp Piper Jaffray’s healthcare market analyst,

identifying and describing the $23 billion dollar “inefficiency” an economic term used in

antitrust law for higher prices than a free market would produce. The complaint in detail

describes the many ways the defendants prevented new entrants to the market (including

Medical Supply Chain, Inc.) and purchased existing competitors to have a market

monopoly for the goal of preserving the profit margin of the defendants’ healthcare

supplier affiliate companies. The possibility of proving these facts must be regarded by

the court as high since the amended complaint says the defendants advertised their

anticompetitive contracts and other monopoly advantages to sell stock.

The court has erred in failing to recognize intervening change in authority

regarding the pleading standard for Sherman Section 2 attempted monopolization where

specific intent must ultimately be proved at trial. The plaintiff’s amended complaint

adequately pleads general and specific intent for both monopolization and attempted

monopolization. As stated above in Currier v. Doran:

“Like the D.C. Circuit's heightened proof requirement, this court's heightened
pleading requirement finds no support in the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and
constitutes a deviation from the notice-pleading standards of Rule 8. See Fed. R. Civ. P.
8(a) (‘A pleading which sets forth a claim for relief . . . shall contain . . . a short and plain
statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief . . . .’); Fed. R. Civ. P.

9(b) (‘Malice, intent, knowledge, and other condition of mind of a person may be
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averred generally.’)” [emphasis added ] Currier v. Doran, 242 F.3d 916-17 (10th Cir.,
2001),

The court fails to recognize or address the plaintiff’s Sherman 2 claims for denial

of an essential facility. These are independent of the similar Clayton 2 claims and there

has been no specific challenge to them in the defendant’s motions.

The plaintiff has used Copperweld Corp. v. Independence Tube Corp.’s rule that

subsidiaries cannot be conspirators but instead must be treated as a single economic actor

in previous motions to explain to the court why U.S. Bancorp NA and its subsidiaries

U.S. Bank and U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray are a single firm in a refusal to deal complaint.

The section 2 claims do not fail because there is no conspiracy (see below the relevance

of Aspen Skiing). The Tenth Circuit has examined the coordinated actions of subsidiaries

in Indep. Serv. Orgs. Antitrust Litig., 85 F. Supp 2d, 1130, 1149 (D. Kan. 2000). This

decision does not contradict Tenth Circuit and Supreme Court authority on this issue

because it finds coordination without intentional concerted effort by the master

corporation. The amended complaint pleads command and control, stating U.S.

Bancorp’s subsidiaries are alter egos of U.S. Bancorp N.A., conspiring as a single firm

with the separate Unknown Healthcare provider. This has been repeatedly stated by the

plaintiff in subsequent motions and Copperweld has been cited. The relevant portion

controlling this issue is:

“Although this Court has not previously addressed the question, there can be little doubt
that the operations of a corporate enterprise organized into divisions must be judged as
the conduct of a single actor. The existence of an unincorporated division reflects no
more than a firm's decision to adopt an organizational division of labor. A division within
a corporate structure pursues the common interests of the whole rather than interests
separate from those of the corporation itself; a business enterprise establishes divisions to
further its own interests in the most efficient manner.” Copperweld Corporation v.
Independence Tube Corporation, 467 U.S. 752, 104 S.Ct. 2731, 81 L.Ed.2d 628 (1984)
Pg. 770
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The Tenth Circuit follows this rule in Blankenship v. Herzfeld stating:

“The Supreme Court has held that distinct legal units may not evade antitrust liability
under section 1 solely because they are commonly owned. See, e.g., United States v.
Yellow Cab Co., 332 U.S. 218, 227, 67 S.Ct. 1560, 1565, 91 L.Ed. 2010 (1947).
Blankenship v. Herzfeld, 721 F.2d 306 at pg. 309 (C.A.10 (Okl.), 1983).”

United States v. Yellow Cab Co. states the rule as:

“And so in this case, the common ownership and control of the various corporate
appellees are impotent to liberate the alleged combination and conspiracy from the
impact of the Act. The complaint charges that the restraint of interstate trade was not only
effected by the combination of the appellees but was the primary object of the
combination. The theory of the complaint, to borrow language from United States v.
Reading Co., 253 U.S. 26, 57, 40 S.Ct. 425, 432, 64 L.Ed. 760, is that 'dominating power'
over the cab operating companies 'was not obtained by normal expansion to meet the
demands of a business growing as a result of superior and enterprising management, but
by deliberate, calculated purchase for control.' If that theory is borne out in this case by
the evidence, coupled with proof of an undue restraint of interstate trade, a plain violation
of the Act has occurred. United States v. Crescent Amusement Co., 323 U.S. 173, 189, 65
S.Ct. 254, 262, 89 L.Ed. 160.” United States v. Yellow Cab Co, 332 U.S. 218 pg. 227-8,
67 S.Ct. 1560, 91 L.Ed. 2010 (1947)

The defendants as a single firm (excluding Unknown Healthcare Supplier) refused

to provide escrow accounts like the monopolist ski company refused access to the

essential facility of the inter mountain ski lift ticket called the “all Aspen Ski pass,” and

also refused to accept the equally valuable ticket created by Aspen Highlands Skiing

Corporation.

“To compete with defendant's three-mountain ticket, plaintiff developed an ‘Adventure

Pack.’ This was a six day ticket designed to permit skiers to ski three of the six days at

defendant's mountains. To do this, plaintiff included vouchers in the packet that
theoretically were negotiable at defendant's ticket windows. Although there was evidence
that these vouchers were guaranteed by a bank, and easier to accept than checks or charge
cards, defendant refused to accept them.” Aspen Highlands Skiing Corp. v. Aspen Skiing
Co., 738 F.2d 1509, 1522-23 (10th Cir.1984).

As the statement of facts allege, Medical Supply Inc. tried to obtain capitalization

from Piper Jaffray, when that failed, it created its own capitalization product or
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instrument (the escrow accounts). US Bank agreed to provide them. Later Brian Kabbes

called and said that US Bank’s trust department would not be providing escrow accounts

because of increased costs due to the “know your customer provisions of the USA

PATRIOT Act.” This is exactly the pretext the jury found was used by Aspen Skiing Co.

to make Aspen Highland Skiing Co.’s independent ski pass fail:

“After plaintiff modified its Adventure Pack to eliminate any of defendant’s objections,

(references omitted), defendant raised the price of its single-day ticket to $22.00, thereby
making it unprofitable for plaintiff to market its Adventure Pack (references omitted).
        We hold that there was sufficient evidence for the jury to conclude that defendant's
refusal to market a four-mountain ticket, considered together with its other conduct,
showed its intent to create or maintain a monopoly and thus a violation of Sec. 2. ” .
Aspen Skiing Co., 738 F.2d 1509, at 1523 (10th Cir.1984)

The district court jury found the Aspen Skiing Co. was guilty of a restraint of

trade in violation of 15 USC §2 of the Sherman Antitrust Act. The 10th circuit upheld this

ruling.  The Supreme Court’s opinion closes by emphasizing this particular conduct as

the basis for upholding the Tenth circuit decision:

“The refusal to accept the Adventure Pack coupons [Highland’s self created Ski

Passes] in exchange for daily tickets was apparently motivated entirely by a decision to
avoid providing any benefit to Highlands even though accepting the coupons would have
entailed no cost to Ski Co. itself, would have provided it with immediate benefits, and
would have satisfied its potential customers. Thus the evidence supports an inference that
Ski Co. was not motivated by efficiency concerns and that it was willing to sacrifice
short-run benefits and consumer goodwill in exchange for a perceived long-run impact on
its smaller rival.” Aspen Highlands Skiing Corp. v. Aspen Skiing Co., 472 U.S. at pg. 611-
612.

In Aspen Skiing, the Tenth circuit, was convinced of the existence of an illegal

bottleneck in restraint of trade. The factors used by the court are identical to those plead

by Medical Supply in the amended complaint: 1) control of the healthcare technology

company capitalization market through US Bancorp’s subsidiary Piper Jaffray, the

control of the hospital supplier market through US Bancorp’s underwriting, ownership

and control of its affiliate healthcare product and service suppliers and the hospital
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distribution market through the affiliate dominant GPO’s. The nature of the control was

such that if US Bancorp refused to provide venture funding or escrow accounts for

Medical Supply to create its own venture funds or refused to agree to a Kansas District

Court order to not file a malicious USA PATRIOT ACT suspicious activity report,

Medical Supply cannot compete in the market for providing hospitals medical supplies,

2) Medical Supply could not meet the economy of scale, regulatory and asset

requirements to provide or create its own bank and trust department or survive the years

such adventure would take where it might be safe from US Bank’s malicious use of the

USA PATRIOT Act, and of course, when Medical Supply acts as the escrow agent, the

economic utility of having a secure neutral escrow agent is entirely absent, causing

Medical Supply its independent representative prospects. 3) US Bank does not deny it

denied the use of the facility to the plaintiff. US Bank admits it denied the escrow

accounts. Medical Supply has the denial on tape and the USA PATRIOT Act reason

given. 4) Medical Supply gave evidence that the USA PATRIOT Act did not apply and

that the “know your customer” provision cited by US Bank’s trust entity and its officers

as adding costs making the provision of the escrow facilities to Medical Supply

unfeasible was in fact false, that the USA PATRIOT Act reason was a lie and that it was

used as a pretext to commit a violation of antitrust law.

“First, there is no dispute that defendant controlled three of the four skiing

mountains in the Aspen area. If defendant refuses to market a multi-day multi-mountain
ticket with plaintiff, plaintiff cannot compete in the market for such tickets. Yet,
defendant through its control of three of the four mountains can continue to offer such a
ticket. We believe this is sufficiently analogous to Terminal Railroad to satisfy the
element of control of an essential facility. Second, there was evidence concerning the
difficulty of developing another ski area in Aspen due to regulatory restrictions, and
delays, and the expense and time required to develop new mountains. [record references
omitted]Third, there is no dispute that defendant denied the use of the "facility" to
plaintiff. Defendant admits that it refused to continue to market a joint ticket with
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plaintiff. [record references omitted] Fourth, there was evidence that it was feasible for
defendant to provide access to the "facility." Prior to this litigation, plaintiff and
defendant had marketed a joint multi-day multi-mountain ticket. There was testimony
that defendant refused to accept coupons from plaintiff's Adventure Pack, although the
coupons were at least as convenient as checks and credit cards.” [record references

omitted] Aspen Skiing Co., 738 F.2d 1509, at Pp. 1521-2 (10th Cir.1984)

       “ We are not convinced by defendant's arguments based on its restrictive analysis

that this is not a case of a vertical integration bottleneck. The substance of an essential

facilities case was made.” Id.

Section 2 of the Sherman Act prohibits a monopolist's unilateral action, like

Kodak's refusal to deal, if that conduct harms the competitive process in the absence of a

legitimate business justification. See Eastman Kodak Co. v. Image Technical Serv., Inc.,,

504 U.S. at 483 n. 32, 112 S.Ct. at 2090 n. 32 (citing Aspen Skiing, 472 U.S. at 602, 105

S.Ct. at 2857). Unilateral refusals to deal often concern an "essential" facility. See Otter

Tail Power Co. v. United States, 410 U.S. 366, 93 S.Ct. 1022, 35 L.Ed.2d 359 (1973). In

Alaska Airlines, Inc. v. United Airlines, Inc., 948 F.2d 536, 543 (9th Cir.1991), the court

defined the essential facilities doctrine, generally, as: imposing "liability when one firm,

which controls an essential facility, denies a second firm reasonable access to a product

or service that the second firm must obtain to compete with the first." 948 F.2d at 542. A

facility is "essential" if it is otherwise unavailable and cannot be "reasonably or

practically duplicated." Anaheim v. Southern California Edison Co., 955 F.2d 1373, 1380

(9th Cir.1992). While in the plaintiff’s amended complaint, the escrow accounts are

claimed to be an essential facility, US Bancorp’s Sec. 2 refusal to deal liability does not

depend on the essential facility doctrine. Medical Supply stated the escrow accounts as a

custom financial instrument prepared to provide a partial secured interest for a line of

credit to be provided by US Bank were in fact the essential facility conceptualized in the
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Fortner cases cited by the plaintiff in its pleadings. See United States Steel Corporation

et al., Petitioners, v. Fortner Enterprises, Inc. 97 S.Ct. 861, 51 L.Ed.2d 80

Fortner resolved Sherman 1 and 2 findings of liability against United States Steel

Corp. and its affiliate "Credit Corp.,” a wholly owned subsidiary, which provides

financing to customers of the US Steel Home Division in order to promote sales. The

Supreme Court in describing US Steel and Credit as petitioners stated: “Although their

common ownership and control make it appropriate to regard the two as a single seller,

they sell two separate products prefabricated houses and credit.” Id. Pg. 614. The trial

court originally found in summary judgment against Fortner, dismissing the Sherman 1

and 2 claims. This decision was overturned in Fortner Enterprises v. United States Steel

Co., 394 U.S. 495, 89 S.Ct. 1252, 22 L.Ed.2d 495 (Fortner I), remanding the case back

for a directed verdict. When the petitioners returned the case to the Supreme Court, the

central issue was the district court’s findings related to the “unique character of the credit

extended to Fortner” by Credit Corp. While the non-price predation in the Fortner cases

consisted of illegal tying violations of Sherman 1 and 2, Medical Supply has not yet made

tying based claims against the defendants. The liability would nevertheless be the same if

the financial instrument is found to be unique.“…a unique and not insubstantial amount

of interstate commerce in the tied product was restrained and the Credit Corporation did

possess sufficient economic power or leverage to effect such restraint." Id., at 1602.

Ultimately Credit Court was found by the Supreme Court to not have provided a unique

service in the terms of credit it extended to US Steel Home Division customers. However,

the factors the court stated would make the credit service or a financial instrument unique
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do apply to the escrow accounts created by Medical Supply and US Bank’s Corporate

Trust entity, part of each escrow account were to be a secured interest for a line of credit.

In US Steel v Fortner the Supreme Court quoted a commentator in on its decision in the

earlier Fortner I to reiterate the standard for a unique financial instrument: "The Court's

uniqueness test is adequate to identify a number of situations in which this type of

foreclosure is likely to occur. Whenever there are some buyers who find a seller's product

uniquely attractive, and are therefore willing to pay a premium above the price of its

nearest substitute, the seller has the opportunity to impose a tie to some other good.’

Note, The Logic of Foreclosure: Tie-In Doctrine after Fortner v. U. S. Steel, 79 Yale L.J.

86, 93-94 (1969).” United States Steel v. Fortner 97 S.Ct. n14. This uniquely attractive

product is exactly what the statement of facts in the plaintiff’s complaints is describing

when it explains how US Bank was decided upon for the corporate accounts3 and later

specifically for the escrow accounts4. US Bancorp’s Piper Jaffray dominated the market

# “On or about 3/12/2002, and following 3 years of R&D Sam Lipari, President and CEO

of Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (MSCI) began a process of selecting a corporate bank for
the rollout of its healthcare supply chain empowerment program that produces significant
benefits to healthcare and its patients. He sought input from associates and advisors
concerning selection of an appropriate national bank that would be capable of a full range
of corporate banking services, including nation wide checking, escrow services, short and
long term credit facilities, receivables financing and international clearing of transactions
between thousands of health systems and their suppliers. Several national banks were
evaluated but US BANCORP NA was selected because it also had an investment arm
called US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY that had targeted healthcare customers and
participated as underwriter and funds manager for pre IPO healthcare manufacturers and
service providers and US BANCORP NA acted as underwriter for corporate bonds of
healthcare companies.” Plaintiff’s Amended Complaint, Pg. 16, para 36.

$%%&'()*+,%-.//,0%+12)*.,+2'(%23)4%'4*156%*1)2'1)+%)7%23'%+8'7('(%*58/,+)729 “If other

financial institutions have the required presence of bank branches and familiarity with
MSCI candidates in several states, along with commercial trust departments capable of
acting as escrow agent for accounts that provide fractional secured interests for a bank
commercial loan line of credit, they were not present with the capability of putting the
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for financing healthcare technology companies. The founders of Medical Supply stated

they chose US Bank for this reason and when Piper Jaffray refused to return any

communications or to provide accounts receivable financing and other venture funding

products and services, Medical Supply chose US Bank for its plan to create its own “ski

pass” ala Aspen Skiing by utilizing escrow accounts and accepting prepayment by its

independent representatives to capitalize its entry into the hospital supply market where

its electronic marketplace would compete with the existing oligarchy monopolizing the

commodities and services every hospital in North America purchases. Medical Supply

could not have known that US Bancorp NA was closely affiliated with the existing

distribution oligopolists, even to the point of exchanging directors, or that in revelations

since October 2002 the dominant distributor had equity ownership in many of the

healthcare supplier companies whose commodities and services Medical Supply would

be seeking to sell to hospitals and that these contracts were in large part secured by a

Piper Jaffray officer on the board of directors of Premier and that US Bancorp NA

through its subsidiaries provided stock in those healthcare supplier companies to the

distributor GPO’s Premier, Novation and their officers in return for those exclusive

anticompetitive contracts.

B. Clayton Act (Count II)

Medical Supply Chain, Inc. created its associate program to use independent

representative payments in advance as capital to fund the entry into the hospital supply

arrangement together in Blue Springs or Independence MO.” [Emphasis Added]

#$%&'(&))*+,-./'0/0,12.3$%&'( pg. 38, para 85
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market5 of a web based electronic marketplace that took over three years of R&D to

create and is years ahead of Cerner’s EDI or the mainframe based marketplaces of its

existing GPO/US Bancorp captive competitors. Medical Supply is a next generation

distributor6 of COMMODITIES, HOSPITAL SUPPLIES,7 the items the GAO ( See

Attachment 2) says hospitals currently pay too much for.

5 “The Defendants discovered that MSCI had developed a workable plan to capitalize its

entry into commerce as a healthcare electronic marketplace and threatened the
monopoly pricing of healthcare supplies and the equity prices of the Defendants venture
fund and underwriting capitalization efforts.” Motion for Relief From Patriot Act

Reporting,Pg. 8 Para 17

" “Defendant US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY became attracted to the profit
opportunity in internet delivery of medical supplies to hospital health systems
approximately 5 years after Sam Lipari started developing software to order and track
medical supplies from pc computers dialing up internet connections and exchanging data
with hospital mainframe computers. In February of 2000, US BANCORP PIPER
JAFFRAY released a study it had commissioned that concluded similarly to Sam Lipari’s

analysis that 13% of what US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY then estimated to be $83
billion dollars spent annually could be eliminated if supplies were purchased through the
internet. US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY’s Senior Analyst Daren Marhula estimated

$23 billion of the total spent on medical supplies is pure process and procurement costs,
and about half of this cost could be eliminated by ordering supplies over the Internet.
Roughly half of hospital supplies, for instance, are for routine purposes, such as office,
janitorial and medical items that can easily be purchased through the Internet. However,
US BANCORP PIPER JAFFRAY had failed to realize the implication of strategic
management when the purchaser was able to utilize artificial intelligence to optimize
purchase negotiations and quantity delivery throughout the complete supply chain and
backed companies with business models incapable of creating the value and cost savings
of Medical Supply Chain incorporated in the same year to provide a commercial platform
for Sam Lipari’s research and development work.” Plaintiff’s Amended Complaint Pg.

11, para 27.

7 The Plaintiff MSCI seeks urgent injunctive relief to prevent the further harm by
Defendants of MSCI’s business associates and customers which are healthcare systems

consisting of hospitals and long term care facilities who are dependent on a neutral
electronic market place and supply mangement provider to enter a market in which they
are being held hostage by corrupt healthcare product suppliers limiting their access to
critical medical devices, pharmacuticals and material at the cost of human lives and
countless unnecessary permanent bodily injuries. The healthsystems and hospital relying
on a neutral electronic marketplace to replace their current dependency on Group
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In United States v. Philadelphia National Bank, for example, the Supreme Court

coupled various banking services, including checking accounts, trust administration and

credit functions, under the category of "commercial banking" in defining the relevant

"line of commerce" under the Clayton Act. 374 U.S. 321, 356, 83 S.Ct. 1715, 1737, 10

L.Ed.2d 915 (1963).

The Clayton Act provides for private rights of action for violations of Sherman

Anti Trust Acts. In Umdenstock v. American Mortg. & Inv. Co. of Oklahoma City, 495

F.2d 589 (C.A.10 (Okl.), 1974), the Tenth Circuit recognizes a Sherman claim related to

escrow accounts.

The escrow accounts were banking products essential to Medical Supply entering

the market for hospital supplies. Clayton Act Refusal To Deal, Clayton §3 requires either

market power in the relevant market, or a significant amount of commerce in the relevant

market. [Times-Picayune]

Medical Supply has stated a Clayton Act discrimination in services or facilities

claim under 15 U.S.C. § 13 (e) per se violation where 1) competition exists, 2)

competitors are treated with disparity by 3) dominant service or facility provider. FTC v.

Simplicity is the first time in the Supreme Court, issues relating to the availability of

certain defenses to a prima facie violation of § 2(e), (15 U.S.C. § 13) of the Clayton Act

were examined. The Court held that neither 'cost-justification' nor an absence of

Purchasing Organizations utilizing anticompetitive business practices including
kickbacks, equity exchanges of healthcare supplier corporate stock, tying and exclusive
contracting are unable to jeopardize their patients and businesses out of a fear of
retaliation from these distributors.” [emphasis added] Plaintiff’s Amended Complaint pg.

5 para 10
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competitive injury may constitute 'justification' of a prima facie § 2(e) violation. FTC v.

Simplicity Pattern Co., Inc. 79 S.Ct. 1005, 3 L.Ed.2d 1079 (1959)

C. Hobbs Act (Count III)

The plaintiff has alleged that the defendants, although private parties used their

official capacity as the designated enforcement officials of the USA PATRIOT Act, not

as impersonators but as the officials charged with enforcing the act. The Plaintiff

concedes the Hobbs Act is not a private rite of action but has maintained it is a standard

of bad conduct chargeable civilly under RICO, as a pendant state law claim under Smith

v. Welch (in Kansas) or 42 U.S.C. 1983. (See below) The plaintiff has not tendered a

second amended complaint and the case management conference report has sufficient

time before the closing of pleadings (traditionally after discovery has been commenced).

D. USA PATRIOT Act (Count IV-VI)

#$%&'()*+&,-./0%0&+$%&12,/3+/4450&'()30%2&+$,+&1*/(*&+(&0/63/36&,&'(712,/3+&(*&,38

1,1%*&0)97/++%-&+(&+$%&'()*+&+$,+&$%&$,0&+(&+$%&9%0+&(4&$/0&9%2/%4&,3-&,4+%*&,&*%,0(3,92%

/3:)/*8;&'%*+/4/%-&+$%7<&#$%&12,/3+/4450&'()30%2&$,-&,''%00&+(&+$%&+,1%&*%'(*-/360;

:)%0+/(3%-&+$%&=>&?,3@&+*)0+&-%1,*+7%3+&'()30%2&(3&+A(&-/44%*%3+&1$(3%&',220&9%4(*%
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activity report filed against them by their employer has a right of private action in the

act). Commentators have observed there are reasonableness standards for data sharing,

limiting the safe harbor and have followed Medical Supply Chain, Inc.’s interpretation of

private civil liability for a malicious USA PATRIOT Act “SAR” report:

“In contrast, other parts of the USA PATRIOT Act specifically include standards limiting
the applicable safe harbor, such as in Section 355 which provides that with respect to an
employment reference, an institution shall not be shielded from liability if a disclosure is
made with "malicious intent." Moreover, in section 314(a), Congress included specific
standards with respect to information shared among financial institutions, regulators and
law enforcement, and described the information subject to such disclosures as
‘reasonably suspected based on credible evidence of engaging in terrorist acts or money

laundering activities.’

The Patriot Act's safe-harbor section does not contain any similar modifiers of reasonable
suspicions or credible evidence, though the final portion of section 314(b) does except
from the safe harbor violations of the section generally.
It remains to be seen whether courts will adopt a good-faith standard in application of the
safe harbor. Until clear parameters are established, banks should be wary of information
sharing and should make careful determinations about what is shared.” Data Sharing-
Assessing Patriot Act’s Safe Harbor, Heather Smith, Esq. Winstead Sechrest & Minick

(See Attachment 5)
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I know Medical Supply Chain, Inc. to be in the class of legitimate businesses

sought to be protected by the act. US Bank’s use of it was like what the Army would call

a “blue kill,” in other words, using a weapon in the war against terror to destroy friendly

forces. I believe that there is a 1983 claim and the 1983 claim of failure to train is

especially relevant if indeed this was not intentional antitrust prohibited conduct excluded

from the Noerr-Pennington Doctrine.

Leave to amend the complaint has not yet been requested and I have not framed a

42 U.S.C. 1983 complaint. However, the Tenth Circuit instructs that where there is an

absence of a federal civil rights statute and a conspiracy to deprive constitutionally

protected rights  (the plaintiff still believes it has an extortion under color of official right

claim), a 42 U.S.C. 1985 claim is appropriate:

“There is a further contention that the court erred in dismissing plaintiffs' claim
that the individual defendants other than the Secretary of the Interior conspired to deprive
them of equal protection or equal privileges and immunities contrary to 42 U.S.C. § 1985.
Here the presence or absence of state action is not a factor, for this provision embraces
private conspiracies. Griffin v. Breckenridge, 403 U.S. 88, 91 S.Ct. 1790, 29 L.Ed.2d 338
(1971). The plaintiffs' theory revealed in the complaint and at the hearing was that the
blockade's purpose was deprivation of equal protection of the laws and of due process,
and the plaintiffs maintain that they belong to a class which was the object of
discrimination. The complaint also alleged that the blockade sought to block ingress and
egress of all persons, but this does not serve to dispose of the allegation that
discrimination existed. It is true that the complaint does not detail the factual basis for
this claim, but under the Rules of Civil Procedure detailed evidence need not be set forth
in the complaint. Bell v. Hood, 327 U.S. 678, 66 S.Ct. 773, 90 L.Ed. 939 (1946).”  Dry

Creek Lodge, Inc., v. United States of America et al., No. 74-1546 at pg. 931, (1975).

The USA PATRIOT Act was used against the plaintiff, injuring the plaintiff every

day relief is not granted. The injury is the loss of Medical Supply Chain, Inc. property in

the form of contract expectations and the injury to its associates and target customers.

The public is also harmed in a measurable way recognized in an industry (the provision

of healthcare services necessitating hospital supplies) where social scientists,
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(economists, social workers, public health officials, insurance regulators, government

officials) evaluate the effectiveness of economic policy, (including private antitrust

action) in human lives lost. The same evaluation is made when the private health

insurance industry fails to provide coverage to an increasing number of citizens that do

not qualify for Medicaid. The policy debate on collusion in hospital supplies was taking

place when the defendants initiated antitrust prohibited conduct against the plaintiff. The

defendants and healthcare suppliers have very open and notorious combination and

conspiracy in hospital supply (they advertise it, file reports on it with the SEC), this

collusion takes place because of an FTC safe harbor that is now because of the high

prices and exclusion of competition is being debated. The safe harbor did not apply to the

defendants’ actions against Medical Supply Chain, Inc. which were per se or criminal and

the USA PATRIOT Act addresses the even the mildest form of criminal conduct to

influence public policy.

The plaintiff relied upon civil probable cause under Bergstrom v. Noah, 974 P.2d

520, 266 Kan. 829 (Kan., 1999) for making his USA PATRIOT Act based claims. The

complaint was written to avoid irreparable harm before it was inflicted through statutory

provided preliminary injunction. Bergstrom v. Noah addresses the private litigator’s need

to make a complaint prior to having all the facts and the need to act occasionally before

the case can be fully developed. The antitrust statutes provided for preliminary injunctive

relief, the defendants’ use of the USA PATRIOT Act was itself antitrust prohibited

conduct not excepted by the Noerr-Pennington doctrine.

Neither Sam Lipari nor I have had the salary our families depended on since the

defendants used the USA PATRIOT Act as a pretext to break their contract with Medical
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Supply Chain, Inc. There are no more offices for the company and much of its good will

with suppliers and associates has been lost. Medical Supply Chain, Inc. was not able to

restart in another quarter, sacrificing only 6 months of growth-projected outwards over 4

yrs. as explained in the future injury section of the amended complaint. Mr. Lipari cannot

risk all the investment of many years by all the stakeholders in attempt to restart with

another bank before obtaining injunctive relief because currently, Medical Supply is

exposed to the threatened suspicious activity report, verified by the US Bancorp Piper

Jaffray vice president and chief counsel in an affidavit to the Tenth Circuit court, which

would completely destroy Medical Supply. In the denial of the relief, Medical Supply

suffered the damages it sought to prevent, hospitals and patients as consumers in the

marketplace for healthcare supplies were injured.

When the cartel saw that antitrust law was not effective in protecting Medical

Supply from Medical Supply Chain, Inc.’s direct competitor U.S. Bancorp’s affiliate

electronic marketplace for hospital supplies, Neoforma, the sole remaining electronic

marketplace for healthcare supplies GHX, LLC., a subsidiary of General Electric

Company and participating in an open partnership with Neoforma as a combination by

contract, ( See new evidence Attachment 4) stepped in to administer the coup de grace.

Together (and this is an openly publicized alliance and combination, under an FTC

antitrust safe harbor) GHX, LLC and Neoforma have over 80% of the healthcare supply

e-commerce electronic marketplace. Medical Supply was their only independent

competitor and they succeeded in keeping Medical Supply from competing with them.

(See new evidence Attachment 4)
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Motion for Rule 52(b) Amendment of Judgment

#$%&'(&))*+,-.,/()0$$1*+,20,-(-*(3,*/40+(*%5,'6*&(-*+0$&'7*(4*+,(%&'*80+&-6&/(&4'*49,+
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Motion for Retrial on Denial of Preliminary Injunctive Relief

In its June 16th, 2003, order the court sets down its determination on the merits in

law of Medical Supply Chain, Inc.’s antitrust claims in detail for the first time as required

by  F.R. Civ. P. 52, and reveals a mistake in requiring a heightened pleading standard for

antitrust claims, causing the court to rule erroneously against three motions for

preliminary injunctive relief for failing to state elements present, but improperly not

considered, in the plaintiff’s pleadings. The heightened pleading standard implicit in

“mere business speculation” from SCFC ILC, Inc. v. Visa USA, Inc., 936 F.2d 1096

(C.A.10 (Utah), 1991) is a mistake of law under Currier v. Doran, 242 F.3d 905 (10th

Cir., 2001) after where the defense has failed to provide evidence contradicting the

plaintiff’s business plan and extent of injury to consumers. Furthermore, a mistake had

previously been revealed in requiring a showing of irreparable harm against the Tenth

Circuit rule for statutory injunctive relief. The plaintiff requests some or all of its

requested preliminary injunctive relief, including attorney’s fees now be granted so that

Medical Supply, Inc. can attempt to recover the status quo at the initiation of this matter.

The Tenth Circuit has recognized that it is unnecessary for Medical Supply to

prove irreparable harm in seeking an antitrust-based preliminary injunction or a

preliminary injunction based on a Kansas statute providing relief from trade secret

misappropriation. Atchison, T. & S. F. Ry. Co. v. Lennen, 640 F.2d at 260 (C.A.10

(Kan.), 1981) states:” Moreover, it is not necessary that the Railroads show that they will
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suffer irreparable harm if the injunction is denied. When the evidence shows that the

defendants are engaged in, or about to be engaged in, the act or practices prohibited by a

statute which provides for injunctive relief to prevent such violations, irreparable harm to

the plaintiffs need not be shown.” The court in Atchison, T. & S. F. Ry. Co. cited State of

Tennessee v. Louisville and Nashville R.R. Co., 478 F.Supp. 199, 210 (M.D.Tenn.1979),

stating:

“Since Congress has expressly authorized federal courts to grant injunctive relief

in furtherance of the express purposes of Section 306, it is not required that
irreparable harm or inadequacy of legal remedies first be shown. United States v.
City and County of San Francisco, 310 U.S. 16, 30, 60 S.Ct. 749, 757, 84 L.Ed.
1050 (1940).”

It is in error to be dismissive of factual evidence, knowledge, trade publication

reference and management expertise exhibited in pleadings and affidavits attested to by

Samuel Lipari the president of Medical Supply Chain, Inc. This is not the “business

speculation” of SCFC ILC, Inc. v. Visa USA, Inc., 936 F.2d 1096 (C.A.10 (Utah), 1991)

cited by US Bancorp its appellee brief where a producer alleges consumers may be

harmed. Medical Supply has shown consumers are being harmed in price and their

physical being, and the trade secret data and showing of evidence, proves tremendous

nationwide need for its services and products.

!"#$%"

Wherefore, for all these reasons, the plaintiff respectfully requests the order

dismissing the plaintiff’s claims be set aside, the judgment be amended to retain

jurisdiction over the state law claims and preliminary injunctive relief to be granted.

Respectfully submitted,

S/ Bret D. Landrith
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______________
Bret D. Landrith
Kansas Supreme Court # 20380
Attorney for Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I caused a true and correct copy of the
foregoing to be emailed to:

STEVEN D. RUSE
ANDREW M. DeMAREA,
MARK A. OLTHOFF
Of SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C.
32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100
9225 Indian Creek Parkway

            Overland Park, Kansas 66210

S/ Bret D. Landrith

______________
Bret D. Landrith
Kansas Supreme Court # 20380
Attorney for Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc.
605 W. Kansas
Pittsburg, KS 66762
"#$%&#%!"'($!$

eposone@mobil1.net
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURTFOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS
MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., ))Plaintiff, ))v. ) Civil Action No. 02-2539-CM)US BANCORP, NA; US BANK, PRIVATE )CLIENT GROUP, CORPORATE TRUST, )INSTITUTIONAL TRUST AND )CUSTODY, AND MUTUAL FUND )SERVICES, LLC; PIPER JAFFRAY; )ANDREW CESERE; SUSAN PAINE; )LARS ANDERSON; BRIAN KABBES; )and UNKNOWN HEALTHCARE )SUPPLIER, ))Defendants. )

DEFENDANTS’ MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’SMOTION FOR NEW TRIAL, MOTION FOR AMENDMENTOF JUDGMENT AND MOTION FOR RETRIAL ON DENIALOF PRELIMINARY INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
Plaintiff’s multi-faceted motion should be denied.  Plaintiff has offered no legally validreason to alter or amend the Court’s order and judgment in this case.STANDARDS FOR REVIEWING PLAINTIFF’S MOTIONPlaintiff seeks relief under Fed. R. Civ. P. 52(b) and Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(e).  While Rule 52(b)might be applicable if a bench trial had occurred and findings of fact had been made by the Court,the Court’s June 16, 2003 order was made based upon the defendants’ motions to dismiss underRule 12(b)(6).  Thus, although plaintiff suggests the Court made factual errors, relief underRule 52(b) is not available.  See DeWit v. Firstar Corp., 904 F. Supp. 1476, 1494 (N.D. Iowa 1995).In ruling on the defendants’ motions to dismiss, the Court made no findings of fact.  Rather, the
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Court treated as true the facts pleaded in the First Amended Complaint.  Order, p. 3; see also Conleyv. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46 (1957).With respect to the Rule 59(e) relief sought, the Court has discretion whether to grant or denysuch a motion.  This Court has recognized there are three possible grounds:  (1) an interveningchange in controlling law; (2) discovery of new evidence; and (3) the need to correct clear error orprevent manifest injustice.  See Cirulis v. Unum Corp. Severance Plan, 204 F.R.D. 677, 678 (D.Kan. 2001).  However, a plaintiff is not entitled to a “second chance” where it failed to present itsstrongest argument in the first instance.  Id.; see also Sump v. Fingerhut, Inc., 208 F.R.D. 324, 327(D. Kan. 2002); Torre v. Federated Mut. Ins. Co., 862 F. Supp. 299, 300-301 (D. Kan. 1994).Plaintiff instead can make its challenge to the correctness of the June 16 order on appeal.Based upon these standards for reviewing plaintiff’s motion, the relief sought should not begranted.  Because Rule 52(b) is inapplicable to plaintiff’s request, we address below the plaintiff’sarguments in the context of Rule 59(e). ARGUMENTEach of the plaintiff’s separate grounds seeking to alter or amend the Court’s judgment isinsufficient, whether based upon alleged manifest factual or legal error or the discovery of newevidence.  The Court’s order rejecting the plaintiff’s Amended Complaint for failure to state a claimis well supported by existing case law.  The allegations of the plaintiff’s Amended Complaint areplainly inadequate.  Consequently, the June 16, 2003 order should stand.A. The Trial Court Properly Dismissed Plaintiff’s Antitrust Claims UnderSherman Act §§ 1 and 2Initially, plaintiff complains that the Court “overtly” applied a “heightened standard” ofpleading when it analyzed the plaintiff’s allegations in the Amended Complaint.  (Pl. Mo. p. 5.)  Italso suggests there has been a “change” in controlling law.  The cases upon which plaintiff primarily
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relies, Leatherman v. Tarrant County, 507 U.S. 163 (1993) and Currier v. Doran, 242 F.3d 905(10th Cir. 2001) are civil rights cases.  Plaintiff goes on to assert that TV Communications Network,Inc. v. Turner Network Television, Inc., 964 F.2d 1022 (10th Cir. 1992), upon which the defendantsrely, somehow relates to dismissal of the Amended Complaint based upon a heightened pleadingstandard.  However, there is no language or indication in TV Communications that the court imposedany heightened pleading standard.  And, there is no suggestion in this Court’s order that any“heightened standard” of pleading was applied.  Nor did the defendants suggest the same.Plaintiff also misses the point on Rule 8 pleading.  While Rule 8 requires a “short and plainstatement,” it does not override Rule 12(b)(6) and the plaintiff’s obligation to “state a claim uponwhich relief may be granted.”  Plaintiff’s 67-page Amended Complaint, prolix as it is, fails to meetthe requirements of stating claims for relief under any of the theories it attempted to present.Whether or not Leatherman or Currier even applies to antitrust pleadings, Medical Supply’scomplaint failed on its face.  Medical Supply cannot escape the requirements of pleading a cause ofaction by merely reciting (however often) its strained antitrust mantra.  Recent federal courtdecisions, affirmed by circuit courts of appeal, make clear that antitrust complaints (like all others)are subject to dismissal just as the one filed here.  See 42nd Parallel North v. E Street Denim Co.,286 F.3d 401, 404, 406 (7th Cir. 2002); Endsley v. Chicago, 230 F.3d 276, 282 (7th Cir. 2000);Queen City Pizza, Inc. v. Domino’s Pizza, Inc., 124 F.3d 430, 436 (3rd Cir. 1997); DM Research,Inc. v. College of American Pathologists, 170 F.3d 53, 55-56 (1st Cir. 1999); Estate Constr. Co. v.Miller & Smith Holding Co., 14 F.3d 213, 220-221 (4th Cir. 1994); Car Carriers, Inc. v. Ford MotorCo., 745 F.2d 1101, 1106 (7th Cir. 1984).
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(1) The Section 1 claim was properly dismissed.With respect to plaintiff’s § 1 claim, plaintiff does nothing more than rehash its previouslyrejected arguments.  Plaintiff cites no additional legal authority suggesting an error.  Plaintiff merelyrecharacterizes its allegations and offers nothing more than what was said in its opposition to thedefendants’ motions.  As a result, the Court’s order dismissing the Sherman § 1 claim should beupheld.  See Cirulis, 204 F.R.D. at 678.  The authorities cited by defendants and contained in theCourt’s order fully support the dismissal entered.(2) The Section 2 claims were properly dismissed.Likewise, with respect to the Sherman § 2 claim, the Court did not apply any heightenedstandard of pleading.  Plaintiff again merely recharacterizes its claims and makes the same argumentsas before.  As a result, plaintiff’s relief (if any) is not before this Court.  It can test the Court’s legalrulings by appeal.Plaintiff’s cases do not compel any different result.  United States v. Yellow Cab, 332 U.S.218 (1947) and Blankenship v. Herzfeld, 721 F.2d 306 (10th Cir. 1983) (citing Yellow Cab) areinapposite and plaintiff’s reliance on those cases is inexplicable.  Not only do those cases predateCopperweld Corp. v. Independence Tube Corp., 467 U.S. 752 (1984), but Copperweld overruledYellow Cab.  See 467 U.S. at 777.  The court’s decision in In re Independent Service Orgs. AntitrustLitig., 85 F. Supp.2d 1130 (D. Kan. 2000) is on-point authority.  Plaintiff relies upon no casefollowing the Copperweld decision that suggests dismissal of the § 2 claim was error.Plaintiff’s discussion of U.S. Steel v. Fortner, 429 U.S. 610 (1977) is also off the mark.Plaintiff even acknowledges that it does not have the same claims as made in Fortner.  (Plaintiff’sMotion p. 19.)  Fortner involved a tying claim, which allegations are found nowhere in the plaintiff’sAmended Complaint and there is no suggestion that any tying arrangement even exists.  Apparently,
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plaintiff’s sole point about Fortner is its discussion of a “unique” credit arrangement; however, eventhe United States Supreme Court disagreed that the credit arrangement in Fortner was so unique asto create economic power.1  A financial services escrow arrangement as sought by the plaintiff (orits line of credit that likewise was rejected) is not some sort of a “unique” financial instrument or an“essential facility.”  In any event, the ruling in Fortner does not compel the Court to reverse itsdecision.Moreover, the Court’s decision is supported by recent case law.  SmileCare Dental Groupv. Delta Dental Plan of California, Inc., 88 F.3d 780 (9th Cir. 1996). The Court’s decision in In reIndependent Serv. Organizations Antitrust Litig., 85 F. Supp.2d 1130 (D. Kan. 2000) likewisesupports the Court’s dismissal of the plaintiff’s Sherman § 2 claims for monopolization andattempted monopolization.  Finally, even a case upon which plaintiff purports to rely does notsupport its position.  In Apani Southwest, Inc. v. Coca-Cola Enters., Inc.,  128 F. Supp.2d 988 (N.D.Tex. 2001), the federal court dismissed plaintiff’s antitrust claims (under the Clayton Act) becauseplaintiff had not sufficiently alleged a geographic market.  This Court, recognizing similar pleadingdeficiencies, likewise dismissed the plaintiff’s allegations.  See also cases cited supra pp. 3-4.Based upon the authorities relied upon by defendants and cited in this Court’s order, theruling should stand.
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B. Plaintiff’s Clayton Act Claim was Properly DismissedPlaintiff continues its attempt to put a “square peg” into a “round hole” as to its Clayton Actclaim.  Despite plaintiff’s repeated efforts, there is no question but that its Clayton Act claim mustbe dismissed.  What plaintiff sought from the defendants is clearly financial services, not“commodities” as required in the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 13.  Plaintiff has not alleged any legallycognizable Clayton Act violation as to the sale of “commodities” by the defendants.  (Order p. 10.)Plaintiff’s citation to Umdenstock v. American Mortgage & Inv. Co., 495 F.2d 589 (10th Cir.1974) does not help it.  No Clayton Act claim was even alleged in Umdenstock.  Plaintiff’s continuedmuddling of its Clayton Act and Sherman Act claims, which are entirely different causes of actionand entirely different provisions of the antitrust laws, should be stopped.  There is plainly no meritto plaintiff’s claim under 15 U.S.C. § 13.  The Clayton Act claim cannot stand for the reasonsidentified in the Court’s Order.C. Plaintiff’s Hobbs Act Claim was Properly DismissedPlaintiff concedes that it has no private “rite” of action under the Hobbs Act.  (Pl. Motionp. 24.)  As a result, the Hobbs Act claim was properly dismissed for the reasons set forth and  basedupon the authorities cited in the Court’s Order.  (Order pp. 10-11.)D. Plaintiff’s USA Patriot Act Claims were Properly DismissedThe Court recognized the thin layer of ice upon which the plaintiff has been standing inalleging claims under the USA Patriot Act.  (Order pp. 11, 14-15.)  As a result, in its motion,plaintiff’s counsel personalizes his plea and suggests that he researched the possibility of claims andhad a “good faith” belief that those claims might be stated.  However, as the defendant’s motions todismiss clearly address, and this Court discussed, plaintiff cannot bring USA Patriot Act claims:• Plaintiff has no standing to bring claims;
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2Plaintiff’s desperation in referring to § 1985 is just as wrong as a matter of law.  Althoughraised for the first time in its motion,  § 1985 does not apply to the circumstances alleged in theAmended Complaint.  See Tilton v. Richardson, 6 F.3d 683, 686 (10th Cir. 1993).
3In Peacock, the Seventh Circuit also questioned whether the “new evidence” rule appliedto a dismissal for failure to state a claim.  Id. 71434306.1

• Plaintiff has no private claim for damages;• Plaintiff has no implied right of action;• Plaintiff has not asserted state action;• Plaintiff has no 42 U.S.C. § 1983 claim.Despite the Court’s admonition in its order, plaintiff nevertheless tries to justify these claims andsuggests that the Court committed a manifest error in dismissing them–even going so far as to arguea new theory under 42 U.S.C. § 1985 that has not been pleaded.2  Defendants should not be madeto continue to respond to these baseless, meritless arguments.  No error occurred; the claims wereproperly dismissed.E. There Is No New Evidence Justifying Altering or Amending the JudgmentPlaintiff’s suggestion that “newly discovered evidence” should cause this Court to reverseitself is nothing more than a belated effort to supplement (or amend) its Amended Complaint thathas now been dismissed. The purported “new evidence” was obviously in existence before thisCourt’s order.  The attachments to the motion show that the “evidence” was known and in the solepossession of plaintiff prior to the dismissal.  Plaintiff has also not made any showing that the“evidence” is admissible or would produce a different result.  See DeWit, 904 F. Supp. at 1497; seealso Atkinson v. Prudential Property Co., 43 F.3d 367, 371 (8th Cir. 1994); Peacock v. Bd. ofCommr’s., 721 F2d 210, 213 (7th Cir 1983).  Moreover, plaintiff’s Amended Complaint wasdismissed based upon the allegations made, not upon “evidence” presented.3  Plaintiff cannot now
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4Plaintiff’s footnote 1 (p. 7) asks this Court to now consider matters not found in theAmended Complaint and not previously submitted to the Court, suggesting that they establish thatdiversity jurisdiction exists.  Plaintiff refers to the defendants’ Rule 26(a) disclosures, which are notfiled with this Court and not presented in the motions to dismiss (or attached to the instant motion).Nevertheless, even if the Court considers plaintiff’s “new” allegation of citizenship diversity,plaintiff fails to identify each of the individual defendants and their states of citizenship.Accordingly, this vain attempt must fail.  Moreover, plaintiff’s Amended Complaint suggests thatat least one of the named defendants, Brian Kabbes, works in St. Louis, Missouri, which is the sameas plaintiff’s state of incorporation and principal place of business.  (Am. Compl. ¶¶ 19, 46.)Although not pleaded, diversity jurisdiction would not exist in this Court if Mr. Kabbes is a citizenof Missouri. 81434306.1

prevail upon the Court to consider “new evidence” when the allegations made in its AmendedComplaint fail to state a claim upon which relief may be granted.F. The Court Should Not Retain Jurisdiction Over the State Law ClaimsContrary to plaintiff’s new arguments (not presented in any prior motion or response), theAmended Complaint did not set forth the necessary elements of citizenship of each defendant.  Nordid it even allege 28 U.S.C. § 1332 as grounds for jurisdiction.  (Am. Compl. ¶¶ 12-15.)  In orderto assert diversity jurisdiction under § 1332, plaintiff must establish in its pleading that thecitizenship of each defendant is separate from the plaintiff.  Even a cursory review of the pleadingdemonstrates that the Amended Complaint does not accomplish this.4  (Id. ¶¶ 19-35.)  The Court alsoproperly declined exercise of supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1367.G. Plaintiff Is Not Entitled a “Retrial” of this Court’s Denial of Injunctive ReliefPlaintiff has previously filed two motions seeking “emergency” injunctive relief.  Both ofthose motions have been denied.  Plaintiff appealed the denial of those motions to the Tenth Circuit.In addition, plaintiff separately moved the Tenth Circuit for emergency injunctive relief which wasdenied on January 9, 2003.  (It has also recently asked the Tenth Circuit to “set aside” its January 9,2003 order.  See letter dated June 24, 2003.)
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As discussed above, this Court did not apply any heightened standard of pleading to theplaintiff’s allegations in the Amended Complaint.  Plaintiff chose to stand on its AmendedComplaint as proof to support its claim for injunctive relief.  This Court, having reviewed theplaintiff’s “evidence” and pleadings, denied those motions.  The Tenth Circuit, likewise, deniedplaintiff’s motion.Medical Supply also suggests that this Court committed legal error when its earlier orderreflected that Medical Supply had failed to show “irreparable harm.”  Medical Supply asserts thatan earlier Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals decision indicates that a showing of “irreparable harm” isunnecessary.However, the earlier decision upon which Medical Supply relies, Atchison, T. & S.F. Ry. Co.v. Lennen, 640 F.2d 255 (10th Cir. 1981), is inapplicable here.  In Atchison, the Court consideredwhether railroads were required to prove irreparable harm when they sought to prevent state officialsfrom collecting certain taxes in violation of the Interstate Commerce Act.  The express purpose ofthe Act was to eliminate discriminatory state and local taxation.  Where the state officials were aboutto begin collecting the taxes, this Court found an abuse of discretion in denying the injunction byrequiring a showing of irreparable harm in preventing the tax collection.Medical Supply does not cite any antitrust case for the proposition that “irreparable harm”need not be demonstrated.  Clearly, the statute and conduct involved in Atchison are different fromthat which Medical Supply alleges.  See United States v. Microsoft Corp., 147 F.3d 935, 943-44(D.C. Cir. 1998) (recognizing differences in statutes).  Moreover, Medical Supply’s motion did notmerely seek to maintain the status quo as did the plaintiffs in Atchison.The Tenth Circuit’s decision in SCFC ILC, Inc. v. Visa USA, Inc., 936 F.2d 1096 (10th Cir.1991), is controlling precedent and not any mistake of law.  Damages (and irreparable harm) are an
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essential element of Medical Supply’s claims, including the request for injunctive relief.  See, e.g.,Cargill, Inc. v. Monfort of Colorado, 479 U.S. 104, 113 (1986); Lake Hill Motors, Inc. v. JimBennett Yacht Sales, Inc., 246 F.3d 752, 757 (5th Cir. 2001); Samuel v. Herrick Memorial Hosp.,201 F.3d 830, 833 (6th Cir. 2000); T&L Redemption Center Corp. v. Phoenix Beverages, Inc., 752F. Supp. 64, 67 (E.D.N.Y. 1989).Just as plaintiff’s motion to alter or amend the judgment dismissing its claims should bedenied, plaintiff is not entitled to a “retrial” of this Court’s denial of injunctive relief.CONCLUSIONFor all of the above and foregoing reasons, the plaintiff’s motion(s) should be denied.  Inaddition, because of the plaintiff’s persistence in arguing non-meritorious positions–in particular asto the Clayton Act and the U.S.A. Patriot Act claims–defendants respectfully request that the Courtconsider the admonition given in its Order (p. 11).  Defendants have been forced to respond in thisCourt to arguments that have no basis in law or are reasonably grounded to extend the law.Defendants do not lightly request such relief, but view this case as one where some form of sanctionwould be appropriate should the Court see fit. /s/ Mark A. Olthoff                                        MARK A. OLTHOFF U.S. KS Ct. #70339SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C.Twelve Wyandotte Plaza120 W. 12th StreetKansas City, Missouri  64105(816) 421-3355(816) 374-0509 (FAX)STEVEN D. RUSE KS #11461ANDREW M. DeMAREA KS #16141SHUGHART THOMSON & KILROY, P.C.32 Corporate Woods, Suite 11009225 Indian Creek ParkwayOverland Park, Kansas  66210(913) 451-3355(913) 451-3361 (FAX)ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICEI hereby certify that a copy of the above and foregoing document was filed electronically withthe above-captioned court, with notice of case activity to be generated and sent electronically by theClerk of said court (with a copy to be mailed to any individuals who do not receive electronic noticefrom the Clerk) this 3rd day of July, 2003 to:Bret D. Landrith, Esq.P.O. Box 17-2137Kansas City, KS  66117-0137Attorney for Plaintiff
/s/ Mark A. Olthoff                                        Attorney for Defendants
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF KANSAS

)

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., )

)

Plaintiff, )

) CIVIL ACTION

v. )

) No. 02-2539-CM

) 

)

US BANCORP, NA, et al., )

)

Defendants. )

                                                                              )

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

This matter comes before the court on plaintiff’s Motion for New Trial Under Fed. R. Civ. P. 59,

Motion for Rule 52(b) Amendment of Judgment and Motion for Retrial on Denial of Preliminary Injunctive

Relief (Doc. 35).  Also pending before the court are plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Defense of Business

Justification (Doc. 38) and plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Defense of Statute of Frauds (Doc. 39).  As set forth

below, plaintiff’s Motion for New Trial is denied.  As a result, plaintiff’s Motions to Strike are dismissed as

moot.

I. Procedural Background

On November 12, 2002, plaintiff filed its amended complaint against defendants, alleging defendants

violated the Sherman Antitrust Act, the Clayton Antitrust Act and the Hobbs Act.  Plaintiff also alleged

violations of the USA PATRIOT Act and made various state law claims.  On March 27, 2003, defendants

filed motions to dismiss plaintiff’s claims under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (b)(6).  On June 16, 2003, this court

entered an order granting defendants’ motions to dismiss plaintiff’s claims for failure to state a claim under
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Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6).  On June 23, 2003, plaintiff filed its Motion for New Trial Under Fed. R. Civ. P.

59, Motion for Rule 52(b) Amendment of Judgment and Motion for Retrial on Denial of Preliminary

Injunctive Relief.

As an initial matter, the court notes that plaintiff’s motion for a new trial under Fed. R. Civ. P. 59

and for amendment of the judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 52(b) are inappropriate, because this matter did

not come for hearing before a jury or before the court.  However, because plaintiff filed its motion within 10

days after the entry of the court’s June 16, 2003, Order dismissing plaintiff’s claims, the court will treat

plaintiff’s motion as one for reconsideration under Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(e).  See Hatfield v. Bd. of County

Comm’rs. for Converse County, 52 F.3d 858, 861 (10th Cir. 1995).

II. Standard for Motion to Reconsider 

Whether to grant or deny a motion for reconsideration is committed to the court's discretion. 

Brown v. Presbyterian Healthcare Servs., 101 F.3d 1324, 1332 (10th Cir. 1996);  Hancock v. City of

Okla. City, 857 F.2d 1394, 1395 (10th Cir. 1988).  In exercising that discretion, courts have recognized

three major grounds justifying reconsideration: (1) an intervening change in controlling law; (2) availability of

new evidence; and (3) the need to correct clear error or prevent manifest injustice.  See Major v. Benton,

647 F.2d 110, 112 (10th Cir. 1981); Burnett v. W. Res., Inc., 929 F. Supp. 1349, 1360 (D. Kan. 1996);

Marx v. Schnuck Mkts., Inc., 869 F. Supp. 895, 897 (D. Kan. 1994).  “Appropriate circumstances for a

motion to reconsider are where the court has obviously misapprehended a party's position or the facts or the

law, or the court has mistakenly decided issues outside of those the parties presented for determination.  A

party's failure to present its strongest case in the first instance does not entitle it to a second chance in the

form of a motion to reconsider.”  Burnett, 929 F. Supp. at 1360 (citing Anderson v. United Auto
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Workers, 738 F. Supp. 441, 442 (D. Kan. 1990); Renfro v. City of Emporia, Kan., 732 F. Supp. 1116,

1117 (D. Kan. 1990)).  Moreover, “[a] motion to reconsider is not a second chance for the losing party to

make his strongest case or to dress up arguments that previously failed.”  Flake v. Hoskins, 55 F. Supp. 2d

1196, 1203-04 (D. Kan. 1999).

III. Discussion

A. Plaintiff’s Federal Claims

In its June 16, 2003, Order, this court dismissed plaintiff’s federal claims pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P.

12(b)(6) for failure to state a claim.  Plaintiff has asked the court to reconsider that decision and alter or

amend its order, but plaintiff has not satisfied any of the three grounds which might justify relief.  In its June

16, 2003, Order, this court thoroughly analyzed each of plaintiff’s claims, accepted as true all well-pleaded

facts, and viewed all reasonable inferences from those facts in plaintiff’s favor.  See Swanson v. Bixler, 750

F.2d 810, 813 (10th Cir. 1984) (explaining standard for dismissal of claims under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6)). 

Even doing so, this court found plaintiff failed to state any claim for relief and dismissed plaintiff’s claims

brought under federal law. 

In its motion for reconsideration, plaintiff first argues that there has been an intervening change in

controlling law invalidating the court’s cited authorities for antitrust pleading requirements.  However, plaintiff

cites no legal authority that was not already in existence at the time the court entered its June 16, 2003,

Order dismissing plaintiff’s claims, much less any authority that changes the court’s analysis of its ruling. 

Plaintiff’s argument is simply an attempt to revisit issues already addressed by the court.  Plaintiff’s motion

for reconsideration on this ground fails.
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Plaintiff next argues that the court erred in dismissing plaintiff’s federal claims because the court

made mistakes of both fact and law in analyzing plaintiff’s claims, again claiming the court failed to recognize

intervening change in authority.  In support, plaintiff cites no new legal authority.  Rather, plaintiff expresses

its disagreement with the court’s analysis of its claims and the applicable legal standards.  Plaintiff also

attaches exhibits to its motion for reconsideration that it calls “new evidence.”  Based on the dates of the

documents attached to plaintiff’s motion, they clearly were available to plaintiff at the time it responded to

defendants’ motions to dismiss and the court entered its June 16, 2003, Order.  Plaintiff’s failure to present

its strongest case to the court in response to defendants’ motions to dismiss does not justify reconsideration

of the court’s order.  Moreover, plaintiff’s blatant attempt to reassert arguments that previously failed does

not justify reconsideration of the court’s order.  Plaintiff’s motion for reconsideration on this ground also

fails.

The court has analyzed the June 16, 2003, Order, plaintiff’s motion for reconsideration, and

defendants’ response to the motion for reconsideration.  Upon its review, the court does not believe that its

June 16, 2003, Order was the result of clear error or manifest injustice.  Moreover, plaintiff has not

identified, nor has the court discovered, any intervening change in controlling law or the availability of new

evidence pertinent to that order.  Therefore, plaintiff’s motion for reconsideration of this court’s dismissal of

its federal claims is denied.

B. Plaintiff’s State Law Claims  

Plaintiff has also requested that the court amend its ruling to retain jurisdiction over

the parties and pendent state law claims under diversity jurisdiction.  In its June 16, 2003, Order, this court

declined to retain jurisdiction over the state law claims once it dismissed plaintiff’s federal claims.  Because
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the court has denied plaintiff’s motion for reconsideration on its federal claims, the court upholds its June 16,

2003, ruling, and denies plaintiff’s request that it retain jurisdiction over the state law claims.

C. Plaintiff’s Request for Preliminary Injunctive Relief

On November 22, 2002, plaintiff filed two motions seeking urgent preliminary injunctive relief from

USA PATRIOT Act Reporting and trade secret misappropriation by defendants.  On December 12, 2002,

this court conducted a hearing on both of plaintiff’s motions for injunctive relief and denied both of them. 

Plaintiff failed to request a rehearing of this court’s denial within 10 days as required by Fed. R. Civ. P.

59(b).  Instead, plaintiff appealed the denial of those motions directly to the Tenth Circuit.  Plaintiff also

separately moved the Tenth Circuit for emergency injunctive relief.  The Tenth Circuit denied plaintiff’s

appeal and request for emergency injunctive relief on January 9, 2003.  As a result, plaintiff’s request for a

retrial or rehearing of this court’s denial of its motions for preliminary injunctive relief is moot.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT plaintiff’s Motion for New Trial Under Fed. R. Civ. P.

59, Motion for Rule 52(b) Amendment of Judgment and Motion for Retrial on Denial of Preliminary

Injunctive Relief (Doc. 35) is denied.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT plaintiff’s Motions to Strike (Docs. 38 and 39) are

dismissed as moot.

Dated this 19th day of November 2003, at Kansas City, Kansas.

s/ Carlos Murguia                   

   CARLOS MURGUIA

   United States District Judge
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                  [03-3342]

 1/9/04            [1677002] Appellant's motion filed by Appellant Medical

                  Supply Chain in 03-3342 to permit use of filings from case

                  No. 02-3443 [03-3342] . Original and 3 copies.  c/s: y. (sl)

                  [03-3342]

 1/9/04            [1677004] Appellant's motion filed by Appellant Medical

                  Supply Chain in 03-3342 to amend complaint on

                  jurisdictional grounds [03-3342] . Original and 3 copies.

                  c/s: y. (sl) [03-3342]

 1/12/04           [1677217] Order filed by PF - Within 10 days from the date

                  of this order appellees shall file responses to Motion to

                  permit use of filings from case No. 02-3443, and Motion to

                  amend complaint on jurisdictional grounds. Response due

                  1/27/04 for US Bancorp, NA., et al.. Parties served by

                  mail. (sl) [03-3342]
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 Proceedings include all events.

 03-3342  Medical Supply Chain v. US Bancorp, NA., et al

 1/14/04           [1678080] Notice sent to Clerk of District Court that roa

                  completion notice has not been received. Completion notice

                  now due 1/26/04. (kf) [03-3342]

 1/20/04           [1679150] Appellee's response to medical supply chain,

                  Inc.'s motion to permit use of filings from case No.

                  02-3443 filed by US Bancorp, NA., et al., in 03-3342.

                  Original and 3 copies.  c/s: y. (sl) [03-3342]

 1/20/04           [1679153] Appellee's memorandum in opposition to

                  appellant's motion to amend complaint on jurisdictional

                  grounds filed by US Bancorp, NA. in 03-3342.  Original and

                  3 copies.  c/s: y. (sl) [03-3342]

 1/21/04           [1679605] Order filed by PF referring Appellant motion to

                  amend complaint on jurisdictional grounds, and appellees'

                  memorandum in opposition to appellant's motion to amend

                  complaint on jurisdictional grounds [1677004-1] [1679153-1]

                  REFERRED TO PANEL ON THE MERITS.  Parties served by mail.

                  (sl) [03-3342]

 1/21/04           [1679614] Motion to permit use of filings from case No.
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                  02-3443, filed by Appellant Medical Supply Chain in

                  03-3342, and response filed by Appellee US Bancorp, NA., et

                  al., in 03-3342 submitted to court. (sl) [03-3342]

 1/26/04           [1680502] Order filed by Judges Murphy, O'Brien granting

                  Appellant motion to permit use of filings from case No.

                  02-3443 [1677002-1] .  Parties served by mail. (sl)

                  [03-3342]

 1/26/04           [1680999] Filed notice record is complete 1/20/04.

                  Appellant's brief and appendix due 3/1/04 for Medical

                  Supply Chain. (kf) [03-3342]

 1/28/04           [1681434] Appellant's reply filed by Medical Supply Chain

                  in 03-3342 to appellees' memorandum in opposition to

                  appellant's motion to amend complaint on jurisdictional

                  grounds. (kf) [03-3342]

 1/28/04          [1681436] Order filed by PF referring Appellant's reply to

                  appellees' memorandum in opposition to appellant's motion

                  to amend complaint on jurisdictional grounds. [1681434-1]

                  REFERRED TO PANEL ON THE MERITS.  Parties served by mail.

                  (kf) [03-3342]

 3/2/04            [1690334] Appellant's deficient brief and appendix filed

                  by Medical Supply Chain in 03-3342 (not correctly bound,

                  cover of brief should be blue; appendix not consecutively

                  paginated). Corrected brief and appendix due 3/15/04 for

                  Medical Supply Chain. (kf) [03-3342]
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 Proceedings include all events.

 03-3342  Medical Supply Chain v. US Bancorp, NA., et al

 3/5/04            [1691352] Appellant's brief filed by Medical Supply Chain

                  in 03-3342. Original and 7 copies.   c/s: y. Served on

                  3/3/04.  Oral argument? n., Appendix filed. Original and 1

                  appendix copy (Volumes 1 & 2).  Appendix Pages: 898.

                  Appellees' brief due 4/5/04 for for US Bancorp, NA, et al.

                  (mt) [03-3342]

 4/6/04            [1699191] Appellee's brief filed by US Bancorp, NA., US

                  Bank Private, Corporate Trust, Institutional Trust, Mutual

                  Fund Services, Piper Jaffray, Andrew Cesere, Susan Paine,

                  Lars Anderson, and Brian Kabbes in 03-3342. Original and 7

                  copies. c/s: y. Served on 4/5/04.  Oral Argument? n,

                  Appendix filed. Original and 1 appendix copy.  Appendix

                  Pages: 47. Appellant's optional reply brief due 4/22/04 for

                  Medical Supply Chain. (sl) [03-3342]

 4/13/04           [1700723] Appellant's motion filed by Medical Supply Chain
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                  for judgment on the briefs. Original and 3 copies  c/s: y

                  (kjs) [03-3342]

 4/14/04           [1700908] Order filed by PF referring Appellant's motion

                  for judgment on the briefs [1700723-1] TO PANEL ON THE

                  MERITS.  Parties served by mail. (kjs) [03-3342]

 8/4/04            [1729706] Case submitted to panel on the briefs  pursuant

                  to Rule 34 for Conference Calendar. (hrs) [03-3342]

 11/8/04           [1754694] Order filed by Judges McConnell, Holloway and

                  Porfilio, plaintiff and plaintiff's counsel shall show cause

                  in writing why they, jointly or severally, should not be

                  sanctioned for this frivolous appeal (located in the Order

                  and Judgment). [03-3342] Response due 11/29/04 for Medical

                  Supply Chain.  Parties served by mail. (kf) [03-3342]

 11/8/04           [1754705]  Terminated on the Merits after Submission

                  Without Oral Hearing; Affirmed. Appellant's motion to amend

                  complaint on jurisdictional grounds is denied.; Written,

                  Signed, Unpublished. McConnell; Holloway; Porfilio,

                  authoring [03-3342] Parties served by mail on 11/8/04. (kf)

                  [03-3342]

 11/18/04          [1757923] Appellant's response filed by Medical Supply

                  Chain to the court's order to show cause as part of the

                  order and judgment filed 11/8/04. Original and 3 copies.

                  c/s: y (kjs) [03-3342]

 11/18/04          [1757925] Appellant's response filed by Medical Supply

                  Chain Document [1757923-1]  submitted to court. (kjs)

                  [03-3342]

 11/24/04          [1759598] Petition for rehearing in banc [03-3342] filed

                  by Medical Supply Chain in 03-3342. (filed late, petition

                  was due 11/22/04) Original and 18 copies. c/s: y. (sl)

                  [03-3342]

 Docket as of December 7, 2005 4:03 pm               Page 8   

 Proceedings include all events.

 03-3342  Medical Supply Chain v. US Bancorp, NA., et al

 11/24/04          [1759601] Document [1759598-1] Petition for rehearing in

                  banc filed by Appellant Medical Supply Chain submitted to

                  panel. (sl) [03-3342]

 12/30/04          [1768867] Order filed by Judges McConnell, Holloway,

                  Porfilio, as a sanction under Rule 38, we assess attorney

                  fees and double costs against Mr. Landrith. Procedures for

                  the taxation of costs shall be in accordance with Fed. R.
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                  App. P. 39(d) and (e). The case shall be REMANDED to the

                  district court to determine the amount of attorney fees to

                  be awarded as a sanction. [03-3342]  Parties served by

                  mail. (sl) [03-3342]

 12/30/04          [1768872] Order filed by Judges McConnell, Holloway,

                  Porfilio denying Petition for rehearing in banc as untimely

                  [1759598-1] (sl) [03-3342]

 1/7/05            [1770595] Mandate issued. (mt) [03-3342]

 1/11/05           [1771662] Appellant's "Motion for En Banc Rehearing of

                  Panel Sua Sponte Sanctions" construed as a motion to

                  reconsider the court's 12/30/04 order regarding sanctions

                  filed by Appellant Medical Supply Chain in 03-3342.

                  [03-3342] Original and 18 copies.  c/s: y. (kf)

                  [03-3342]

 1/11/05           [1771668] Appellant's motion for en banc rehearing

                  construed as a motion for reconsideration submitted to the

                  Merits Panel. (kf) [03-3342]

 1/13/05           [1772984] Bill of costs filed by Appellee US Bancorp, NA.,

                  et al., in 03-3342. Original and 3 copies. c/s: y. (sl)

                  [03-3342]

 1/25/05           [1775235] Appellant's motion for reconsideration submitted

                  to the entire court. (kf) [03-3342]

 2/7/05            [1779564] Bill of costs submitted to court. (sl)

                  [03-3342]

 2/10/05           [1780902] Order filed by Judges McConnell, Holloway,

                  Porfilio granting appellee's bill of costs in the amount of

                  $112.60. [1772984-1] Appellant's motion for en banc

                  reconsideration of the December 30, 2004 order regarding

                  sanctions was transmitted to all of the judges of the court

                  who are in regular active service on January 25, 2005. As

                  no member of the panel and no judge in regular active

                  service on the court requested that the court be polled,

                  appellant's motion is denied. [1771662-1]  Parties served

                  by mail. (sl) [03-3342]

 2/10/05           [1780913] Bill of costs was granted.  Supplemental mandate

                  issued. (sl) [03-3342]

 Docket as of December 7, 2005 4:03 pm               Page 9   

 Proceedings include all events.

 03-3342  Medical Supply Chain v. US Bancorp, NA., et al

 2/24/05           [1784665] Appellant's motion to stay issuance of the
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 2/24/05           [1784665] Appellant's motion to stay issuance of the

                  mandate construed as a motion to recall the mandate filed

                  by Medical Supply Chain in 03-3342 and submitted to court.

                  (mt) [03-3342]

 3/2/05            [1786354] Order filed by Judges McConnell, Holloway, and

                  Porfilio denying Appellant's motion to stay the mandate

                  [1784665-1].  Parties served by mail. (mt) [03-3342]

 4/8/05            [1797954] Case file closed. Shipment to records center due

                  4/8/07 (jg) [03-3342]

 8/1/05            [1831803] Petition for writ of certiorari filed on 5/11/05

                  by Bret D. Landrith.  Supreme Court Number 05-5503. (sl)

                  [03-3342]

 10/11/05          [1853317] Supreme Court order dated 10/03/05 denying

                  certiorari filed. (kr) [03-3342]

 Docket as of December 7, 2005 4:03 pm               Page 10   
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UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE TENTH CIRCUIT

CASE NO.:

MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC., )
Plaintiff, )

vs. )
US BANCORP, NA, et al; )

Defendants. )

MOTION FOR EMERGENCY PRELIMINARY INJUNCTIVE

RELIEF UNDER 10th CIRCUIT RULE 8.2

Appellant MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC. submits this

emergency pleading under 10th Cir. R. 8.2. The appellant seeks preliminary

injunctive relief to prevent the forced closing of MEDICAL SUPPLY

CHAIN, INC. resulting from its current inability to obtain banking services

or to protect its valuable trade secrets due to imminent danger of irreparable

harm posed by US BANCORP NA and its subsidiaries with malicious USA

Patriot Act reporting E 1 and unauthorized dissemination of Medical Supply’s

trade secrets. F 1

1. It is impracticable for Medical Supply to have sought this emergency

relief provided for under 15 U.S.C. § 26, or K.S.A. 60-3321 a third time in

district court. The trial court denied the relief sought, stating for the record

that it had determined that MEDICAL SUPPLY CHAIN, INC. failed to

meet its burden of demonstrating the four factors required to obtain
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preliminary injunctive relief. The trial court stated that sanctions would be

appropriate if the Medical Supply again sought the relief.

2. Medical Supply has appealed the denial of injunctive relief based on

its belief the trial court failed to consider the statutory impetuous for

preliminary injunctive relief under 15 U.S.C. § 26, or K.S.A. 60-3321; and

failed to shift the burden to US BANCORP NA, et al ; when a prima facie

case for Clayton Act violations had been made as required under 15 U.S.C.

§13(b). Furthermore, Medical Supply believes the trial court erred in

reaching negative findings in total disregard of uncontroverted evidence.

3. In  “Plaintiff’s Motion Requesting Emergency Hearing On

Preliminary Injunctive Relief,” and subsequently “Plaintiff’s Amended

Complaint.” Medical Supply alleges that US BANCORP NA et al (herein

“US Bancorp”) are violating 15 U.S.C § 2: Monopolizing Trade through

attempted monopolization and monopolization,15 U.S.C § 13:

Discrimination In Price, Services, Or Facilities and in the amended

complaint that US Bancorp is violating K.S.A. 60-3321 Misappropriation of

Trade Secrets. These complaints contained facts concerning US Bancorp’s

monopoly power in relevant markets, citations to reputable news articles

quantifying US Bancorp’s monopoly power in those markets, US Bancorp’s

aggressive acts of extortion and fraud to maintain and increase its monopoly
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power in the relevant markets, US Bancorp’s conviction and fine for

attempted extortion and its attempted settlement of a class action suit

charging US Bancorp with theft of customer information. Additional facts

alleged that affiliate companies of US Bancorp were using valuable trade

secret information misappropriated from Medical Supply’s founder in 1995.

The complaints and an affidavit were sworn and attested to by Medical

Supply’s chief executive.

4. US Bancorp opposed Medical Supply’s preliminary injunctive relief

in two reply motions and in oral argument at both hearings. US Bancorp

stated Medical Supply’s complaint presents facts that are “incomprehensible

and generally nonsensical” (D1 para. 3)and called Medical Supply’s claims

“imagined conspiracy theories.” D5 first full para. No other refutation of

Medical Supply’s claims is made and no facts are offered. In oral argument

on November 18, US Bancorp states that it does not have monopoly power

in the relevant market of healthcare technology company capitalization

because other people invest in “healthcare insurance companies,” (a

confusion of the antitrust relevant market) and that no antitrust violation

could have occurred because there was “no contract” therefore price

discrimination could not have occurred, (a confusion of Medical Supply’s

Refusal to Deal, Denial of Services, Denial of Critical Facilities and Boycott
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claims with Price Discrimination a violation Medical Supply did not allege).

No facts refuting or legal theories controverting Medical Supply’s claims

were presented. In the December 2 motion, US Bancorp states as fact that no

USA Patriot report has been made against Medical Supply and criticizes

Medical Supply’s complaint by stating “Plaintiff has failed to indicate how

the defendants-a bank, a public securities group, and various individuals

could possibly constitute a monopoly,” and “…there was never any contract

between the parties; hence, there was never any “price” that the defendants

allegedly ’fixed.” G4 para. 11 These two quotes are the entirety of US

Bancorp’s refutation of Medical Supply’s antitrust complaints. US Bancorp

dismisses Medical Supply’s facts and allegations concerning trade secret

misappropriation as “…supposition and conjecture and does not rise to the

level and quality of proof needed for granting injunctive relief.” G4 para. 9. No

further refuting facts or development of legal theories were presented in oral

argument.

5. US Bancorp is required to provide the substance of any defense to

Medical Supply’s claims. Since the claims were antitrust based, the burden

to refute Medical Supply’s claims with facts and developed legal arguments

shifted to US Bancorp. US Bancorp’s sole factual assertion, that it has not

filed a suspicious activity report against Medical Supply is in actuality a
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prerequisite for injunctive relief to stop a suspicious activity report from

being filed; an event which would indisputably destroy Medical Supply by

blocking access to high level banking services required to provide price

competition nationwide in hospital supplies. Prospective relief would be

inapplicable to correct something that has already happened. US Bancorp

has not provided a developed explanation of why it was not in contract with

Medical Supply to provide escrow accounts given the evidence. However

this is immaterial to the antitrust claims for refusal to deal, denial of

services, facilities or boycott which do not require contract or price

discrimination. Medical Supply provided facts and allegations, including

transcripts of taped phone calls asserting US Bancorp’s antitrust violations

resulting in Medical Supply’s documented injury including loss of the

$300,000.00 to $450,000.00 required for entry into the relevant market for

healthcare supplies as a perceived competitor of US Bancorp; physical

evidence and sworn attestation of trade secret misappropriation, and facts

and attestations supporting Medical Supply’s reasonable and prudent fear

US Bancorp would seek to make a malicious USA Patriot Act report and

compromise the trade secret information it had copied and transmitted. All

of which US Bancorp failed to refute. Medical Supply is likely to succeed on

appeal.

08-3187 Medical Supply Chain vs. Neoforma Volume V  2006



!

6. US Bancorp did not develop its argument against conspiracy

required for only the Boycott claim. However, Medical Supply alleged and

showed with fact that US Bancorp controls its subsidiaries and employees as

a single entity in a common enterprise through web based guidance and

communication from US Bancorp NA. A8-13 para 19-32, C3, 8-15 paras 4,5,19-35. In

both complaints Medical Supply alleged that one subsidiary-US BANCORP

PIPERJAFFRAY and US BANCORP NA corporate headquarters caused US

BANK and PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP and their employees to act against

Medical Supply. US Bancorp’s wholly owned subsidiaries are not distinct

from the parent corporation for the purposes of the Sherman Antitrust Act.

See Copperweld Corp. v. Independence Tube Corp., 467 U.S. 752, 81 L. Ed.

2d 628, 104 S. Ct. 2731 (1984).  US Bancorp under these facts would be

likely to be found in violation of antitrust law as a single firm Refusal to

Deal or Denial of Services and Critical Facilities. See Aspen Skiing Co. v.

Highlands Skiing Corp.,738 F 2d 1509 (10th Cir. 1984), 472 U.S. 585(1985).

7. To state a claim for attempted monopolization under Sherman Act § 2,

Medical Supply plead: (1) US Bancorp attempted to monopolize the relevant

market nationwide for capitalizing healthcare technology and supplier

companies;(2) US Bancorp has a dangerous probability of success in

monopolizing the healthcare technology and supplier capitalization where it
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was already the largest venture fund investor and is concentrating 70% of its

venture fund investments in this relevant market, where US Bancorp is able

to set prices and keep out competitors; (3) US Bancorp has a specific intent

to monopolize healthcare technology and supplier capitalization and had

been fined this year for attempting to coerce another healthcare technology

company into using US Bancorp’s services through extortion C34 para. 80; and

(4) that US Bancorp interrupted the provision of escrow account services to

Medical Supply once it realized Medical Supply had obtained capitalization

from a competing source in furtherance of US Bancorp’s attempt to

monopolize healthcare technology and supplier capitalization. See TV

Communications Network, Inc. v. Turner Network Television, Inc., 964 F.2d

at 1025.

8. To state a monopolization claim under Sherman Act § 2, Medical

Supply plead: (1) US Bancorp posses monopoly power in the relevant

markets of healthcare technology and supplier capitalization, healthcare

technology stock analysis and hospital supplies, where US Bancorp is able

to set prices and keep out competitors; and (2) US Bancorp’s willful

acquisition and maintenance of that power is distinguished from growth or

development as a consequence of a superior product, business acumen, or

historic accident, but instead US Bancorp acquires and maintains that power
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through fraud, manipulation, leverage of monopoly power in one relevant

market to obtain power in another relevant market, through the “sham” use

of official government duties and theft of customer information. See TV

Communications, 964 F.2d at 1025 (quotations and citations omitted).

9.  Medical Supply plead that US Bancorp’s subsidiary Private Capital

Group in St. Louis, MO obtained trade secret information entrusted to an

officer of US BANK in Independence, MO who copied it and transmitted

the trade secret information without authorization and against the express

instructions of Medical Supply. Medical Supply had physical evidence of the

breach of duty establishing misappropriation under K.S.A. 60-3320. Medical

Supply also provided information that affiliates of US Bancorp had profited

from past misappropriation of trade secret information consisting of a

business model for pricing hospital supplies separately from their component

services that is used by the two Group Purchasing Organizations that control

over half of the hospital supply market. Now, Medical Supply has

discovered an affiliate of US Bancorp is advertising and making claims of a

price savings in healthcare supplies that matches those in the confidential

business plan US Bancorp obtained from Medical Supply. AFFIDAVIT This

evidence is sufficient for the purpose of obtaining preliminary injunctive

relief from further misappropriation.
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10. Medical Supply has a strong likelihood of success in its interlocutory

appeal for preliminary injunctive relief from the imminent harm and

irreparable damage risked through US Bancorp’s conduct.

11. If the preliminary injunctive relief is not granted while awaiting a

decision on Medical Supply’s appeal, Medical Supply will be irreparably

harmed. US Bancorp has a demonstrated tendency to seek to profit from its

customer’s valuable confidential data and to use illegal means to advance its

monopolization of the relevant markets of healthcare technology and

supplier capitalization, healthcare technology stock analysis and hospital

supply. There is a dangerously strong probability that US Bancorp will

continue its monopolization efforts by filing a malicious suspicious activity

report under the USA Patriot Act against Medical Supply which it perceives

as a competitor challenging the 23 billion dollar overcharges US Bancorp

has determined exists in the healthcare supply market and which US

Bancorp has worked to monopolize through acquisition of ownership and

control in healthcare technology and supplier companies and through

exchange of corporate directors with hospital supply distribution companies.

The existence of litigation related to USA Patriot Act reporting itself

increases the likelihood a US Bancorp compliance officer will file the report.
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On the suspicious activity report form itself; the financial institution is

instructed to report litigation.

12. There is a dangerous probability US Bancorp will disseminate

Medical Supply’s trade secret information to affiliate companies with the

intent to effectively oppose Medical Supply’s entry into the hospital supply

market. There is some indication this is currently happening, see paragraph 9

above.

13. US Bancorp’s threatened harm to Medical Supply through filing a

USA Patriot Act “Suspicious Activity Report” or dissemination of Medical

Supply’s confidential trade secret information is irreparable. Either act

would destroy Medical Supply’s ability to enter the market for healthcare

supplies, and to use proprietary technology to increase competition reducing

the 23 billion dollar inefficiency US Bancorp identified. Medical Supply’s

associates and potential customers would be harmed and the American

public’s access to healthcare would be decreased, leading to suffering and

death.

14. US Bancorp has no legitimate interest in filing a Suspicious Activity

Report against Medical Supply or in disseminating Medical Supply’s trade

secrets to weigh against granting this injunctive relief.

15. No harm to the public would result.
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Whereas, for the above stated reasons, Medical Supply respectfully

requests the Tenth Circuit grant preliminary injunctive relief for the duration

of the appeal prohibiting US Bancorp from making or filing suspicious

activity reports under the USA Patriot Act and from copying or otherwise

transmitting or disseminating Medical Supply’s trade secrets contained in its

business plan and associate program.

Respectfully submitted,

_____________________
Bret D. Landrith, Esq.
Kansas Supreme Court # 20380
Attorney for Medical Supply Chain, Inc.
Appellant
P.O. Box 17-2137
Kansas City, KS 66117-0137
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of
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32 Corporate Woods, Suite 1100
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